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VISION

L
Our vision is to build a future wherein the Pace Group is a
household name across the country and is known worldwide
for development and marketing of a fine living as well as
shopping environment with heights quality unmatched value-
for-money.

OUR PRINCIPLES

We are a Real Estate Development Company committed to
achieving the highest industry standards and personal
integrity indealing with our customers. clients. professionals,
employees, and the communities we work in.

MISSION STATEMENT

Formed in 1992, Pace Pakistan's principal mandate is to
acquire, develop, sale and manage real estate assets located in
major urban environments where real estate demands have
increased sharply due to lifestyle changes.

This increased demand together with the real estate expertise
from Pace defines the vision and the road map for the
Company's future. Pace has and will continue to pursue
residential, commercial and mixed-use transactions based on
these principles with always an eye on strong community
relations and integrity.
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PACE (PAKISTAN) LIMITED
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice 1s hereby given that 32" Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of Pace
(Pakistan) Limited (‘the Company" or "Pace”) will be held on Saturday, 28 October 2023 at
1130 am at Company's Registered Office, First Capital House, 96-B-1, M.M. Alam Road,
Gulberg-1ll Lahore to transact the following business:

QOrdinary Business

1 To confirm the minutes of Extraordinary General Meeting held on 02 May 2023;

2 To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 30 June 2023 together with the Chairman's Review, Directors’ Report and
Auditors’ reports thereon

3 To appoint the Auditors of the Company for the year ending 30 June 2024 and to fix their
remuneration;

4 Special Businesses:

(1) The renewal of Investment approval taken in last Annual General Meeting to
make additional equity investment in Pace Barka Properties Limited, in this
regard to pass the following special resolutions with or without modifications;

“RESOLVED THAT the Chief Executive of the Company be and is hereby authorized to
take all necessary steps to make additional equity investment(s) in the Share Capital of
Pace Barka Properties Limited (‘Pace Barka"), up to the extent of Pak Rupees 1,750
million (Rupees one thousand seven hundred fifty million only) in accordance with the
provisions of section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017, on such terms and conditions as
to be authorized by the Board of Directors of the Company. Further, the Chief Executive
of the Company is also authorized to disinvest such investments, from time to time on
terms and conditions to be authorized by the Board of Directors of the Company:

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Chief Executive/the Company Secretary of the
Company be and is hereby authorized to complete all necessary required corporate and
legal formalities for the completion of subject investments, including necessary filings
ete.

(1) To circulate the annual audited financial statements to the members of the
Company through QR enabled code and weblink in compliance of S.R.O
389(1)/2023 dated 21" March 2023, in this regard to pass the following special
resolutions with or without modifications;

RESOLVED THAT the Company be and is hereby authorized to circulate its annual
audited financial statements to the members of the Company through QR enabled code
and weblink. in accordance with S.R.O 389(1)/2023 dated 21 March 2023 issued by
SECP and the practice of circulation of the annual audited financial statements through
CD/DVD/USB may be discontinued.”
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Chief Executive/any Director/Company Secretary of
the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all acts, deeds, things or actions as may
be necessary, incidental or consequential to give effect to this resolution.”

By order of the Board

Sajfa ﬁam‘a_ﬁ*

Company Secretary

Lahore:
06 October 2023

Notes:-

1)

2)

3)

The Members Register will remain closed from 21 October 2023 to 28 October 2023 (both
days inclusive) Transfers received at Corplink (Pvt.) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K,
Commercial Model Town, Lahore, the Registrar and Shares Transfer Office of the
Company. by the close of business on 20 October 2023 will be treated in time for the
purpose of Annual General Meeting.

A member eligible to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint another member as proxy
to attend and vote in the meeting. Proxies in order to be effective must be received by the
company not later than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting.

In order to be valid an instrument of proxy and the power of attorney or other authority (if
any) under which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy of such power of attorney, must
be deposited at the Company's Registered Office. First Capital House, 96-B-1, M.M. Alam
Road, Gulberg-Ill Lahore, not less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting.

Pursuant to Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018, for the purpose of agenda item
classified as Special Business subject to the requirements of Section 143 and 144 of the
Companies Act, 2017, members will be allowed to exercise their right of vote through postal
ballot, that is voting by post or E-Voting, in accordance with the requirements and procedure
contained in the aforesaid Regulations.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017, the shareholders residing in a city
and holding at least 10% of the total paid up share capital may demand the Company to
provide the facility of video-link for participating in the meeting.

The demand for video-link facility shall be received by the Share Registrar of the Company
or directly to the Company at the email address given herein blow at least 7 (seven) days
prior to the date of the meeting on the Standard Form which can be downloaded from the
company's website: www.pacepakistan.com

Further, in compliance with Circular 04, of 2021 dated 15.02.2021, the shareholders of the



9)

Company can opt to attend the meeting through Video/Webex/Zoom or other electronic
means. The shareholders whose names appear in the Books of the Company by the close
of business on 20 October 2023 and who are interested to attend meeting through Video
Link/Zoom are hereby requested to get themselves, registered with the Company Secretary
Office by providing the following details at least 48 hours before the meeting;

Email. sajladahmad@pacepakistan com. jawahar@pacepakistan.com,
WhatsApp Number 0303-4444800, 0302-8440835

Shareholders are requested to fill the particulars as per the blow table:

Name of CNIC No Folio No. / No. of Cell No. Email
Sharehaolder cDC Shares held address
i Account No,

Upon receipt of the above information from interested shareholders, the Company will send
the login details / password at their email addresses. On the meeting day, shareholders will
be able to login and participate in the meeting proceedings through their smartphones or
computer devices from any convenient location.

The members can also send their comments/suggestions related to the agenda items of the
meeting on the above mentioned email and Whats App number .The login facility will be
opened 10 minutes before the meeting time to enable the participants to join the meeting.

Address of Independent Share Registrar of the Company: Name . Corplink (Pvt.) Limited,
Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial Model Town, Lahore, (042) 35839182

The Notice of Annual General Meeting has been placed on the Company's website:
www.pacepakistan.com

a) Individual beneficial owners of CDC entitled to attend and vote at the meeting must
bring his/her participant ID and account/sub-account number along with original CNIC or
passport to authenticate his/her identity. In case of Corporate entity, resolution of the
Board of Directors/Power of attorney with specimen signatures of nominees shall be
produced (unless provided earlier) at the time of meeting.

b) For appointing of proxies, the individual beneficial owners of CDC shall submit the proxy
form as per above requirement along with participant ID and account/sub-account
number together with attested copy of their CNIC or Passport. The proxy form shall be
witnessed by two witnesses with their names, addresses and CNIC numbers. The proxy
shall produce his/her original CNIC or Passport at the time of meeting. In case of
Corporate entity resolution of the Board of Director/Power of attorney along with
specimen signatures shall be submitted (unless submitted earlier) along with the proxy
form

The Company Circulate Annual Audited Accounts through CD/DVD and Email (in case
email address has been provided). Further, the Company shall send the complete hard
copy in case request has been made to the Company by a member;

_ 10) Members are requested to notify any change in their registered address immediately;



STATEMENT UNDER SECTION (3) OF SECTION 134 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

This statement sets out the material facts pertaining to the special business as to be
transacted at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 28 October 2023.

RENEWAL OF EQUITY INVESTMENT LIMITE IN PACE BARKA PROPERTIES LIMITED
(“PACE BARKA”)

RENEWAL OF INVESTMENT APPROVAL IN PACE BARKA PROPERTIES LIMITED
(“PACE BARKA")

The Shareholders of Pace (Pakistan) Limited (“the Company") in their last Annual General
Meeting ("AGM") held on 28 October 2022 approved special resolutions to make additional
equity investment in the Share Capital of Pace Barka Properties Limited (“Pace Barka”), up
to the extent of Pak Rupees 1,750 millicn (Rupees one billion seven hundred fifty million) and
a further investment of Rs. 500.00 million as Loan/Advance to Pace Barka, however, these
decisions were not implemented during last year.

The Board of Directors has recommended the renewal of the approval for additional equity
investment upto Rs. 1,750 million for next year as it is envisaged that the Board of Directors
of Pace Barka will announce right issue during upcoming year, which will necessitates the
subscription of right of nght issue

The additional long term investment in the share capital of Pace Barka up to Rs. 1,750
milion (Rupees one thousand seven hundred fifty million only) will be made through
subscription of right shares / purchase from existing shareholders on such terms and
conditions as to be authorized by the Board of Directors of the Company. Further, it is
proposed thal the Chief Executive of the Company is also authorized to disinvest such
investments, from time to time as and when considered appropriate on such terms and
conditions as to be approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Pace Barka was incorporated on 22 November 2005 as a public company. The main
objectlives of Pace Barka are to acquire/purchase, construct and develop properties, hotels,
shopping malls, apartment buildings, office blocks, commercial buildings, etc, and sales and
management thereof. The registered office of Pace Barka is located at First Capital House,
96-B-1, M.M Alam Road, Gulberg-lll Lahore,. The existing Authorized Share Capital of Pace
Barka is Rs 4,800 000,000 divided into 480,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each. The
issued. subscribed and paid up capital is Rs. 3,052,573 630/- divided into 305,257,363
ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each.

The Shareholders of Pace Barka consists of the Company holds 75,875 000 shares
(24 86%), Parkview Holdings Corporation holds 68,331,363 shares (22.39%), Late Sheikh
Sulieman Ahmed Said Al-Hogani holds 73,924 500 shares (24.22%), Saudi Pak Industrial &
Agricultural Investment Co. Limited holds 16,875 000 shares (5.53%), Faysal Bank Limited
holds 5,200,000 (1.70%), Tawasul Healthcare (Pvt.) Limited holds 4,500,000 shares (1.47%),
First Capital Securities Corporation Limited holds 54,791,061 shares (17.95%), and other
_shareholders hold 5,763,939 shares (1.89%) of the total paid up capital of Pace Barka.
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Pace Barka is developing @ premium multiuse project near Alama lgbal International Airport
Lahore which cCOmMPrises a proposed 5-star hotel, a world class shopping mall, proposed
serviced & Pace-managed apartments. The project is located near Lahore International
Airport and is surrounded by number of high-end housing societies like Army Housing

Scheme and Defence Housing Authority

In addition to the above, Pace Barka also owns 2 lake-side premium property at a short
distance from lslamabad Pace Barka is planning to develop large commercial project(s)
thereon Pace Barka also holds 48% of the shareholding in Pace Woodlands (Pvt.) Limited, @
residential housing scheme. located at Bedian Road, Lahore Cantt. The housing scheme is
comprised of 160 houses on a total area of 160 kanals.

The management of the Company considers this investment to be beneficial. The Company
has already holds 75 875,000 shares of par value of Rs. 10.00/- each, 24.86 % of the total
shareholding of Pace Barka

The investments N Pace Barka shares shall be made from the available cash resources
and/or the future internal cash generations of the Company including through sale of assets
avallable The benefits likely to accrue to the Company shall include income on equity
investment in the shape of dividends and capital gains. The Company shall comply the
requirements of section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017 for the purpose of these
nvestments  All the benefits accrued 10 Pace Barka, through growth in its business
operations will become part of the returns of the Company and its shareholders

INFORMATION AS REQUIRED UNDER REGULATION 3(A) OF THE COMPANIES
{INVESTN‘IENT IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES OR ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS)
REGULATIONS, 2017

The Company IS fully authorized by its Memorandum of Association to make such
investment. The investment would be made at such time(s), as the Chief Executive may think
appropriate on pehalf of the Company and would disinvest(s) as and when appropriate. The
Chief Executive of the Company or the Company Secretary aré also authorized {0 take all
the necessary corporate and legal formalities In connection with the proposed investment
where required

The information required under the Companies (Investment in Associated Companies Of
Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2017

INVESTMENT IN THE FORM OF EQUITY;

() | Name of the associated company Of associated | pace Barka Properties]
undertaking _ B ] \_Lirgiigq,____ s |

(iy | Basis of relationship MY ) . @9@@9!’_@[@&%2&

(i) | Earnings per share for the last three years | June 2021 2022 2023

|RS. (0.77) (1.02) (0.72)(")

(iv) | Break-up value per shares, based onr'1até_st' ad_&it_e:d_~|_l:’_¥(_ii_1_7ff:‘-_2_f—ﬁﬁe-_r gﬁa?eﬂ____~
financial statements for 30-06-2022 -

("2/’// 0




(v) | Financial Position, including main items of statement | Financial Year ended 30.086.
of financial position and profit & Loss account on the | 2023 (PKR figures are in
bases of latest financial statements (*); and thousand)

Share Capital & Reserves

PKR 5,159,978

Non-Current Liabilities PKR

1,129,286

Current Liabilities PKR |

954 298

Non-Current Assets PKR

' 2,045,931

Current Assets PKR

5187 631

Net Loss is PKR 219,804

(*) (Financial figures have

been taken from unaudited

financial statements for the
| year ended 30 June 2023, as

Pace Barka has applied for

an Extension of 30 days time

| in holding Annual General

'Meeting and Laying Annual

Audited Financial statements

. ) B " therein)
(vi) I'In case of investment in relation to a project of
associated company or associated undertaking that
| has not commenced operations, following further
information: _ . il )
(1) Description of the project and its history since Currently, Pace Barka is
conceptualization; focusing on completion of

development of Pace Circle
’ Project, a premium multiuse
project near Alama
Igbal International Airport
Lahore which comprises a 5-
| star proposed hotel, a world
class shopping mall,
proposed serviced & Pace-
managed apartments. The
project is located near Lahore
International Airport and is
surrounded by number of
| high-end housing societies
like Army Housing Scheme
and Defence Housing
Authority.  Total  planned
constructed area consists of
around 1.67 million square

- | feet (including basement).




(Il) Starting date and expected date of completion
of work

. (M Time by which such project shall become
commercially operational: ‘

(IV)Expected time by which the project shall start |

paying return on investments and:

(V) Funds invested or to be invested by the |

promoters. sponsors, associated company

or undertaking distinguishing between cash
and non-cash amounts.

Maximum amount of investment to be made

The civil work on Serviced
Apartment and Shopping Mall

Building has been almost
_completed |
Starting date is 2005 and

expected date of completion
for Retail and Apartments is
30-06-25 and for Hotel is 30-
06-286.

01.07.2025

RS. 3,052,573,630 has been
invested by all shareholders
in Pace Barka, the Company
has further plan to invest Rs.
1,750 million as additional
equity.

PKR 1,750,000,000 only

the inve_sﬁi company
Investiment and period of

Purpose, benefits likely to accrue to
Lits members from such
Investments

' Sources of funds to be utilized for investment:

Salient features of the agreement(s), if any with associated
tompany or associated undertaking with regards to the

Utilization of the Company's
available/future cash
resources including sale of
assets for better prospective
returns to shareholders .
resources

Available cash
and/or future internal cash
generation from the

operations of Company or
through sale of other assets
NA

proposed investment; P an'l
Direct or indirect interest of Directors. sponsors, majority
shareholders and their relatives. if any, in the associated
company or associated undertaking or the transaction under
consideration’

[n case any Iinvestment in associated company or
assoclated has already been made. the performance review
of such investment including complete
information/justification for any impairment or write offs: and;

Mr. Salmaan Taseer (late)
holds 2,613,701 (0.86%) of
the total shareholding, which
Is under succession. Rest the
Directors of the Company and
their relatives (if any) are
interested to the extent of

 their shareholdings.

The investment was made,
from time to time at Par value
of Rs. 10.00 each, now the
break-up value of the shares
Is Rs. 17,62 per share, on the
bases Audited financial for

| Year 30 June 2022 and Rs.

ﬂ‘;/




16.90 on the bases of |

unaudited financial
_ | statements for 30 June 2023.

Any other important details necessary for the members to | Additional Equity Investment
understand the transaction - i in Associated Company
Maximum price at which securities will be acquired The fair value at the date of
acquisition to be determined
- in accordance with law.
| In case the purchase price is higher than market value in the NA
case of listed entity and fair value in case of unlisted |
securities, justification thereof; |

Maximum number of securities to be acquired Tentatively 175,000,000
shares at a rate of Rs 10/-per
share

Number of securities and percentage thereof held before ‘ Before =75,875,000= 24.86%

and after the proposed investment; B | After =250,875,000 = 52.00%
Fair value determined in terms of sub regulation (1) of | The fair value is to be
regulation 05 for investments in unlisted securities. determined at the time of
Investment. However, the
break-up value of the shares
is Rs. 17.62 per share, on the
bases Audited financial for
Year 30 June 2022 and Rs.
16.90 on the bases of
unaudited financial
statements for 30 June 2023

CIRCULATION OF THE ANNUAL AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO MEVMBERS
THROUGH QR ENABLED CODE AND WEBLINK

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (‘SECP’) through its S.R.O 389(1)/2023
dated 21 March 2023 has allowed the listed companies to circulate annual balance sheet,
profit and loss account, auditor's report and Directors Report etc. (“annual audited financial
statements”) to its members through QR enabled code and weblink subject to the approval of
shareholders, therefore the Board of Directors has approved to make the compliance.
Therefore, the practice of circulation of annual audited financial statements through
CD/DVD/USB may be discontinued.

Further, it is proposed by the Board that the authority be given to Chief
Executive/Director/the Company Secretary of the Company to do all acts, deeds, things or
actions as may be necessary. incidental or consequential to give effect to this resolution.

INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS

Copies of the Memorandum and Articles of Association, Statement under section 134(3) of
the Companies Act, 2017, latest pattern of shareholding and variation in shareholding of the
shareholders, having 10% or more in the Company during the last six months, financial
projections/plan of the Company. audited annual accounts for the last three years of the
Company and PBPL and all other related information of the Company may be inspected



during the business hours at the Registered Office of the Company form the date of the
publications of the this notice till the conclusion of the Extraordinary General Meeting.

INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND THEIR RELATIVES

All the directors of Pace Barka including the Chief Executive are (nominated by the
Company) and their relatives (if any) are interested to the extent of their shares that are held
by them. Mr. Salmaan Taseer (late) holds 2,613,701 (0.86%) of the total shareholding, which
is under succession Rest the Directors of the Company and their relatives (if any) are
interested to the extent of their shareholdings. The effect of the resolutions on the interest of
these directors including the Chief Executive and their relatives (if any) does not differ from
its effect on the like interest of other shareholders. They have no other interest in the special
business and / or resolutions except as specified herein.

Disclosure under Regulation 4 (2) of Chapter Il of Companies (Investment in
Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2017

The decision to make investment under an authority of Special resolution for Loan / Advance
& additional equity investment(s) in the Share Capital of Pace Barka Properties Limited
(“Pace Barka') passed In last Annual General Meeting held on 28 October 2022 has not
been implemented, the following is the explanation on status of decision:

Total Investment Approvedmml_fidditional Equity Investment | Loan/Advance to up to Rs.
' | up to the extent of 1,750 | 500.00 Million (Rupees five

[ million (Rupees one | hundred million only)
| thousand seven hundred fifty |
| million only) _ o

Amount of investment made | NIL

to date |

Reasons for deviation from ‘ As per law the investment was required to be made within
the approved time line of one year however, the investment decision was not
investment, where implemented

investment decision was to

be implemented In specific

time
Material change in financial @ Financial Year Ended 2022 2023 (PKR in MN)
' statements  of associated | Share Capital & Reserves 5,379.78 5,159.97

company since the date of Non-Current Liabilities 988.72 1,128.29
resolution passed for = Current Liabilities ‘ 922 17 954 29
approval of investment Non-Current Assels 1 5,147.31  5,197.63

Current Assets 2,140.36 2,045.93

Net Loss - | 311.01 219.80

In the last Annual General Meeting the Shareholders also authorized the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company to take all necessary steps to make disinvestment up to 75,875,000
ordinary shares of Rs 10/~ each of Pace Barka Properties Limited to any prospective buyer
on such terms and conditions as may be approved by the Board of Directors, however, no
shares have been disposed off todate.

M/lf-\
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Pace (Pakistan) Limited

Chairman’s Review

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

The financial year under review posed considerable challenges for the global economy,
Pakistan included. High inflation compelled central banks worldwide to raise interest
rates, thereby increasing the cost of conducting business. Supply chain disruptions also
led to rising commodity prices, particularly in the case of oil. Pakistan's economy faced
serious hurdles due to factors such as higher interest rates, PKR depreciation against the
USD, import restrictions, severe flooding in the first quarter of the fiscal year, and reduced
remittances from overseas Pakistanis. The signing of an agreement with the IMF
marginally improved business confidence, however the end of the term of the National
Assembly  brought a new wave of uncertainty for the  future.

REAL ESTATE INDUSTRY CHALLENGES

The real estate industry encountered significant challenges during the year, including
higher existing and new taxes, reduced remittances from overseas Pakistanis, and
decreased interest from local and foreign investors in the sector. Escalating construction
costs have severely impacted project development and completion, while running existing
projects has become costlier due to increased commodity prices and higher electricity
rates. These factors collectively affected the overall performance of the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' PERFORMANCE

Throughout the year, the Board of Directors at Pace (Pakistan) Limited underwent a
restructuring, resulting in the appointment of two new independent directors and a
Chairman of the Board.

| am pleased to report on the Board's overall performance and its effectiveness in
achieving the Company's objectives:

e The Board diligently fulfilled its duties, prioritizing the best interests of the
Company's shareholders and efficiently managing its affairs.

e The Board comprises highly professional and experienced individuals, bringing
diverse business expertise, including the independent directors. All board
members are acutely aware of their responsibilities and conscientiously fulfill them.

e The Board maintains the requisite representation of non-executive and
independent directors on its committees, in accordance with the Code. Members
of the Board and its committees possess the necessary skills, experience, and
knowledge to oversee the Company's affairs.



Directors received orientation courses to enhance their effectiveness, with four
directors already certified under the Directors Training Program, and the remaining
directors meeting or on the way to meeting the qualification and experience criteria
stipulated by the Code.

The Board established Audit and Human Resource and Remuneration
Committees, defined their terms of reference, and allocated adequate resources
for diligent committee performance.

Board and committee meetings were conducted with the necessary quorum,
decision-making was documented through Board resolutions, and accurate
minutes of all meetings (including committees) were maintained.

The Board actively participated in strategic planning, enterprise risk management,
policy development, financial structure monitoring, and approval processes.
Significant matters throughout the year were presented to the Board or its
committees to formalize corporate decision-making.

All significant issues, especially related-party transactions, were presented to the
Board, and decisions were made based on Audit Committee recommendations.

The Board ensured the presence of a robust internal control system, regularly
assessing it through self-assessment mechanisms and internal audits.

The Board prepared and approved the director's report, ensuring its publication
alongside quarterly and annual financial statements in accordance with applicable
laws and regulations.

The Board exercised its powers in accordance with relevant laws and regulations
governing the Company, consistently prioritizing compliance.

The Board oversaw the hiring, evaluation, and compensation of key executives,
including the Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, and
Head of Internal Audit.

The Board facilitated timely information sharing among its members, keeping them
informed of developments between meetings.

| express my gratitude to my fellow directors, shareholders, management, and staff for
their unwavering support in exceptionally challenging operating conditions. We assure
you that areas requiring improvement are thoroughly considered, and action plans are
devised. We eagerly anticipate continued success for the Company in the future.

—

Lahore Sikander Rashid Choudry
Dated: 06 October 2023 Chairman



Directors’ Report (Year Ended June-2023)
Pace (Pakistan) Limited (“the Company” or “Pace”)
General Economic Overview

Pakistan’s strong post-pandemic recovery came to a halt in fiscal year (FY) 23 with the
delayed withdrawal of COVID-19-era policy stimulus leaving large accumulated economic
imbalances. Pressures on domestic prices, external and fiscal balances, the exchange rate,
and foreign exchange reserves mounted amid surging world commodity prices, global
monetary tightening, recent catastrophic flooding, and domestic political uncertainty.
Confidence and economic activity collapsed due to import and capital controls, periodic
exchange rate controls, creditworthiness downgrades, and ballooning interest payments.
Amid shrinking economic activity, price shocks, and the impacts of flooding, poverty
increased significantly.

Economic activity slowed sharply in FY23 with contractions in both industry and services
sectors and muted growth in the agriculture sector. Overall, real gross domestic product
(GDP) is estimated to have declined by 0.6 percent in FY23 after growing by 6.1 percent in
FY22 and 5.8 percent in FY21. Floods caused heavy damage to crops and livestock, while
difficulties securing critical inputs, including fertilizers, further slowed agriculture output
growth. Supply chain disruptions due to import restrictions and flood impacts, high fuel and
borrowing costs, political uncertainty, and weak demand affected industry and service sector
activity, and dampened private investment. Public consumption and investment contracted in
line with fiscal consolidation. Private consumption also shrank with weakened labor markets
and surging inflation.

Headline inflation rose to a multi-decade high in FY23, averaging 29.2 percent year-on-year
(y-0-y) compared to 12.2 percent in FY22. Main drivers included flood-related disruptions to
agricultural production and supply chains, energy tariff and petroleum price adjustments, and
depreciation of the Rupee. In response to rising inflation, the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP)
continued to hike the policy rate, increasing it by a cumulative 825 basis points (bps) to
reach 22.0 percent in FY23. Despite this, monetary policy remained accommodative with
negative real interest rates.

Amid slowing growth and high inflation, the poverty headcount is estimated to have reached
39.4 percent in FY23—more than 5 percentage points higher than in FY22.1 The record high
food and energy prices, lower labor incomes, and the loss of crops and livestock due to the
2022 floods significantly impacted real household incomes. Despite a temporary increase in
cash transfers and one-time fuel subsidy, overall mitigation measures were insufficient to
protect poor and vulnerable households.

Pakistan’s external position weakened in FY23 due to tight global financing conditions, large
amortization payments, and loss of investor confidence limiting new foreign inflows. The
current account deficit (CAD) narrowed to 0.7 percent of GDP in FY23, from 4.7 percent of
GDP in FY 2022. This was primarily due to import management measures, a weaker
currency, and muted economic activity that caused imports to decline faster than exports,
supporting a narrower trade deficit. Meanwhile, official remittance inflows declined by 13.6
percent y-o-y, partly due to rigidities in the official exchange rate incentivizing the use of
informal remittance channels. Amid large amortization payments and capital outflows, the
financial account also turned negative driving the overall balance of payments into a slight
deficit. The SBP’s gross foreign exchange reserves fell to US$5.7 billion, equivalent to only
one month of imports at end-June 2023.3 Given the high external pressures, by end-June
2023 the Rupee had depreciated by 28.6 percent against the US dollar.



Despite significant narrowing of the primary deficit, the consolidated fiscal deficit, excluding
grants, declined only marginally to 7.8 percent of GDP in FY23, from 7.9 percent in FY22.4
This was due to a substantial increase in interest payments on the back of the higher
domestic policy rate and weakening currency. The primary deficit declined to 0.8 percent of
GDP in FY23, from 3.1 percent in FY22, supported by lower public spending on subsidies
and grants. Muted economic activity and a decline in imports suppressed revenue from
indirect taxes, limiting the Government’s capacity to increase tax revenue. The Government
financed the resulting fiscal deficit primarily through borrowing from commercial banks,
further crowding out private sector borrowing. Although the banks’ capital adequacy ratio
(CAR) at end-FY23 remained largely unchanged in comparison to end-FY22, financial sector
risks rose with the larger exposure to the sovereign and a slight increase in non-performing
loans. By end-FY23, public debt, including guaranteed debt, rose to 82.3 percent of GDP
from 80.7 percent of GDP at end-FY22.

Careful economic management—including exchange rate flexibility, fiscal restraint, and
maintaining implementation of the FY24 budget and the IMF-SBA—uwill be required to
ensure macroeconomic stability this fiscal year. Even with these measures, the current
economic trajectory is not sustainable without further fiscal adjustment and other reforms.
The foreign exchange position continues to erode, despite the new IMF program, rollovers,
refinancing, and new inflows from official creditors. The persistent exchange rate
depreciation and inflationary pressures continue to weigh on economic activity. Selective
import controls will be required to preserve scarce foreign exchange reserves, constraining
the pace of economic recovery with continued supply chain disruptions. Confidence remains
extremely weak. Economic growth is therefore expected to remain below potential over the
medium term with limited improvements in investment and exports. With depleted policy
buffers, the economy’s capacity to overcome any fresh domestic or external shock remains
limited; downside risks to the outlook are therefore very high.

With the slight recovery in revenue partly due to the resumption of growth and imports, and
continuation of expenditure restraint, the primary deficit is expected to remain modest,
declining to 0.4 percent of GDP in FY24 and further to 0.3 percent in FY25. However, the
weaker currency and high domestic policy rates will increase interest payments.
Subsequently, the fiscal deficit will decline only marginally to reach 7.7 percent in FY24 and
inching down to 7.6 percent in FY25. Gross financing needs will remain sizeable throughout
the projection period because of maturing short-term debt (though short-term deposits are
expected to be rolled over), multilateral and bilateral repayments, and Eurobond maturities.
By end-FY24, total public debt, including guaranteed debt, is projected to decline to 72.4
percent of GDP and further to 70.3 percent by end-FY25.

Company Performance and Financial Overview

The comparison of the financial results for the year ended 30" June 2023, with previous
financial year is as under:

Year Year
End End
2023 2022
Rupees in ‘000’
Sales 241,809 1,256,326
Cost of Sales (118,789) (903,253)
Gross Profit 123,020 353,073
Admin & Selling Expenses (328,804) (287,494)
Other Income 120,632 306,465

Exchange Gain/(loss) on foreign (1,421,955) (818,893)



currency convertible bond
Finance Cost (182,541) (156,128)
Other Operating expenses - -
Gain from change in FV of

. 14,562 9,606
investment property

Net profit/(loss) before tax (1,674,581) (593,371)
Net profit/(loss) after tax (1,677,604) (618,439)
Earnings/(Loss) per share (PKR) (6.02) (2.22)

During year under review, the revenue of the Company amounted to Rs. 241.81 million as
compared to Rs. 1,256 million of last year. Cost of Sales also decreased from Rs. 903
million last year to Rs. 119 million current year. Administrative expenses were Rs 329 million
against Rs 287 million. Other income of the company was Rs. 121 million. The company
also incurred an exchange loss of Rs. 1,421 million on Foreign Currency Convertible Loan
due to depreciation of Pak-Rupee against dollars. Finance costs during the period increased
from Rs. 156 million to Rs. 183 million, due to change in KIBOR rate.

As a result of aforementioned factors, the loss for the period under consideration amounted
to Rs. 1,677 million as compared to last year at Rs. 618 million, resulting in Loss Per Share
(LPS) of Rs. 6.04 as compared to (LPS) of Rs. 2.22 in last year.

Status of Financial Obligations

The current maturity of long term loans increased from Rs. 4.52 billion as at 30" June 2022
to Rs. 5.93 billion as at 30 June 2023. Such increase was witnessed on account of
Exchange Loss recorded on Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds due to depreciation of
PKR against US Dollar. Further the remaining amount payable to financial institutions and
lenders in respect of company's borrowings is currently in overdue status because of the
non-repayment of loans and accrued markup owing to the limited cash flows available to the
company, however we look forward to repay our commitments and obligations towards our
financial lenders in near future as the construction and sales in respect of Pace Tower has
already begun. Further, the Company is in process of negotiations with lenders for
settlement of their overdue liabilities.

Company'’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern

The Company has incurred loss before tax of Rs. 1,675 million (2022: Rs. 593 million).
Increase/ Decrease in loss is mainly driven by exchange loss of Rs. 1,421 million in 2023
versus loss of Rs. 819 million in 2022 on the foreign currency convertible bonds issued by
the Company.

At the reporting date, current liabilities of the Company have exceeded its current assets by
Rs. 5,250 million (2022: Rs. 3,515 million), and accumulated losses of the Company stand at
Rs. 4,786 million (2022: Rs.3,122 million). Due to liquidity issues the Company has not been
able to meet various obligations towards its lenders, including repayment of principal and
mark-up thereon in respect of its borrowings. These conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubts on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and, therefore, it may be unable to realize
it assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

The management has prepared an assessment which covers at least twelve months from
the reporting date and believes that the following measures, if implemented effectively, will
generate sufficient financial resources for the continuing operations:



The management is continuously engaged with its lenders for settlements of Company’s
borrowings. In addition, the management of the company has changed its shopping mall
structure to shared office structure. This results in high inflows in form of rentals.

Construction of Pace Tower was delayed due to lockdown imposed during the strain of
COVID-19, however the management is confident that it will complete Pace Tower Project
by the end of 2024 and is actively engaged to find buyers for the sale of remaining floors/
apartments in Pace Tower. Management is also taking necessary steps for the sale of its
inventory in Pace Circle.

Further, company is about to start sale of its Shadman project through zameen.com, one of
the leading real estate sale agency of Pakistan. In addition, company has saleable inventory
in the form of Islamabad plots, the palm and various shops in pace shopping malls. The
management is expected to generate good revenue over the period of three years from sale
of these inventories. The proceeds from these sales will help to improve the operating cash
flows of the Company and to settle its obligations.

Risk Management

The Board recognizes that risk is an integral component of the business, and that it is
characterized by both threat and opportunity. Pace fosters a risk aware corporate culture in
all decision-making, and is committed to manage all risks in a proactive and effective
manner through competent risk management. To support this commitment, risk is analyzed
in order to inform the management decisions taken at all levels within the organization. Due
to the limitations inherent in any risk management system, the process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the material business risks is designed to manage, rather than
eliminate, risk and to provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance, against material
misstatement or loss. Certain risks, for example natural disasters, cannot be managed to an
acceptable degree using internal controls. Such major risks are transferred to third parties in
the local insurance markets, to the extent considered appropriate.

Internal Controls

The directors and management are responsible for the Company’s system of internal
controls and for reviewing annually its effectiveness in providing shareholders with a return
on their investments that is consistent with a responsible assessment and management of
risks. This includes reviewing financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management procedures and their effectiveness. The directors have completed their annual
review and assessment for year ended 2023.

The board and audit committee regularly review reports of the internal audit function of the
company related to the Company’s control framework in order to satisfy the internal control
requirements. The company’s internal Audit function reviews the integrity and effectiveness
of control activities and provides regular reports to the Audit Committee and the Board.

Our Commitment to Diversity

We at Pace believe in diversity, wherever we operate and across every part of our business,
we strive to create an inclusive culture in which difference is recognized and valued. By
bringing together men and women from diverse backgrounds and giving each person the
equal opportunity to contribute their skills, experience and perspectives, we believe that we
are able to develop the best solutions to challenges and deliver sustainable value for our
stakeholders.

Health and Safety Measures



We are committed on achieving our goal of zero harm. This is supported by our
management system which provides the framework for incorporating hazard identification,
risk assessment and risk management into all aspects of the operations. Safe operations
that protect our people and assets are a priority and we work systematically to mitigate risks
that are critical to operating safely.

We emphasize on improved leadership engagement around safety risk and to improve our
health management processes, improve our understanding of fithess for work and wellness
risks within our workforce.

Occupational health and safety is a top priority at the Company. We will strive to ensure
safe working conditions, equipment and work sites. The Company promotes Employee
involvement and accountability in identifying, preventing and eliminating hazardous
conditions and the risks of Employee injury.

Health and safety in the working environment, product quality and operating efficiency are
inseparable. The Company will ensure continuous improvement in health and safety
performance through close cooperation among management, Employees and unions,
which will contribute to the health and safety of employees and the success of the
organization.

The Company is committed to:

¢ make employee health and safety a priority in all aspects of management practices;

e establish, communicate and enforce, with the Employees’ involvement, work site-
specific rules and safe work methods;

e promote and develop the awareness, leadership and accountability of employees in
health and safety through their involvement in continuous improvement processes;

e measure its health and safety performance in accordance with established standards,
and communicate the results to the Employees.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The management of the Company allows various non-profit organizations to do charitable
activities at the Shopping Malls of the Company i.e. distribution and display of their material
and collection of charity through boxes etc.

People and Human Resource Development

Our People strategy, together with our employee commitment, forms the framework that
guides how we attract, develop, engage and retain talented people, while ensuring
alignment with our business strategy. In line with our Employment policy, we seek safe
and effective working relationships at all levels within the Group.

We employ on the basis of job requirements and adhere to the laws pertaining to non-
discrimination on grounds of age, ethnic or social origin, gender, sexual orientation, politics,
religion or disability.

Our employees’ diversity of skills, ideas and experiences helps to ensure that we respond
innovatively and sensitively to the challenges faced across the Company. The Company's
human resource development is founded on a strong set of values. The policies seek to
instill spirit of trust, transparency and dignity among all employees and thus have contributed
to continuous growth.



We have a full-fledged HR department that is responsible for making this all happen. We
offer our employees a rounded total rewards package, the principles of which are consistent
across the all levels, designed to be competitive, in compliance with all applicable laws and
regulations, and appropriately balanced.

Appropriations

Keeping in view the financial constraints and requirements of the company, the board has
not recommended any dividend for the year under review.

EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION

The remuneration to the Chief Executive Officer and Executive at the Company is as follows:

DIRECTORS
Chief Executive Executive
2023 2022 2023 2022

--- (Rupees in thousand) ---

Managerial

remuneration 7,600 7,600 2,725 2,725

House

allowance 3,040 3,040 1,090 1,090

Utilities 760 760 273 273

Staff retirement benefit-Gratuity 950 950 341 341

Leave

encashment 633 633 227 227
12,983 12,983 4,656 4,656

Number of

persons 1 1 1 1

Code of Corporate Governance;

The company has implemented Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019; the composition of Board committees and the Composition of the Board
are made in accordance with the provisions of the Code of Corporate Governance.

Election of new Board of Directors

The Company held its Election in Extraordinary General Meeting on 02 May 2023 and the
following board was appointed;

A Sikander Rashid Choudry (new appointment) Chairman/Independent Director

Aamna Taseer CEO

Shehryar Ali Taseer Director

Shahbaz Ali Taseer Director

Shehrbano Taseer Director

Shavez Ahmad Independent Director

Sheikh Aftab Ahmad (new appointment) Independent Director



Mian Ehsan ul Haq, Director of the Company passed Away on 06 January 2023 and Mr.
Umair Fakhar Alam was co-opted by the Board in his place. Thereafter, in election held on
Mr. Kanwar Latafat Ali Khan and Umair Fakhar Alam both Retired and Mr. Sikander Rashid
Choudry and Sheikh Aftab Ahmad was appointed.

Mrs. Aamna Taseer was re-appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Company for a tenor
of next three years at a monthly remuneration of Rs. 950,000/- per month along with other
Company benefits.

The composition of Board is as under:

Total number of Directors 07
a) Male: 05
b) Female: 02

Composition:

Independent Directors 03

Other Non-Executive 01

Directors

Executive Directors 03

Committee of the board

Audit Committee Shavez Ahmad (Chairman)
Shehrbano Taseer (Member)
Sikander Rashid Choudry (Member)

Human Resource and Shavez Ahmad (Chairman)
Remuneration (HR&R) Aamna Taseer (Member)
Committee Shehrbano Taseer (Member)

The Statement of Compliance with Code of Corporate Governance is annexed.
AUDITORS

The present auditors M/s Junaidy Shoaib Asad, Chartered Accountants retire and offer
themselves for reappointment. The Board of directors has recommended their appointment
as auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2024, at a fee to be mutually
agreed.

Integrity and compliance
Maintaining a strong and ethical culture is fundamental to the way we work at Pace. We are
committed to conduct our business with integrity, one of our core values, and believe our

values and good ethical standards are key to executing our strategy.

We are committed, in principle and practice, to transparency consistent with good
governance and commercial confidentiality. We issue information in a timely way on the



Group’s operational, financial and sustainable development performance through a number
of channels.

Compliance with Laws, Rules & Regulations

Employees are required to comply fully with all laws, rules and regulations affecting the
Company’s business and its conduct in business matters. It is the Company’s policy to abide
by the national and local laws of nation and communities in which business of the Company
is conducted. Beyond the strictly legal aspects involved, employees at all times are expected
to act honestly and maintain the highest standards of ethics and business conduct,
consistent with the professional image of the Company.

Trading of Directors

During the year under review no trading in the Company shares were carried out by the
Directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary and their spouses including any minor children.

Pattern of shareholding

The pattern of shareholding as required under Section 227(2)(f) of the Companies Act 2017
and Listing regulations is enclosed.

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

e The financial statements together with the notes drawn up by the management present
fairly the company’s state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flow and changes in
equity.

e Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the company.

e Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of the
financial statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent
judgment.

e The international accounting standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in
the preparation of financial statements and departure there from (if any) is adequately
disclosed.

e Significant deviations from last year in operating results of the Company have been
highlighted and reasons thereof explained above.

e There are statutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges which are
outstanding and have been disclosed in Note — 15 to financial statements.

¢ Information about loans and other debt instruments in which the Company is in default or
likely to default are disclosed in Note — 17 to the financial statements.

The Path Forward

Through the delivery of key development projects in 2021 - 2022 in form of Pace Towers and
significant investment and share in pace Circle, we look forward to onboarding significant
operating cash flows by successfully converting non-income producing assets to cash
flowing operating assets.



While we will continue to focus on improving our capital structure over the coming years, we
will also look to make diligent and sound investment decisions when compelling
opportunities arise.

For and on behalf of Board of directors

06 October 2023

Director Chief Executive Officer
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THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

(Section 227(2)(f)

)

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

[ CUIN (Registration Number)| 0028954 |

2 Name of the Company

FORM 34

[PACE PAKISTAN LIMITED

3. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at

30-06-2023

4. No. of Sll;u'ol‘mldc_ra From To Total Shares Held
1790 1 100 132,387
921 101 500 394 853
3193 501 1,000 2,187,180
1999 1,001 5,000 5,773,994
799 5,001 10,000 6,620,112
302 B 10,001 15.000 3,952,257
263 15,001 20,000 4,866,796
156 20,001 25,000 3,674,413
114 25,001 30,000 3,249,069

69 30,001 35,000 2,301,780
84 35,001 40,000 3,263,930
44 40,001 45,000 1,923,685
110 45 001 50,000 5438261
32 50,001 55,000 1,697,628
38 55,001 60,000 2,230,500
24 60,001 65,000 1,511,848
26 65,001 70,000 1,789,000
25 70,001 75,000 1,835,916

7 75,001 80,000 2,128,500
20 80.001 85,000 1,652,776
13 85,001 90,000 1,156,000
2 90,001 85,000 1,123,669
70 95,001 100,000 6,981,500
10 100,001 105,000 1,023,843
11 105,001 110,000 1,191,500
6 110,001 115,000 673,000
g 115,001 120,000 1,068,000
10 120,001 125,000 1,242,957
10 125,001 130,000 1,283,511
7 130,001 135,000 932,500
6 135,001 140,000 832,000
5 T 140,001 145,000 720,000
20 145,001 150,000 2,989,500
3 150,001 155,000 455,000
1 155,001 160,000 156,000
2 i 160,001 165,000 326,001
1 165,001 170,000 165,500
3 170,001 175,000 523,500
3 175,001 180,000 530,000
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180,001
185,001
190.001
195,001
205,001
210,001
215,001
220,007
225,001
235,001
245,001
250,001
256,001
260,001
265,001
270,001
275,001
280,001
285,001
290,001
295,001
300,007
305,001
320,001
325,001
335,001
345,001
350,001
365,001
370,001
375,001
380,001
395,001
405,001
415,001
420,001
425 001
430,001
435,001
445,001
450,001
460,001
470,001
495 001
525.001
230,001
535,001
545,001
550,001
580,001
595,001
600,001
615,001
645,001
655,001
700,001

185,000
180,000
185,000
200,000
210,000
215,000
220,000
225,000
230,000
240,000
250,000
255,000
260,000
265,000
270,000
275,000
280,000
285,000
290,000
295,000
300,000
305,000
310,000
325,000
330,000
340,000
350,000
355,000
370,000
375,000
380,000
385,000
400,000
410,000
420,000
425,000
430,000
435,000
440,000
450,000
455,000
465,000
475,000
500,000
530,000
535,000
540,000
550,000
555,000
585,000
600,000
605,000
620,000
650,000
660,000
705.000

914 891

1,513,000

1,164,000

3,995,000

1,041,500

215,000

1,306,500

225,000

682,000

238,500

1,744,000

250,500

519,000

1,048,500

267,000

275,000

557 500

846,000

579,500

881,500

3,693,500

305,000

307,500

322,500

327,500

677,500

1,397,500

350,500

735 500

371,500

1,133,711

383,500

3,198,000

408,000

2,087,191

846,100

855,716

432,000

437,583

898,500

463,000

463,838

475,000

2,500,000

525,500

535,000

539,387

550,000

550,001

585,000

2,400,000

605,000

619,500

650,000

659,000

702,500




2
2
1
1
2
1
9
1
1
1
1
7
7
1
1
1
7
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
]
1
1
1
1
7
1
1
1
7

710,001
725,001
730,001
745,001
765,001
810,001
830,007
845,001
875,001
895.001
930,001
965,001
980,001
995,001
1,010,001
1.095,001
1,105,001
1,150,001
1,160,001
1,245,001
1,250,001
1,365,001
1,370,001
1,405,001
1.470,001
1,565,001
1,720,001
1,815,001
1,910,001
2,020,001
2,145,001
2,195,001
2,390,001
2,980,001
3,295,001
3,905,001
4,295,001
4,425 001
4,565,001
7,035,001
18,685,001
21,800,001
27,545,001

715,000
730,000
735,000
750,000
770,000
815,000
835,000
850,000
880,000
900,000
935,000
960,000
985,000
1,000,000
1,015,000
1,100,000
1,110,000
1,155,000
1,165,000
1,260,000
1,255,000
1,370,000
1.375,000
1,410,000
1,475,000
1,670,000
1,725,000
1,820,000
1,815,000
2,025,000
2,150,000
2,200,000
2,395,000
2,985,000
3,300,000
3,910,000
4,300,000
4,430,000
4,570,000
7,040,000
18,690,000
21,805,000
27,550,000

1,427,628

1,456,500

730,500

750,000

1,539,500

814,082

7,496,683

850,000

880,000

900,000

932,000

960,000

984,000

1,000,000

1,013,500

1,100,000

1,110,000

1,155,000

1,162,600

1,250,000

1,254,500

1,370,000

1,371,500

1,405,500

1,474,500

1,565,500

1,721,500

1,817,000

1,913,500

2,023,000

2,150,000

2,200,000

2,390,268

2,982,695

3,300,000

3,910,000

4,300,000

4,426,200

4,569,194

7,036,415

18,688,500

21,803,661

27,546,000

10,450

278,876,604
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Calegories ol -ﬂ!;rill__'lluldurﬁ_ N Shares held Percentage
Directors, CEQ and their Spouse and Minor Children
Aamna Taseer G87 000021
Shahbaz Al Taseo a57 0.00035
I 28,000 (LOT004
Shehrbano Taseer 300 0.00018
Shaver Ahmad 500 (U008
Sikandar Rashid Choudhry 525,500 0.18843
Shetkh Attab Ahmed 00 0.00018
Chief Ixecutive Officer
(587) share of (Aamna Taseer CLQ) =
Directors spouse & minor children = &
Mr. Salmaan Taseer (Lale) 587 0.00021
Exceutive / Executives' spouse - -
Associated Companies, undertaking and related parties
a) brst Capital Securibies Corporation Linvited 7,501,915 268005
b)Y First Capatal Equities Lumated 000,000 272522
¢) Sisley Croup of Company Linuted 27,546,000 G.&7719
NIT and ICP 425,716 1.15265
Banks, DF1s and NBFls 1,250,587 041844
Insurance 375,711 0.13472
Modarabas and Mutual Funds - -
Share halders holding 10%, or more veting intrest = -
General Public
a) Local 188,457,236 67.57732
by Fu TR 9,610,482 RS
bi Forergn Compames/ Crginzations/ Individual / {repatiable | 21,803,061 7.81839
Reter 5.2 (¢) above
Others

al loml Stock Companies
by Others

Y Pension tund Prowident Foid ot

13,087,600
Hol433

4.69297
.2%682

278,876,604

100.00000




KEY INDICATORS

Pace (Pakistan) Limited
KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL INDICATORS

Rupees in thousands

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Operatina result
Net Sales 425,574 737452 440,345 244,124 214,024
Cost of Sales (409,780) (764,122) (346.,475) (177.674) (75,761)
Gross profit/(loss) 15,794 (26,670) 93.870 66,450 138,263
Profit / (loss) from operation 371.850 (411,285) (65.403) (173,884) (70.896)
Profit/ (loss) before tax 239,441 (525.336) (922.,819) (394.828) (43.260)
Profit /(loss)after tax 224135 (537.062) (929.252) (397.879) (46.,322)
Financial Position
Shareholder's equity 2,443,800 1,912,746 986,448 597,481 553,962
Propertv.plant & Equipment 452,471 452,159 468,464 601,264 570,607
Net current assets (2,243.402) (972,419) (1.923,502) (2,434.476) (2,269.322)
Profitability
Gross profit /(loss) % 371 (3.62) 21.32 27.22 28.10
Operatina profit /(loss) % 87.38 (55.77) (14.85) (71.23) 29.61
Profit /(loss) before tax % 56.26 (71.24) (209.57) (161.73) (47.23)
Profit /(loss) after tax % 52.67 (72.83) (211.03) (162.98) (49.23)
Performance
Fixed assets turnover Times 0.94 1.63 0.94 0.41 0.38
Return on equity % 9.61 (24.66) (64.10) (50.24) (8.05)
Return on capital emploved % 14.62 (20.45) (3.25) (22.29) (0.64)
Liauidity
Current Ratio Times 0.49 0.79 0.67 0.61 0.63
Quick Times 0.17 0.37 0.19 0.15 0.15
Valuation
Earnina per share Rs 1.05 1.05 0.80 (1.93) (3.33)
Break up vale per share Rs 7.97 6.86 3.54 214 199
Net Sales, Cost of Sales & Gross Profit (Rs. in 000)
1,500,000
1,000,000
500,000 mSeries2
~ m Series1
2 2021 2023  Series3
(500,000)
(1,000,000)
(1,500,000)

2022

1,256,326
(903,253)

353,073

372,044
(593.371)
(618.439)

(12,449)
568,813
(3.514,749)

28.10
29.61
(47.23)
(49.23)

221
(228.41)
200.94

0.47
0.13

(1.43)
(0.04)

2023

241,809
(118,789)

123,020
(85,153)
(1,674,581)
(1,677.604)

(1,677.513)
549,192
(5.249.870)

50.87
(35.21)
(692.52)
(693.77)

0.44
(198.54)
5.76

0.37
0.06

(6.02)
(0.06)

2.00
1.00

(1.00)
(2.00)
(3.00)
(4.00)
(5.00)
(6.00)
(7.00)

Earning Per Share (Rs.)

1.05 1.05‘&

2017 2018 2019 \ 2020 2021 2022 2023

(1.93)

(6.02)

Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (Rs. in 000)
500,000

(500,000)

(1,000,000)

(1,500,000)

(2,000,000)

299

2017 \ 2018 2019

2020 2022 2023

4,828)
(5253 s93\71)
(922,819) \

&

(1,674,581)
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2,000,000
1,500,000

1,000,000
500,000

(500,000)
(1,000,000)
(1,500,000)
(2,000,000)

Shareholder Equity (Rs. in 000)

2,443,800

1,912,746

986,448
597,481 553,962

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 (1449)

(1.677.513)
{1:677,513)

W Series2

9.00
8.00
7.00
6.00
5.00
4.00
3.00
2.00
1.00

(1.00) -

Breakup Value Per Share (Rs.)

\\wﬂu (0.08)
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0.67

/ 061
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

PACE (PAKISTAN) LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2023

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are seven as per the following:
a. | Male: 05
b. | Female: 02
2. The composition of Board is as follows:
(i) | Independent Directors 03
(ii) | Other Non-Executive Directors 01
(iii) | Executive Directors (*) 03
(iv) | Female Directors 02

Currently, three Directors of the Company devotes their whole or substantially the
(*) | whole time, therefore have categorized as Executive Directors.

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than
seven listed companies, including this company;

4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps
have been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting
policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and
significant policies of the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of
particulars of the significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is
maintained by the company

6. All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters
have been taken by board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the
Act and these Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by
a director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the
requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and
circulating minutes of meeting of board.

8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors
in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

9. The Board has arranged Directors’ Training program for the following:

(Name of Director) Mrs. Aamna Taseer
Mr. Shahbaz Ali Taseer
Mr. Shehryar Ali Taseer
Miss Shehrbano Taseer
Sheikh Aftab Ahmad

(Name of Executive & Designation (if applicable) Shahzad Jawahar, Chief Compliance
Officer




|
10. The board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and |
Head of Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of |
employment and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations. .
|
1. CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board.
2 The board has formed committees comprising of members given below: A
" a | Audit Committee (Name of members and | Shavez Ahmad, (Chairman)
Chairman) Shehrbano Taseer, (Member)
Sikander Rashid Choudry, (Member) |
b. | HR and Remuneration Committee (Name of | Shavez Ahmad, (Chairman) ’
members and Chairman) Aamna Taseer, (Member) |
Shehrbano Taseer, (Member_) i
c. | Nomination Committee (if applicable) (Name | N/A |
’. of members and Chairman) !
d. | Risk Management Committee (if applicable)} | N/A :
(Name of members and Chairman) |
13, The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and 5
L | advised to the committee for compliance. slhww, el '
14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per
following: S =
[
a | Audit Committee _ in=e iy T B S ! =
b | HR and Remuneration Committee 01
¢ | Nomination Committee (if applicable) N/A =
d | Risk Management Committee (if applicable) | N/A
15, The Board has set up an effective internal audit function/ or has outsourced the internal
audit function to who are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose
and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the company; '
[ 16. The statutory auditors of the company have confrmed that they have been given a
satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they
and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants
(IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close |
relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the Chief Executive |
Officer, Chief Financial officer, Head of Internal audit, Company secretary or Director of |
the company |
1. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to
provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other
| regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC
guidelines in this regard. |
!
18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27,32, 33 and 36 of the |
Regulations have been complied with. '

Sikander Rashid Choudry
Chairman
Lahore, 06 October 2023



Junaidy Shoalb Asad I\ Independent member
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= Morison Global
Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF PACE PAKISTAN LIMITED

REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Pace Pakistan
Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2023 in accordance with the requirements of regulation
36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Our tresponsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-
compliance with the tequirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the
Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal contral systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach.
We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all
risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's
corpotate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of
the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party
ransactdons. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the
approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation ef the Audit
Cominittee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2023.

—

Jeiody o Mgy A
Junaidy Shoaib Asad

Chartered Accountants
Lahore.

UDIN: CR2023101960FMeDK70y

Dated: O C Ni
# Ub 0UCT 2023

Suite No. 9-A, 3rd Floor, Imtiaz Plaza, 85-Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam, Lahore.
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i i My Independent member
Junaidy Shoaib Asad \.) ipeGpetant pantn

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Pace Pakistan Limited
Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of Pace Pakistan Limited (the
Company), which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 2023, and the
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
unconsolidated statement of changes in equity, the unconsolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the unconsclidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information, (here-in-after referred to as “the unconsolidated financial
statements”) and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of
our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
unconsohidated statement of financial position, unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the unconsohdated statement of changes in equity and the unconsolidated
statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the
Company's affairs as at June 30, 2023 and of the loss and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Awditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the unconsolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Aconntants as adopted by the Insttute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Matetial Uncertainty relating to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 2 to the unconsolidated financial statements, which indicates that the Company
has accumulated losses amounting Rs 4,786.581 million as at June 30, 2023 and, as of that date, the Company’s
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs. 5,249.87 million. As stated in Note 2, these events or
conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 2, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may
cast significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified
in respect of this matter.

-

-

Suite No. 9-A, 3rd Floor, Imtiaz Plaza, 85-Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam, Lahore.
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Junaidy Shoaib Asad

Chartered Accountants

Key Audit Matters

"

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our

audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the

context of our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole, and in

forming our opinion

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter desctibed in
the Material Uncertainty Retated to Going Concern Section, we have determined the matters described below to be
the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Following are the Key audit matrers:

Refer to notes 6.15 and 30 to the unconsolidated
financial statements.

The Company recognized revenue of Rs. 241.809
million during the year ended June 30, 2023, being
both at a point in time and over the time depending
on the nature of contracts with customer

We identified recognition of revenue as a key audit
matter because it involves the use of significant
judgement to evaluate whether the contracts has

commercial substance ot not.

Further 1t involves judgement in evaluating whether
collectability of an amount of consideration is
probable.

Further there is an inherent nsk of fraud in revenue
recognition due to unpredictable way in which
management override of controls could occur making
it a significant risk

Sr. Key Aundit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
No.
1 | Revenue Qur precedures included, but were not limited

to:

e Obraining an understanding of the process
relating to revenue recognition and testing the
design, implementation and operatng
effectiveness of relevant key internal controls;

® assessing the approprateness of the
Company’s accounting policies for revenue
recognition and compliance of those policies
with applicable accounting standards; and

e performing test of derails procedures over
revenue recorded and cost incurred on project
during the year;

e cvaluating the adequacy of financial
disclosures, mcluding disclosures of key
assumptions and judgements;

e proposing adjustment for revenue recorded,
wherte collectability of consideration is less

then probable;

e scanning for any manual journal entres
relating to revenue recorded dunng and near
the year end which were considered to be
material or met other specific risk based
criteria for inspecting underlying
documentation

Valuation of investment property
Refer to notes 6.4 and 20 to the unconsolidated
financial statements.

The investment property of the company comprise
freehold land and building on freehold land

As at 30 June 2023, the carrying value of investment
properties was at Rs 1,898.694 million

Qur procedures included, but were not limited
to;

¢ assessing the design and implementation of the
controls over the wvaluation of investment
property and measurement of rght of use asset
classified in investment property;

¢ Obtaining an understanding of evaluation
process and assumption which the valuer has

M I
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Chartered Accountants
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The company has adopted the fair value model for
valuation of its investment properties. Under this said

adopted to assess if they are consistent with the
industry norms, market conditon and general
prevailing economic circumstances

model it is required to measure all investment : ; ;
e Confirming the valuation approach was in

accordance with the International Financial
teporting standards and suitable for use in
determining the fair value of properties
classified as Investment property;

properties at fair value at each reporting date.
Changes in  fair recognized in
unconsolidated statement of profit and loss

value are

We considered this as key audit matter due to the
significant carrying value of investment propetties and | ®
significant involved 1n
determining the fair value

recalculating the fair value gain/loss on

judgements estumations investment property during the year;

® Assessing the wvaluer’s

capabilities

competence and

¢ Evaluating the adequacy of disclosures in the
financial statements, including the disclosures
in the financial statements, including
disclosures of key assumptions and judgements.

Information Other than unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Theteon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report for the year ended June 30, 2023, but does not include the consolidated and
unconsolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do riot

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

1n connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
unconsolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated
Financial Statements

Management is tesponsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial
statemnents in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
tequirements of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as managervent detetmines
is necessary to enable the preparation of unconsolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparng the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to lxqu.idate the

Compeny or o cease opetations, ot has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Boatd of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Orur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whethet due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audir conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered matedal if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could teasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these unconsolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obrtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control

e  Obmin an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropdate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

* [Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the unconsolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as 4 going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial statements represent the
undetlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant andit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control thar we
identify during our audit,

We also provide the board of directots with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all telationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period and ate therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rate circumstances, we determine that a matter
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should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act,
2017(XIX of 2017);

b) rhe unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit ot loss and
unconsolidated other comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and
the unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up
in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books
of account and returns;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Usht Ordinance, 1980QVIIT of 1980).

Other Matter

The unconsolidated financial statements of Pace Pakistan Limited for the year ended June 30, 2022, were audited
by another auditor whose repott dated October 07, 2022 expressed an unmodified opinion with matetial
uncertainty relating to going concern.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report 15 Shoaib Ahmad Wascem
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Lahore
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Unconsolidaied Siatenent of Financizl Positios

Ay al 30ra Jupe 2025

EUrTY AND LIARILITIES

Share cepitai ond reserves

Authorised capital

issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
Share premium

Revaluaticn Surplus

Accumulated loss

Non-currext iiabilities

long term {inances - sccured

Redeemeble capital - secured (non-participatory)
Leese liability

Foreign currency convertibie bonds - unsecured
Deferred liabilities

Current lichilities

Contract liability

Current maturity of long term liabtiities
Creditors, accrued and other liabilitics
Accrued {inance cost

Contingencies and commitments

Nore

e |

13
14
15
16

17

1’[\23 '.‘!'\‘J 2
— {Rupees in thousand) —
S.600.060 6,000,000
2,788,766 2,788,766
273,265 273265
47,037 47,037
(4.786,581) {3,121,517)
(1,677,513) (12,449)
149,662 151,176
49,157 45,424
198,319 197,600
247,894 218,730
5,933,174 4,525,630
820,987 719,843
1,348,745 1,203,734
8,350,800 6,667,537
6,872,106 6,853,088

The annexed notes from 1 lo 46 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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ASSETS
Non-current assets

Freperty, plant and eguipment
Intangible assets

Investment property

Lease Receivable

Contract Asset

Long term investments

Leng term advances and deposits
Deferred taxation %

Current assets

Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Advances, deposits, prepayments and
other receivables

Lease Receivable

Income tax refundable - net

Cash and bank balanccs

By
o Co

b ta
L

Nore

[

ko ba
N Gy B
(I

t
P g

25
26

27
21
28
29

Directey

Chief Fim

¥

icer

2023

022

— (Rupees in theousand) —

540,192 568.813
2,493 2,995
1,898,694 1,802,239
109,040 104,096
356,817 356,817
850,321 850,321
13,619 13,619
3,771,176 3,699.900
2,441,656 2,312,160
518,936 703,149
85,709 90,468
5,702 5,069
29,291 19,909
19,636 22,433
3,100,930 3,153,188
6,872,106 6,853,088




’ase (Pakistan) Limited
Unconsolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Revenue
Cost of Revenue
Gross Profit

Administrative and selling expenses
Other income

Other expenses

Profit/ (Loss) from operations

Finance cost

Exchange loss on foreign currency convertible bonds
Gain from change in fair value of investment property
Loss before Taxation

Taxation

Loss after Taxation

(Loss) / earning per share - basic and diluted

Note
30
37

32
33

34
112

35

36

2023

2022

--- (Rupees in thousand) ---

241,809 1,256,326
(118,789) (903,253)
123,020 353,073
(328,804) (287,494)
120,632 306,465
(85,153) 372,044
(182,541) (156,128)
(1,421,449) (818,893)
14,562 9,606
(1,674,581) (593,371)
(3,023) (25,068)
(1,677,604) (618,439)
(6.02) (2.22)

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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' Pace (Pakistan) Limited
Unconsolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2023

2023 2022
Note --- (Rupees in thousand) ---

Loss for the year (1,677,604) (618,439)
Other comprehensive income for the year
Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss:

Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability 12 6,270 4,991

Revaluation Surplus on transfer - 47,037
Total comprehensive loss for the year (1,671,334) (566,411)

The annexed notes from I to 46 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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Pace (Pakistan) Limited

Unconsolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Balance as at 30 June 2021
Total comprehensive loss for the Yyear ended 30 June 2021

Loss after taxation
Other comprehensive income

Balance as at 30 June 2022
Total comprehensive loss Jor the year ended 30 June 2022
Loss after taxation

Other comprehensive income

Balance as at 30 June 2023

Capital reserve

Revenue reserve

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 Jorm an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

T
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Chief Executive Officer

Issued, subscribed Share . Accumulated
k z . Revaluation Surplus Total
and paid-up capital premium loss
- (Rupees in thousand) —
2,788,766 273,265 - (2,508,069) 553,962
- - - (618,439) (618,439)
- - 47,037 4,991 52,028
- - 47,037 (613,448) (566,411)
2,788,766 273,265 47,037 (3,121,517) (12,449)
- - - (1,671,334) (1,671,334)
- - - 6,270 6,270
- - - (1,665,064) (1,665,064)
2,788,766 273,265 47,037 (4,786,581) (1,677,513)
Dire*tor Chief Financial Officer




"are (Pakistan) Limited
Unconsolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Note
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated/ (used in) operations 37
Gratuity paid
Taxes paid

Net cash generated/ (used in) from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Addition in Capital work in progress

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of investment property

Income on bank deposits received 33
Net cash used in from investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities

Long term loan paid during the year
Payments of lease liability
Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents - at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents - at end of the year 38

2023 2022
--- (Rupees in thousand) ---
115,514 92,958
(700) -
(12,405) (13,034)
102,409 79,924
- (9,075)
- (52,463)
- 13,670
(80,894) -
120 264
(80,774) (47,604)
(10,573) (5,333)
(13,860) (24,796)
(24,433) (30,129)
(2,797) 2,190
22,433 20,243
19,636 22,433

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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Pace (Pakistan) Limited
Notes fo the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

The Company and its operations

1.1 Pace (Pakistan) Limited (the Company') is a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan under the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017) and is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Company is
engaged to build, acquire, manage and sell condominiums, departmental stores, shopping plazas, super markets, utility
stores, housing societies, plot and other properties and to carry out commercial, industrial and other related activities in
and out of Pakistan, The registered office of the Company is situated at First Capital House, 96-B/1, Lower Ground Floor,
M.M. Alam Road, Gulberg-III, Lahore. Furthermore, the Company is managing the following plazas:

Sr. No. Business Unit Geographical Location
1 Gulberg Plaza 124/E-1 Main Boulevard Gulberg I1I, Lahore
2 Model Town Plaza 38, 38/A, 39 & 40, Block P, Model Town Link Road, Lahore
3 Fortress Plaza Bridge Point Plaza, Fortress Stadium, Lahore Cantt,
Bl MM Alam Road Plaza 96-B-1, M.M Alam Road, Gulberg 111, Lahore
5 Gujranwala Plaza Mouza Dhola Zarri, Main GT Road Gujranwala
6 Gujrat Plaza Mouza Ado-Wal, G.T Road, Tehsil & District, Gujrat
7 Pace Tower 27-H College Road Gulberg IT Lahore

Going Concern Assumption

The Company has incurred loss before tax of Rs. 1674.58 million (2022: Rs. -593.37 million). Increase/ Decrease in loss is mainly
driven by exchange loss of Rs. 1421.45 million in 2023 versus loss of Rs, 818.89 million in 2022 on the foreign currency
convertible bonds issued by the Company.

At the reporting date, current liabilities of the Company have exceeded its current assets by Rs. 5,249.87 million (2022: Rs.
3,514.75 million), and accumulated losses of the Company stand at Rs. 4,786.58 million (2022: Rs. 3,121.52 million). Due to
liquidity issues the Company has not been able to meet various obligations towards its lenders, including repayment of principal
and mark-up thereon in respect of its borrowings. The construction activity on the project has also been slow due to unavailability
of"enough financial resources causing a delay in the completion of Pace Tower, total estimated cost of completion of Pace Tower is
Rs. 272 million. These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubts on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and, therefore, it may be unable to realize it assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

The management has prepared an assessment which covers at least twelve months from the reporting date and believes that the
following measures, if implemented effectively, will generate sufficient financial resources for the continuing operations:

Construction of Pace Tower has also been started and management is confident that it will complete Pace Tower Project by the end
of 2024 and is actively engaged to find buyers for the sale of remaining floors/ apartments in Pace Tower. Management is also
taking necessary steps for the sale of its inventory in Pace Circle.

Further, company is about to start sale of its Shadman project through zameen.com, one of the leading real estate sale agency of
Pakistan. In addition, company has saleable inventory in the form of Islamabad plots, the palm and various shops in pace shopping
malls. The management is expected to generate Rs. 3,322/~ million over the period of three years from sale of these inventories.
The proceeds from these sales will help to improve the operating cash flows of the Company and to settle its obligations.

Furthermore, the Chief Executive, Mrs. Aamna Taseer and Directors, Mr, Shahbaz Ali Taseer and Mr. Shehryar Ali Taseer have
Jointly provided a letter of support dated 8 September 2023 to the Company wherein they have committed to support-the Company
to continue as a going concern.

In addition, the management of the company has changed its shopping mall structure to shared office structure. This results in high
inflows in form of rentals.

Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and do not include any adjustments relating
to the realization of assets and liquidation/ settlement of any liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to
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Pace (Pakistan) Limited
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

3

continue as a going concern.

Basis of preparation

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Separate financial statements

These unconsolidated financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company in which investments in
subsidiaries and associates are accounted for on the basis of direct equity interest rather than on the basis of reported
results and net assets of the investees. Consolidated financial statements of the Company are prepared separately.

The Company has following investments:

; Country of
bsidi
Subsidiurics incorporation  Shareholding
Pace Gujrat (Private) Limited Pakistan 100%
Pace Super Mall (Private) Limited Pakistan 56.79%
Pace Woodland (Private) Limited Pakistan 52%

The principal activity of all the subsidiaries is to acquire by purchase or otherwise land and plots and to sell or construct,
lease, hire and manage buildings, shopping malls, super markets, utility stores, plazas, shopping arcades etc.

; Country of
fe
dssoctate incorporation  Shareholding
Pace Barka Properties Limited Pakistan 24.86%

The principal activity of the Company is to acquire, construct, develop, sell rent out shopping malls, apartments, villas,
commercial buildings, etc. and to carry on business of hospitality.
Statement of compliance
These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board

(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the provisions of and
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed,
Basis of measurement
These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the
following:

- Investment property which is measured at fair value; and

- Retirement benefits at present value.
Functional and presentation currency

These unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees ("Rs.") which is the Company's functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated,

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved International Financial Reporting Standards that are
not yet effective

4.1

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that may be relevant to the Company and
adopted in the current year

The Company has adopted the following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations of IFRSs
which became effective during the current year.

New or Revised Standard or Interpretation

Amendments to accounting and reporting standards and interpretations which are effective during the year ended June 30,
2023

There are certain new standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards which are mandatory
for the Company’s accounting periods beginning on or after J uly 1, 2023 but are considered not to be relevant or have any
significant effect on the Company’s financial reporting.
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Pace (Pakistan) Limited
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

4.2 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that may be relevant but not yet effective
and not early adopted by the Company

The following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations would be effective from the dates

mentioned below against the respective standard or interpretation.
Effective Date

Standard or Interpretation (Annual periods beginning
on or after)

IAS 1 - Non-current Liabilities with Covenants January 1, 2024

IFRS 16 - Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback January 1, 2024

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice January 1, 2024

Statement 2)

IAS 7 and IFRS 7 - Supplier Finance Arrangements January 1, 2024

The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of these Standards, amendments and interpretations to the
published standards on the financial statements of the Company.

4.3 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet notified by the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

Following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) which are yet to be

notified by the SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.
Effective Date

(Annual periods beginning
on or after)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 1, 2023

5  Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed (o be reasonable under circumstances, and the results of which form the basis for making judgment about carrying
value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in
the period in which estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period; or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's unconsolidated financial statements or where
Judgment was exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

5.1 Estimates
Note

- Provision for taxation 6.1
- Property, plant and equipment 6.2
- Intangibles 6.3
- Investment property valuation 6.4
- Stock-in-trade 6.6
- Employee benefits 6.13
- Measurement of ECL allowance for trade debts and other receivables (financial assets) 6.16.5
- Impairment on non-financial assets 6.17
- Contingent liabilities 6.18

52 Judgements
- Costs to complete the projects 6.6
- Satisfaction of performance obligations 6.13

6  Significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements are set out below.

~
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Pace (Pakistan) Limited

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

6.1

6.2

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in statement of profit or loss except to
the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity.

Current

Provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing law for
taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date and
after taking into account tax credits, rebates and exemptions, if any. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments,
where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year
for such years,

Deferred
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized for:

E temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

- temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to the extent
that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill,

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Future taxable profits
are determined based on the reversal of relevant taxable temporary - differences. If the amount of taxable temporary
differences is insufficient to recognize a deferred tax asset in full, then future taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of
existing temporary differences, are considered. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized; such reductions are reversed when the
probability of future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company
expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities, For this purpose, the
carrying amount of investment property measured at fair value is presumed to be recovered through sale, and the
Company has not rebutted this presumption,

Property, plant and equipment

Owned

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment loss except
for freehold land which is stated at cost less any identified impairment losses. Cost comprises purchase price, including
import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, and includes other costs
directly attributable to the acquisition or construction.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. Major repairs and improvements are capitalized. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged
to statement of profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is recognized as an income or expense.

Depreciation on owned assets is charged to the statement of profit or loss on the reducing balance method except for
building on leaschold land which is being depreciated using straight line method, so as to write off the cost of an asset
over its estimated useful life at the annual rates given in note 18.1.
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Pace (Pakistan) Limited

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

6.3

Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the date on which an asset is available for use
is intended by the management and ceased when asset is derecognized.

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that property, plant and equipment may be
impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in
excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written
down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Where an impairment loss is
recognized, the depreciation charge is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over its
estimated useful life,

A revaluation surplus is recorded in OCI and credited to the asset revaluation surplus in equity. However, to the extent
that it reverses a revaluation deficit of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, the increase is recognised in
profit and loss, A revaluation deficit is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that it offsets an
existing surplus on the same asset recognised in the asset revaluation surplus. The revaluation surplus included in equity
in respect of an item of property, plant and equipments is transfered directly to retained earning when the asset is
derecognised. '

The Company reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment on regular basis. Any change in estimates in
future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of property, plant and equipment with a
corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets include the amount of lease liabilities
recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the rates specified in note 18.3 to the
financial statements.

Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, less any identified impairment loss. Capital work in progress represents
expenditure on property, plant and equipment in the course of construction and installation. Transfers are made to relevant
category of property, plant and equipment as and when assets are available for intended use.

Intangible assets

Computer Software

Expenditure incurred to acquire computer software is capitalized as an intangible asset and stated at cost less accumulated
amortization (for finite useful life of intangible asset) and any identified impairment loss. Amortization is charged to
statement of profit or loss on reducing balance method at an annual rate of 10% except optical fiber, as lo write off the
cosl over its estimated useful life. :

Optical Fiber

Expenditure incurred to acquire the rights to use optical fiber are capitalized as intangible assets and stated at cost less
accumulated amortization and any identified impairment loss. Amortization is charged to statement of profit or loss on
straight line basis method at an annual rate.of 5%, as to write off the cost over its estimated useful life.

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that intangible asset may be impaired. If such
indication exists, the carrying amount of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their
recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their
recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the
amortization charge is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over its estimated
useful life,

The Company reviews the rate of amortization and value of intangible assets for possible impairment, on an annual basis.
Any change in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of intangible assets with a corresponding
effect on the amortization charge and impairment.
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Pace (Pakistan) Limited

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

6.4

6.5
6.5.1

6.5.2

6.6

6.7

Investment property

Investment property is a property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for sale
in ordinary course of business, use in production or supply of goods or services as for administrative purpose. Investment
property comprises frechold land and buildings on freehold land. Investment property is carried at fair value. Changes in
fair value are recognized in statement of profit or loss.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property because its use has been changed, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is recognized in equity as a
revaluation reserve for investment property. However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is
recognized in statement of profit or loss. Upon the disposal of such investment property, any surplus previously recorded
in equity is transferred to retained earnings, the transfer is not made through the statement of profit or loss.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied or stock-in-trade, it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment or
stock-in-trade and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes for subsequent
recording.

Investments

Investment in equity instruments of subsidiary companies

Investment in subsidiary companies is measured at cost in the Company's separate financial statements, as per the
requirements of IAS-27 "Separate Financial Statements". However, at subsequent reporting dates, the Company reviews
the carrying amount of the investment and its recoverability to determine whether there is an indication that such
investment has suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists the carrying amount of the investment is adjusted
to the extent of impairment loss. Impairment losses are recognized as an expense. Where impairment losses subsequently
reverse, the carrying amounts of the investments are increased to the revised recoverable amounts but limited to the extent
of initial cost of investments. A reversal of impairment loss is recognized in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

Investments in equity instruments of associated companies

Associates are all entities over which the Company has significant influence but no control. Investments in associates are
measured at cost less any identified impairment loss if any in the Company's separate financial statements, However, at
subsequent. reporting dates, the Company reviews the carrying amount of the investment and its recoverability to
determine whether there is an indication that such investment has suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists the carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to the extent of impairment loss. Impairment losses are recognized
as an expense.

Stock-in-trade

Land, condominiums, shops / counters and villas available for future sale are classified as stock-in-trade. These are carried
at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Work-in-process comprises of condominiums, shops / counters and villas in
the process of construction / development. Cost in relation to work-in-process comprises of proportionate cost of land,
cost of direct materials, labor and appropriate overheads. Cost in relation to shops transferred from investment property is
the fair value of the shops on the date of transfer and any subsequent expenditures incurred thereon.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs necessary to be
incurred in order to make the sale.

The Company estimates the cost to complete the projects in order to determine the cost attributable to revenue being
recognized. These estimates include the cost of providing infrastructure activities, potential claims by sub contractors and
the cost of meeting the contractual obligation to the customers. The company engages an expert to assist in determining
the cost of completion.

The Company reviews the carrying amount of stock-in-trade on a regular basis. Carrying amount of stock-in-trade is
adjusted where the net realizable value is below the cost. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Trade debts

Trade debts and other receivables are classified at amortized cost and are measured at invoice value less impairment
allowance, if any. Trade debts where the ownership of the work in progress is transferred by the Company to the buyer as
the construction progresses is recognized using the percentage of completion method, An impairment allowance i.e.
expected credit loss is calculated based on actual credit loss experience over the past years and loss given default. The
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impairment allowance is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. These assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery.

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at amortised cost. For the purpose of cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, call deposits receipts, other short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value, and short term finance.
Borrowings
Borrowings are classified as 'financial liabilities at amortized cost'. On initial recognition, these are measured at cost,
being fair value at the date the liability is incurred, less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
these are measured at amortized cost with any difference between cost and value at maturity recogrized in statement of
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least twelve months after the statement of financial position date.
Foreign currency transactions and translation
Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the
statement of profit or loss.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are retranslated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured based
on historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated again at the reporting date.
Leases
At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company uses
the definition of a lease in IFRS 16.
As a lessee
Al commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative stand-alone prices. However, for the
leases of property the Company has elected not to separate non-lease components and account for the lease and non-lease
components as a single lease component.
The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset
is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives
received.
The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the end
of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Company by the end of the lease term
or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company will exercise a purchase option. In that case the right-of-use
asset will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis as those of
property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and
adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s
incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.
The Company determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from various external financing
sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and type of the asset leased.
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

- fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

- variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the

commencement date;
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- amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

- the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments
in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and
penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rafe, if there is a change in the Company’s estimate
of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the Company changes its assessment of whether
it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company presents right-of-use assets in ‘property, plant and equipment and investment properties’ based on their use
and lease liabilities as separate line item in the statement of financial position.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low-value assets and short-
term leases. The Company recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

As a lessor
At inception or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates the consideration in
the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative standalone prices.

When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating
lease.

To classify each lease, the Company makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers substantially all of the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not,
then it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the Company considers certain indicators such as whether the
lease is for the major part of the economic life of the asset. :

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately. It
assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with
reference fo the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short-term lease to which the Company applies the exemption
described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

The Company applies the derecognition and impairment requirements in IFRS 9 to the net investment in the lease, The
Company further regularly reviews estimated unguaranteed residual values used in calculating the gross investment in the
lease.

The Company recognizes lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term as part of ‘other revenue’.

Employee benefits

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity plan covering all of its eligible employees who have completed the minimum
qualifying period. The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed by qualified actuary by using the projected
unit credit method and charge for the year other than on account of experience adjustment is included in statement of
profit or loss.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets
(excluding interest) and the effect of asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately in other
comprehensive income. The Company determines the net interest expense / (income) on the net defined liability / (asset)
for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual
period to the then - net defined benefit liability / (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit
paymentis, Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in statement of profit or

loss,

The Company provides for accumulating compensated absences when the employees render service that increase the
enfillement to future compensated absences. Under the rules all employees are entitled to 20 days leave per year

i



Pace (Pakistan) Limited
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

6.14

6.15
6.15.1

respectively. Unutilised leaves can be accumulated upto unlimited amount, Unutilised leaves can be used at any time by
all employees, subject to the Company's approval.

Provisions are made annually to cover the obligation for accumulating compensated absences based on actuarial valuation
and are charged to statement of profit or loss,

Creditors, accruals and other liabilities

Creditors, accruals and other liabilities are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in future
for goods and services received whether or not billed to the Company. Exchange gains and losses arising on translation in
respect of liabilities in foreign currency are added to the carrying amount of the respective liabilities,

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is

probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best

estimate,

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company recognizes revenue when it transfers control over a good or service to a customer based on a five step
model as set out in IFRS 15,

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties
that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met.

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with
a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer,

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration the Company expects
to be entitled to in exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts
collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has
more than one performance obligation, the Company allocates the transaction price to each performance
obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled
to in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognize revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognizes revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met;

- the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company’s performance as
the Company performs; or

B the Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

- the Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and the Company
has an enforceable right to payment for performance obligation completed to date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognized at the point in time at
which the performance obligation is satisfied.
When the Company satisfies a performance obligation by delivering the promised goods or services it creates a contract
asset based on the amount of consideration earned by the performance. Where the amount of consideration received from
a customer exceeds the amount of revenue recognized this gives rise to a contract liability.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined
terms of payment and excluding taxes and duty. The Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria
lo determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The Company has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its
revenue arrangements except for service income carned on security, janitorial maintenance, administration and other
utilities,

Development services - sale of completed units

Revenue from rendering of development management services is recognized when the outcome of the transaction can be
estimated reliably, by reference to the stage of completion of the development obligation at the reporting date. Where the
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outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognized only to the extent that the expenses incurred are eligible to be
recovered.

The Company has elected to apply the input method. The Company considers that the use of input method, which requires
revenue recognition on the basis of the Company’s efforts to the satisfaction of the performance obligation, provides the
best reference to revenue actually earned.

Sale of propert

Revenue from sale of land, condominiums, shops / counters and villas is recognized at point in time- when the control has
been transferred to the customer. The control is usually transferred when possession is handed over to the customer.

Display of advertisements

Advertisement income is received by the Company against available space in company's property provided to the
customer for advertisement purpose. Income from display of advertisements is recognized over time as the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company as the Company performs.

Service charges
Service charges are recognized in the accounting period in which services are rendered. Service income in respect of
security, janitorial maintenance, administration and other utilities is presented on net basis.

Other revenue

Rental income from lease of investment property

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is charged based on area lease out and recognized,
net of discount, in accordance with the terms of lease contracts over the lease term on a straight-line basis, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.

Financial instruments

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognized when they are originated. All other financial assets
and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the coniractual provisions of the
instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial liability is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL'), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially measured
at the transaction price.

Classification and subsequent measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortized cost; fair value through other
comprehensive income ('FVOCI') — debt investment; FVOCI - equity investment; or FVTPL,

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its business model
for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first
reporting period following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding,

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding,

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCL. This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.
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All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL.
This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component that is initially measured at the

transaction price) is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition,

The following accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets at amortized cost.

Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are
recognized in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortized cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The amortized cost is
reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in profit
or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.

Debt investments at FYOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using the effective interest method,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognized in OCL. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Debt investments at FYOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using the effective interest method,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognized in OCIL. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in profit or loss unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment, Other net gains and losses are recognized in
OCI and are never reclassified to statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its statement of financial position, but

retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred assets
are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.
The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified
liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair
value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the consideration
paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in the statement of profit or loss,
Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position
when, and only when, the company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to
settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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The Company recognizes loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses ("ECLs") in respect of financial assets measured at
amortized cost,

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal fo lifetime ECLs, except for bank balance for which credit
risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, which are measured at 12-month ECLs,

Loss allowances for trade debts are always measured at an amount equal fo lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when
estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's
historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than past due for a
reasonable period of time. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the
12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months). The
maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is
exposed to credit risk.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets,

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of
recovering of a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company individually makes an assessment with
respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The
Company expects no significant recovery from the amount written off, However, financial assets that are written off could
still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there
is any objective evidence that an asset or group of assets may be impaired. If any such evidence exists, the asset's or group
of assets' recoverable amount is estimated, An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of value in use and fair value less cost to sell.
Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is disclosed when:
- There is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
oceurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company; or
- There is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources

embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot
be measured with sufficient reliability.

The Company reviews the status of all pending litigations and claims against the Company. Based on its judgment and the
advice of the legal advisors for the estimated financial outcome, appropriate disclosure or provision is made. The actual
outcome of these litigations and claims can have an effect on the carrying amounts of the liabilities recognized at the
statement of financial position date.

Dividend

Dividend to ordinary shareholders is recognized as a deduction from accumulated profit in statement of changes in equity
and as a liability in the Company’s financial statements in the year in which it is declared by the Company’s shareholders.
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Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting basic EPS with weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued
on conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares and post-tax effect of changes in profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company that would result from conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares.

2023 2022 2023 2022
--- (Rupees in thousand) --- --= (Number of Shares) ---
Share capital and reserves
7.1 Authorised capital
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 6,000,000 6,000,000 600,000,000 600,000,000
72 Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
fully paid in cash 2,017,045 2,017,045 201,704,516 201,704,516
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
issued as bonus shares 771,721 771,721 77,172,088 77,172,088
2,788,766 2,788,766 278,876,604 278,876,604
7.3 Ordinary shares of the Company held by associated undertakings are as follows:
2023 2022
Basis of Relationship -— (Number of Shares) ---
First Capital Securities Corporation
Limited Common Directorship 7,504,915 7,504,915
First Capital Equities Limited Common Directorship 7,600,000 7,600,000
15,104,915 15,104,915
7.4 There has been no movement in ordinary share capital issued, subscribed and paid-up during the year ended 30 June
2023.
2023 2022
--- (Rupees in thousand) ---
7.5 Share premium
Share premium reserve 273,265 273,265
This reserve can only be utilized by the Company for the purpose specified in Section 81 (2) of the Companies Act, 2017,
2023 2022
Note --- (Rupees in thousand) ---
8 Long term finances - secured
Pak Iran Joint Investment Company 8.1 66,860 66,860
Less: Current maturity presented under current liabilities (66,860) (66,860)

Non Current portion
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Palk Iran Joint Investment Company

On 28 December 2016, Pak Iran Joint Investment Company ('PAIR') and the Company entered into Debt Asset
Swap / Liabilities Settlement Agreement ('SA') for settlement of entire principal along with accrued mark-up
aggregating to Rs. 172.31 million. The settlement was partly made against property situated at mezzanine floor
of Pace Tower measuring 5,700 square feet along with car parking area rights for 7 cars in basement No. 2
amounting to Rs. 105.45 million. In accordance with the SA, PAIR purchased the aforementioned properties
from the Company. Pursuant to the SA, on 28 December 2016, the Company and PAIR executed sale deed and
possession of the property was handed over to PAIR. The Company and PAIR also agreed that PAIR will
continue to hold its charge over Pace M.M Alam up till repayment of the balance ouistanding amount.

Terms of repayment

In accordance with the settlement agreement, the remaining outstanding mark-up of Rs. 66.86 million has been
rescheduled and is payable over a period of 7 years with no mark-up starting from 28 December 2016 after
expiry of moratorium period of 3 years, in 16 quarterly instalments. Amortized cost had been determined using
effective interest rate of 6% per annum. Movement is as follows:

2023 2022
Note -— (Rupees in thousand) ---
As at beginning of the year 66,860 66,860
Adjustment on account of default 8121 - -
As at end of the year 66,860 66,860
Security

The restructured amount is secured by mortgage amounting to the sum of Rs. 142.86 million on the property
being piece and parcel of land located at Plot no. 96/B-1, Gulberg III, Lahore measuring 4 kanals and 112
square feet along with structures, superstructures and appurtenances including shops / counters having area
measuring 20,433 square feet. The charge ranks parri passu with that of National Bank of Pakistan to the extent
ol Rs. 66.67 million,

Default

The moratorium period as per the rescheduling agreement ended on 31 December 2019 and the first quarterly
instalment was due on 01 January 2020. Company made a default in repayment of the instalment and no
repayment was made till 30 June 2022, Pace, through its letter dated 17 July 2020, requested PAIR to defer the
repayment plan for 24 months. However, no response from PAIR is received yet. Accordingly, we have
classified the total balance outstanding as current liability as per the requirements of IAS 1 "Presentation of
Financial Statement",

Syndicate term finance facility
In the preceding years, the Company settled the principal and accrued mark up of the below mentioned facilities

with properties at Pace Tower:

National Bank of Pakistan

On 04 December 2015 National Bank of Pakistan (‘'NBP') and the Company entered into the Debt Asset Swap /
Liabilities Settlement Agreement ('SA") for full and final settlement of NBP's portion of Syndicate Term
Finance Facility (‘'STFF') and Term finance along with their accrued mark-up aggregating to Rs. 398.71 million
against property situated at upper ground floor, mezzanine floor and basement of Pace Tower measuring 18,525
square feet. According to clause F of the SA, NBP purchased the aforementioned properties of Rs. 332.11
million and waived accrued mark-up of Rs. 66.60 million. Pursuant to the SA, on 30 December 2015 the
Company and NBP executed sale deed, wherein the area was enhanced to 20,800 square feet against relaxation
of certain condition under SA and possession of the property was handed over to NBP. NBP has released its
complete charge over Pace Tower by issuing No Objection Certificate (NOC) but due to joint charge with HBL
its charge will stand valid to the extent of 14th floor as HBL still has its charge over the same floor. It will also
take over charge being vacated by PAIR Investment Company Limited as a result of seftlements as described in
note §.1.2.

i
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8.2.2  Habib Bank Limited

On 16 December 2015 Habib Bank Limited (‘HBL') and the Company entered into Debt Asset Swap /
Liabilities Settlement Agreement ('SA") for settlement of HBL's portion of Syndicated Term Finance Facility
('STFF') along with the accrued mark-up aggregating to Rs. 178.81 million against property situated at ground
floor of Pace Tower and third floor of Pace Model Town (extension) measuring 4,238 square feet and 431
square feet respectively. In accordance with the SA, HBL purchased the aforementioned properties from the
Company for a consideration of Rs. 106.89 million and waived accrued mark-up of Rs.71.91 million. Pursuant
to the SA, on 30 December 2015, the Company and HBL executed sale deed and possession of the properties
was handed over to HBL. Initially the Company and HBL agreed that HBL will hold its charge over 21 floors
i.e. from 1st to 21st floors in Pace Tower, However subsequently HBL has released its charge over pace tower
except 14th floor and the same floor will be discharged when the finishing work in Pace Tower is complete.

8.2.3  National Bank of Pakistan - term finance

During the year ended 30 June 2016, NBP and the Company settled the entire principal and accrued mark-up
together with its portion of Syndicated Term Finance Facility against property situated at Pace Tower.

2023 2022
Note - (Rupees in thousand) ---
Redeemable capital - secured (non-participatory)
Term finance certificates 9.1 815,691 935,571
Settlement during the year 93&93 (10,573) (119,880)
(805,118) 815,691
Less: Current maturity presented under current liabilities 805,118 (815,691)
Non Current portion = 2
.1 Terms finance certificate

This represents term finance certificates (TFC's) listed on Lahore Stock Exchange before integration of Pakistan
Stock Exchange issued for a period of 5 years. On 27 September 2010, the Company completed the
restructuring of its term finance certiticates. Restructuring was duly approved by majority of TFC holders
holding certificates in aggregate of 51.73 %, through extraordinary resolution passed in writing. Consequent to
the approval of TFC holders, addendum to the trust deed was executed between the Company and trustee 'IGI
Investment Bank Limited' (now 'IGI Hoidings Limited') under which the Company was allowed one and & half
year grace period along with an extension of four years in the tenure of TFC issue and consequently, the
remaining tenure of TFC shall be six and a half years effective from 15 August 2010. The TFC's carry a markup
of 6 months KIBOR plus 2% (2021: 6 months KIBOR plus 2%) and is payable semi-annually in arrears. The
Company could not repay on a timely basis, the instalments due as per the revised schedule of repayment and is
not compliant with certain debt covenants which represents a breach of the respective agreement, therefore, the
entire outstanding amount has been classified as a current liability under guidance contained in IAS 1 -
Presentation of Financial Statements. The Company is in negotiation with the TFC holders and the trustee for
relaxation in payment terms and certain other covenants.

During 2020, Pakistan Stock Exchange through its letter (Ref No. PSX/Gen-5683) dated 19 November 2019
instructed the Company to appraise them regarding measures taken for removal of default of payment of
principal amount, markup and restructuring of the TFCs by 25 November 2019. Consequently, the Company
has submitted its reply to the Pakistan Stock Exchange on 25 November 2019 and has intimated the Exchange
that it is-currently negotiating with the TFC holders for settlement of outstanding liabilities and for relaxation in
paymient terms and that a settlement proposal was shared in the meeting held on 18 March 2018 with the TFC
holders. However, despite the three reminders sent by the Trustee, response of the TFC holders is still pending.

The TFCs are still in the defaulter segment due to non compliance which could result in delisting of TFCs under
Pakistan Stock Exchange Regulations.

Security

The TFC's are secured by a first exclusive charge by way of equitable mortgage on the Company's properties
situated at 124/E-1, Main Boulevard Gulberg 11, Lahore, 38-A and 39 Block P, Modzl Town, Lahore, G.T.
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9.2

9.3

Road Gujrat, G.T. Road, Gujranwala, and first exclusive hypothecation charge over certain specific fixed
assets, to the extent of Rs.2,000 million.

Settlement with Askari Bank Limited

On 07 February 2018, Askari Bank Limited (‘Bank’) and the Company entered into Debt Asset Swap
Agreement for full and final settlement of outstanding amount of TFCs along with their accrued mark-up
against fifth and sixth floor of Pace Tower measuring 14,903 square feet and 6,731 square feet respectively. In
accordance with the terms of the agreement, the Bank purchased the aforementioned floors for Rs. 185.93
million as full and final settlement. Furthermore, the Bank provided financial relief of suspended mark- up
amounting to Rs. 89.29 million along with future mark-up upon completion of certain terms and conditions on
or before 30 June 2019. The terms and conditions of the agreement have not been complied with, consequently,
the impact of financial relief has not been accounted for in the financial statements.

Settlement of TFCs

During the year, the Company has entered into settlement agreement with TFCs holder for the settlement of
principal amounting to Rs. 9.77 million and TFCs holder provided financial relief by suspending markup of Rs.
12.63 million.

2023 2022
Note === (Rupees in thousand) ---

Lease liability
Present value of lease payments 10.1 178,822 183,668
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities (29,160) (32,492)

149,662 151,176
Movement during the year is as follows:
Opening balance as.at 01 July 183,668 180,043
Additions during the year - 13,663
Unwinding of notional interest 24,733 24,617
Reclassified to accrued liabilities (15,720) (3,813)
Settlement of lease liability (4,567) (6,046)
Lease rentals paid (9,294) (24,796)
Closing balance as at 30 June 178,822 183,668
10.1  On 17 October 2018, Orix Leasing Company ('plaintiff) has filed a case in Banking Court VII against Pace

(Pakistan) Limited (‘the Company'). The plaintiff filed a suit claiming an amount of Rs. 47.10 million on
account of loss in business of the plaintiff. The amount claimed by the plaintiff has already been booked in
these financial statements. However, during the year the Company has settled the matter with plaintiff by
offering the full and final settlement amount of Rs. 12 million which the plaintiff has accepted. Out of total
agreed amount 4.57 million has been paid during the year. '

2023 2022
Note --- (Rupees in thousand) ---

Foreign currency convertible bonds - unsecured ’ )
Opening balance 3,610,587 2,764,027
Mark-up accrued during the year - 27,667
3,610,587 2,791,694

i‘xchange loss/ (gain) for the year 11.2 1,421,449 818,893
' 5,032,036 3,610,587

Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities (5,032,036) (2,610,587)
Non Current portion - -

111

On 27 December 2007, BNY Corporate Trustee Services Limited incorporated in United Kingdom with its
registered office at One Canada Square, London E14 5AL and the Company entered into an agresraent that the
Company issue 25,000 convertible bonds of USD 1,000 each amounting to USD 25 million. The foreign
currency convertible bonds (FCCB) were listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange and became redeemable on
28 December 2012 at the accreted principal amount. The bonds carry a mark-up of 5.5% per annum,

r
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compounded semi-annually, accretive (up till 28 December 2012) and cash interest of 1% per annum to be paid
in arrears. The holders of the bonds had an option to convert the bonds into equily shares of the Company at
any time following the issue date till the maturity date at a price calculated as per terms of arrangement. As at
30 June 2022, USD 13 million bonds have been converted into the ordinary shares of the Company and
remaining USD 12 million bonds along with related interest have not been repaid by the Company.

As the fair value calculated for the financial instrument is quite subjective and cannot be measured reliably,
consequently the bonds have been carried at cost and include accreted mark-up.

112 This represents exchange loss/ (gain) arising on translation of foreign currency convertible bonds.
Deferred liabilities

2023 2022
Note -— (Rupees in thousand) ---
Staff gratuity 12,1 48,043 44,726
Leave encashment 12.2 1,114 1,698
49,157 46,424
2023 2022
=== (Rupees in thousand) ---
12.1  Staff gratuity
Balance as at 01 July 44,726 42,924
Included in statement of profit or loss:
Service cost 5,037 7,514
Interest cost 5,880 4,054
' 10,917 11,568
Included in statement of comprehensive income: '
Remeasurements:
Actuarial loss from changes in financial assumptions 263 295
Experience adjustments (6,537)] | (5,285)
(6,269) (4,990)
Other:
Benefits due but not paid (payable) (4,776)
Benefiis paid (1,320) -
(1,330) (4,776)
Balance as at 30 June 48,044 44,726
Charge for the year has been allocated as follows: ;
Cost of revenue 4,367 4,627
Administrative and selling expenses 6,550 6,941
Y 10,917 11,568

Plan Assets -

The Company is operating an unfunded gratuity scheme and has not invested any amount for meeting the

liabilities of the scheme.

2023 -

2022

--- (Rupees in thousand) -

12.2  Leave encashment
Balance as at 01 July 1,698 1,608
Incleded in statement of profit or loss:
Service cost 181 168
Experience adjustments (990) 456
Interest cost 225 128
' (584) 752

-
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12.3

2023 2022

Included in statement of comprehensive income: -— (Rupees in theusand) -—
Remeasurements: L

Actuarial loss from changes in financial assumptions - -

Experience adjustments -
Other:

Benefits due but not paid (payable) - (662)

Benefits paid - -

- (662)
Balance as at 30 June 1,114 1,698
Charge for the year has been allocated to administrative and selling expenses.
Plan Assets
The Company has not invested any amount for meeting the liabilities of the scheme. -
Actuarial assumptions :
2023 2022
z Leave ] Leave
Gratuity encashment Graaig encashment

Discount ratc used for year end
obligations 16.25% 16.25% 13.25% 13.25%
Expected rate of growth per annum in
future salaries 15.25% 15.25% 12.25% 12.25%
Expected mortality rate SLIC (2001-2005) Setback 1 Year
Weighted average duration of defined
benelil plan 5 Years 6 Years 5 Years 6 Years
Average number of leaves accumulated
per annum by employees } 5 dayi ) e
Average number of leaves utilised per o
annum by employees - 15 days - 15 days
Retirement age Age 60 Age 60 Age 60 Age 60

Ihe Company expects to charge Rs. 11.193 million to the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss on account

of gratuity in the year ending 30 June 2024.
Sensitivity Analysis

2023 2022
4 Leave ; Leave
Cratuly encashment Sirecy encashment
=== (Rupees in thousand) ---

Year end sensitivity on defined benefit

obligation: " .

Discount rate + 100 bps 45,956 1,054 42,644 1,599
Discount rate - 100 bps 50,391 1,181 © 47,076 1,809
Salary increase + 100 bps 50,462 1,179 47,149 1,805
Salary increase - 100 bps 45,855 1,055 42,542 1,601

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When
calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method
(present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the
reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the staff retirement gratuity recognised’ m(hm the

statement of financial position.

-
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12.6

The plans expose the Company to the actuarial risks such as:

Salary risks ;
The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what we assumed. Since the
benefit is calculated on the final salary (which will closely reflect inflation and other macroeconomic factors),

the benefit amount increases as salary increases.

Mortality / withdrawal risks
The risks that the actual mortality / withdrawal experiences is different. The effect depends upon beneficiaries'
service / age distribution and the entitled benefits of the beneficiary.

13 Contract liability

This principally represents advances received from various parties against sale of apartments and houses in Pace Tower
project, Lahore and its breakup is as follows:

14

2023 2022
Note --- (Rupees in thousand) -—-
MCB Bank Limited 17,000 17,000
First Capital Investment Limited - related party 16,020 - 16,020
First Capital Securities Corporation Limited - related party 45,887 45,887
First Capital Equities Limited - related party 5,019 5,019
Others 163,968 134,804
247,894 218,730
Current maturity of long term liabilities
2023 2022
--- (Rupees in thousand) -
Long term finances - secured 8 66,860 66,860
Redeemable capital - secured (non-participatory) 9 805,118 815,691
Lease liability 10 29,160 | 32,492
Foreign currency convertible bonds - unsecured 11 5,032,036 3,610,587
5,933,174 4,525,630
2023 2022
--- (Rupees in thousand) ---
Creditors, acerued and other liabilities '
Trade creditors 15.1 101,272 154,830
Provisions and accrued liabilities 328,630 281,321
Payable to statutory bodies 101,693 101,693
Security deposits 15.2 59,560 58,042
Rentals against investment property received in advance 44,208 23,098
Retention money 5,461 5,461
Payable to contractors 2,699 2,699
Others 15.3 177,464 92,699
820,987 719,842
15,0 This includes payables to First Construction Limited and Evergreen Water Valley (Private) Limited (related
party being a subsidiary of associate company) amounting to Rs. 0.09 million (2022: Rs. 0.09 million) and Rs.
Nill million (2022: Rs.8.79 million) respectively under normal course of business and are interest free,
152 These represent security deposits received against rent of shops rented out in the plazas. Section 217 of

Companies Act, 2017 requires that a Company or any of its officers or agents shall not receive or utilize any
money received as security or deposit, except in accordance with a contract in writing. Keeping in view the
requirements of this section, the Company has entered into agreements with third parties whereby it is expressly
stated that the Company shall have the right to utilize the security deposit at its discretion. These amounts are

«
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normally utilized to bring the areas rented out for their intended use (upkeep expenditure).

15.3  This includes payables to related parties under normal course of business and are interest free.
2023 2022
Related Party Relationship --- (Rupees in thousand) —
; . . . Common
First C i
irst Capital Equities Limited Directorship 1,070 1,070
1,070 1,070
2023 2022
=== (Rupees in thousand) —-
16 Acerued finance cost
Long term finances - secured 35,557 18,281
Redeemable capital - secured (non-participatory) 1,313,188 1,185,453

1,348,745 1,203,734

Contingencies and commitments

17.1
17.1.1

17.1.2

1713

Contingencies

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts amounting to Rs.21.64 million (2022: Rs.21.64
million).

On 10 October 2017, the Company filed a petition against Damas (the tenant at the M.M Alam Plaza) in the
Rental Tribunal at Lahore on the grounds that the tenant has violated the terms and conditions of the lease
agreement including failure to pay rent and denial of the right to entry into the premises. The amount of claim is
Rs. 75 million.

The petition is pending for hearing., As per legal advisors of the Company, there are reasonable grounds to
defend the Company's claim, however no asset has been booked in the financial statements.

On 29 November 2012, Shaheen Insurance Company Limited and First Capital Securities Corporation Limited
(on behalf of First Capital Group) entered into an agreement whereby, it was agreed that liability pertaining to
reverse repo transaction amounting to Rs. 99.89 million along with insurance premium payable amounting to
Rs. 88.86 million from First Capital Group shall be settled vide sale of 4.70 million shares of First Capital
Equities Limited to Shaheen Insurance Company Limited at a price of Rs. 40. Included in the insurance payable
is Rs. 57.96 million pertaining to Pace (Pakistan) Limited. It was agreed that Shaheen Insurance Company
Limited will be allowed to sell the share after two years, however, the first right to refusal shall be given to the
First Capital Group. Further, First Capital Group guaranteed to buy back the shares at Rs. 40 in case the shares
are not saleable in open market. The agreement was subsequently amended on 07 March 2013 to remove
restriction of holding period of two years. In addition to that, the guarantee to buy back was also revoked,

On 24 April 2015, Shaheen Insurance Company Limited filed a suit for recovery of Rs. 188.75 million in the
Honourable Senior Civil Court. The case is under adjudication and the maximum exposure to the Company is
of Rs. 57.96 million. As per legal advisors of the Company there are meritorious grounds to defend the
Company's claim and consequently no provision has been made in these financial statements,

17.1.3.4 In view of legal opinion obtained by the legal advisor of the company, the company has stopped charging cash

interest of 1% per annum on the outstanding FCCB amounting USD 15.7 Million (Principal plus accumulated
markup till maturity). As of 30 June 2023, there is a liability provided amounting USD 1.8 Million with regard
to 1% cash coupon. As per balance confirmation received from BNY Corporate Trustee Services Limited the
liability outstanding does not include the aforesaid amount of 1% cash coupon. The management of the
company is confident that the final liability at the time of settlement would not exceed the amount already
provided in these financial statements

P



Pace (Pakistan) Limited
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

17.2
17.2.1

17.2.2

Commitments

Commitments in respect of capital expenditure i.e. purchase of properties from Pace Barka Properties Limited
(related party), amounts to Rs. Rs. 26.27 million (2022: Rs. 26.27 million).

Corporate guarantee on behalf of Pace Barka Properties Limited, a related party, in favor of The Bank of
Punjab, amounting to Rs. 900 million (2022: Rs. 900 million) as per the approval of shareholders through the
special resolution dated 29 July 2006.

2023 2022
Note --- (Rupees in thousand) ---
Property, plant and equipment
Operating fixed assets ' 18.1 380,939 401,468
Capital work in progress 18.2 58,847 58,847
Right-of-use assels 18.3 100,406 108,498
540,192 568,813

T
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18.1  Operating fixed ussets

Frechald ligsd » T A TS Buildings on frechold Buildings on Pluct and hinery  Electrical Office v.-qnfi-pmnl and Furniture and Computers Vehicles Total
land leaschold Lind *** appliances fixtures
_ (Rupees in th d)
Net carrying value basis
Year ended 30 June 2023
Opening net book value 155,152 - 125,018 - 11,331 84,528 2,059 2,182 225 20,972 401,468
Additions (at cost) = - = - - - ¥ - = = =
Disposals - - - - - - - - - - -
Transfers & - - = = - = - - % -
Depreciation charge - - (6,251) - (1,133) (8,453) (206) (218) (T4} (4,194) (20,529)
Impairment charge - - - - - - = - - = -
Closing net book value 155,152 - 118,767 - 10.198 76,075 1,853 1.964 151 16,778 380,939
Gross carrying value basis
As st June 2023
Cost 155,152 - 221,948 - 78,794 195,955 12,060 11,301 10,280 67,732 753,722
Accumulated depreciation - - (103,181) - (68,121) {108,574) (10,198) (9.713) (10,129) (50,954) (360,870)
Accumulated impairment - - - - (475) (11,305) (8) (124) (0) - (11,912)
Net book value 155,152 - 118,767 - 10,198 76,076 1853 1,964 151 16,778 380,939
Depreciation % per annum 0% 0% 5% 3% 10% 10% 10% 10% 33% 20%
Net carrying value basis
Year ended 30 June 2022
Opening net book value 155,152 - 88,001 41,139 16,466 102,929 1,899 2,562 9 9,110 417,352
Additions (at cost) - - 42,479 1,441 - 3367 3 - 193 17,311 65,168
Disposals - - = - (3.265) - - - - (3.823) (7.087)
Transfers - - - (37,130) - “ : - 5 ” (37.130)
Depreciation charge : » (5,462) (5,450 {1,395 (10,463) (208) (256) 1) (1,626) (24,921)
Impairment charge - - - = (473) (11,305) (8) (124) @ - (11,912)
Closing net book value 155,152 - 125,018 - 11.331 84,528 2,059 2183 225 20,972 401 468
Gross carrying value basis
As at June 2022
Cost 155,152 - 221,948 - 78,794 195,955 12,060 11,801 10,280 67,732 753722
Accumulated depreciation - - (96,930) - (66,988) (100,121) (9,992} (9.495) {10,055) (46,760) (340,341)
Accumulated impairment = & " - (475) (11,305) ) (124) (0) - (11,912)
Net book value 155,152 - 125.018 - 11,331 84,528 2.059 2,182 225 20,972 401.468
—_— e
Depreciation % per annum 0% 0% 5% 3% 10% 10% 10% 10% 33% 20%

* Frechold land ropresents the uncovered arca of Main Boulevard Project, M.M Alam Road Project, Model Town Link Road Project. Gujranwala Project, Gujrat Project and Woodland Project which is not saleable in the ardinary course of busincss,

"I.msdso]dhnc[mprcsansnpmofhmiImnsfcrmlinUmmmcofﬂncCompanyhymcMinisuyuchﬁmue,nnsnringZO,BSﬁsmnmymdssiumaduSuwcyNo. IS]JAWRMWMWIMWMM@B&MCM&WC
P.w:Bmia?mpm.iusLhﬁmd(PBPL)‘mmbmdnﬂmHn&mmthcIim:of‘biddingPB?L\msinrhcproensofimurpmnf.im.Subsuqucn(wlhcbidcﬁns.mmtwasmdcbyPBPLhnubcMhﬂsuyofD:fmncl'cfuudlohnsﬂ:rﬂsuajdpimeoflandintbcmmuf?BPLasil\msmttbum’sim]
the legal

bidder, theref; hip has been fi d in the name of the Company. C ly, to avoid additional ? mrda:hqgwmfcrorlqgulomﬂaip,ﬂnCmanyhasm:edimo:mWM&PBPL.MymmusBma!ﬂuhndmhsbmcﬁdﬂomnhiplmbecn
mfcmwFBPLﬂ\mughanhmmthcnuanmrqumwwISM:yZOO?

ompany sccured the bid for the said piece of land on behalf of

-

i



Pace (Pakistan) Limited
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

18.1.1 Particulars of immovable property (i:e. land and building) in the name of Company are as follows:

Yiiskiten Usage of immoveable Land Area *Covered Area Total Area
property (Square Feet) (Square Feet) (Square Feet)
38.38/A,39, Block P, Model Town Link Road, Lahore Shopping plaza 22,050 70,152 92,202
40, Block P, Model Town Link Road, Lahore Shopping plaza 22,995 21,933 44928
Bridge Point Plaza, Fortress Stadium, Lahore Cantt, Shopping plaza 7.695 16,204 23,899
96-B-I, M.M Alam Road, Gulberg - 111, Lahore Shopping plaza 18,112 68,087 86,199
Mouza Dhola Zarri, Main GT Road Gujranwala Shopping plaza 21,148 53,601 74,749
Mouza Ado-Wal, G.T Road, Tehsil & District, Gujrat Shopping plaza 27,000 85,347 112,347
124/E-1 Main Boulevard Gulberg III Lahore Shopping plaza 40,757 81,601 122,358
Bedian Road, Lahore Management office 7.875 - 7,875
The buildings on freehold land and other immovable assets of the Company are constructed / located at above mentioned freehold land.
*The covered area includes multi-storey buildings.
18.1.2 Detail of operating fixed assets disposed-off during the year is as follows

. Sale Gain/ . Particulars of Relationship with

D t
ccription Cost  Book Value Proceeds (loss) Mode of disposal purchasers the purchaser

Year Ended June, 30 2023 Nill
Year Ended June, 30 2022 ! — (Rupees in thousand) —
Plant & Machinery
Chiller Air Conditioning 7,001 3,265 11,000 2,235 Negotiation Third party None
Owned Vehicles
Porsche Car 3,950 2,317 3,600 1,283 Negotiation Third party None
Toyota Fortuner 4,000 1,505 4,570 3,065 Negotiation Third party None
Year Ended June, 30 2022 14,951 7,087 19,170 6,583

18.1.3 Operating fixed assets include a vehicle, having cost of Rs. 1.39 million (2022: Rs. 1.39 million), which is fully depreciated but still in use as at 30 J une 2023.

182  This represents Rs. 58.85 million related to the third floor of Pace Tower, covering an area of 4,261 square feet which is under construction and is to be held for use,
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18.3

18.4

Note
Right-of-use assets

Land

Cost
Balance as at 01 July
Additions / (deletions) during the year
Balance as at 30 June

Aecumulated depreciation
Balance as at 01 July
Depreciation charge during the year
Balance as at 30 June

Closing net book value
Rate of depreciation
Electrical equipment

Cost
Balance as at 01 July
Additions / (deletions) during the year
Balance as at 30 June

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 01 July
Depreciation charge during the year
Balance as at 30 June

Closing net book value

Rate of depreciation

Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of revenue:

Depreciation on right-of-use assets 313
Depreciation on owned assets 313
Administrative and selling expenses:

Depreciation on owned assets 32

-

£

2023

2022

-=- (Rupees in thousand) ---

119,496 119,496
119,496 119,496
(14,320) (9,550)
(4,770) (4,770)
(19,091) (14,320)
100,405 105,176
4% 4%
15,339 15,339
15,339 15,339
(12,017) (6,903)
(3,322) (5,114)
(15,339) (12,017)
. 3,322
33% 33%
2023 2022

-—- (Rupees in thousand) ---

8,092 9,883
14,856 16,098
5,673 8,823
28,621 34,804
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19 Intangible assets

20

Optical fiber - Royalty
Computer software

19.1  Optical fiber - Royalty
Cost

Aceumulated amortisation
As at 01 July
Amortisation for the year
Balance as at 30 June

Book value as at 30 June
Rate of amortisation

19.2  Computer software
Cost

Accumulated amortisation
Asat 01 July
Amortisation for the year
Balance as at 30 June

Book value as at 30 June
Rate of amortisation

Investment property

Balance as at 01 July

Initial Recoginition of ROU

Fair value gain/ (loss) on recognition of ROU
Transfer from Inventory at cost

Transter from PPE at cost

Purchases

Fair value gain/ (loss) recorded in statement
of profit or loss

Disposal during the year

As at 30 June

2023

2022

--- (Rupees in thousand) -

2,257 2,733

236 262

2,493 2,995

9,508 9,508
(6,775) (6,299)
(476) (476)
(7,251) (6,775)

2,257 2,733

5% 5%

2,878 2,878
(2,616) (2,587)
(26) (29)
(2,642) (2,616)

236 262
10% 10%
Cost Fair value
2023 2022 2023 2022
-=- (Rupees in thousand) ---

883,931 557,911 1,803,239 1,467,614
- 13,663 - 13,663

- 228,190 - 228,190

- 84,167 - 84,166

80,894 - 80,894 -

964,825 883,931 1,884,133 1,793,633
5 = 14,562 9,607
964,825 883,931 1,898,694 1,803,239

20.1  The forced sale value of investment property excluding right-of-use asset amounts to Rs. 1,580.806 million (2022:

Rs. 1,485.768 million).

Investment properties represent Company's interest in land and buildings situated at Model Town Lahore, Gulberg
Lahore, Gujranwala and Gujrat. On initial application of IFRS 16, the Company recognised right-of-use asset
arising as a result of head lease of shops / apartments situated at 4th floor of Model Town Lahore and 1st, 3rd and
4th floor of M.M Alam. The Company has sub-leased the aforementioned properties and right-of-use asset arising

from head lease has been classified as investment property.

These are either leased to third parties or held for value appreciation. Changes in fair values are recognised and
presented separately as "Gain/(loss) from change in fair value of investment property" in the statement of profit or

loss.
P
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20.1.1

Fair Value

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value of investment property was determined by external, independent property valuer KG Traders, having
appropriate recognised professional qualifications. The independent valuers provide the fair value of the Company’s
investment property portfolio annually. Latest valuation of these assets was carried out on 30 June 2023. Level 3 fair
value of Buildings has been determined using a depreciated replacement cost approach, whereby, current cost of
construction of a similar building in a similar location has been adjusted using a suitable depreciation rate to arrive at

present market value.

Level 3 fair value of right-of-use assets has been determined using discounted cashflow method, whereby appropriate

discount rate has been adjusted to arrive at the fair value.

The following is categorization of assets measured at fair value at 30 June 2023:

Freehold land -
Buildings -
Right-of-use assets -

The following is categorization of assets measured at fair value at 30 June 2022:

Freehold land -
Buildings -
Right-of-use assets -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-=- (Rupees in thousand) ---
- 1,867,127 1,867,127
- 38,922 38,922
- - 1,906,049 1,906,049
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
--- (Rupees in thousand) ---
- 1,747,963 1,747,963
- 55,276 55,276
- - 1,803,239 1,803,239

Valuation inputs and relationship to fair value

The following table summarises the quantitative and qualitative information about the significant unobservable inputs
used in recurring level 3 fair value measurements. Refer fair value hierarchy for the valuation techniques adopted.

Quantitative data / range and relationship to the fair

value

Description Significant Unobservable
inputs
Buildings Cost of construction of a new

similar building

Suitable depreciation rate to
arrive at depreciated
replacement value

Right-of-use asset Discount rate being used to
discount the future cashflows.
T“p?b\

The market value has been determined by using a
depreciation of approximately 5%-10% on cost of
constructing a similar new building, Higher, the estimated
cost of construction of a new building, higher the fair value.
Further, higher the depreciation rate, the lower the fair value

of the building,

The estimated fair value will increase / (decrease) if
discounting rates were lower / (higher)
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21 Lease Receivable

21.1  The Company has entered into a lease agreement as a lessor. Implicit Interest rate is 10% per annum. Installment of Rs.
422,400 monthly which will be increased by 25% upon completion of every three years.
21.2  Maturity Analysis-- Contractural undiscounted cash flows
Lease payments receivable Rupees Rupees
1 -3 years 18,374,400 17,107,200
4 - 6 years 22,968,000 20,724,000
7 -9 years 28,710,000 26,565,000
10 - 12 years 35,887,500 33,206,250
13 - 15 years 44,859,375 41,507,813
More than 15 years 342,185,669 358,943,481
492,984,944 498,053,744
2023 2022
Note --- (Rupees in thousand) ---
21.3  Reconciliation
Total lease receivable 492,985 498,054
Less: Unearned finance income (378,243) (388,889)
Net investment in lease 114,742 109,165
Less: Current portion of lease receivable (5,702) (5,069)
Non Current portion of lease receivable 109,040 104,096
22 Long term investments
Equity instruments of:
- subsidiaries - unquoted 22.1 91,670 91,670
- associated undertakings - unquoted 22.2 758,651 758,651
850,321 850,321
22.1  Subsidiaries - unquoted
Pace Woodlands (Private) Limited
3,000 (2022: 3,000) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs.10
each 30 30
Equity held 52% (2022: 52%)
Pace Super Mall (Private) Limited
9,161,528 (2022: 9,161,528) fully paid ordinary shares
of Rs.10 each 91,615 91,615
Equity held 57% (2022: 57%)
Pace Gujrat (Private) Limited
2,450 (2022: 2,450) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs.10
each 25 25
Equity held 100% (2022: 100%)
91,670 91,670
222 Associate Undertakings- unquoted
Pace Barka Properties Limited
75,875,000 (2022: 75,875,000) fully paid ordinary
shares of Rs. 10 each
Equity held: 24.86% (2022: 24,86%) 758,651 758,651

-

-
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23

24

Long term advances and deposits
These are in the ordinary course of business and are interest free advances and deposits.
Deferred taxation

The liability / (asset) for deferred taxation comprises temporary differences relating to:

2023 2022

=== (Rupees in thousand) ---
Accelerated tax depreciation 244,903 230,196
Right-of-use assets and lease liability 34,587 44,242
Unrealised exchange loss (833,472) -
Employee retirement benefits (14,255) (13,463)
Provision for net realisable value 8,922 (30,874)
Provision for doubtful receivables (156,374) (97,966)
Unused tax losses 715,689 (132,135)

The Company has not recognised deferred tax assets of Rs. 8.32 million (2022: Rs. 404.85 million) in respect of tax
losses, Rs. 833.472 million (2022: Rs. 421.25 million) in respect of unrealised exchange loss and Rs.93.32 million
(2022: Rs. 119.58 million) in respect of minimum tax paid available for carry forward under section 113 and 113C of
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, as sufficient taxable profits would not be available to set these off in the foreseeable
future. Minimum tax paid under section 113 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 amounting to Rs, 5.50 million, Rs. 3.66
million, Rs. 3.21 million, 22.46 million and 3.02 million which will lapse in the year 2024, 2025, 2026, 2027 and 2028
respectively. Alternate Corporate Tax ('ACT") paid under section 113C of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 aggregating to
Rs.55.22 million and Rs.20.30 million will lapse in the year 2027 and 2028, respectively. Tax losses amounting to Rs.
438.48 million, Rs. 197.32 million, Rs. 243.05 and Rs.81.44 million 93.32 will expire in year 2024, 2025, 2026, 2027
and 2028 respectively.

Stock-in-trade

2023 2022
Note - (Rupees in thousand) ---

Land not under development 25.1 21,600 21,600

Land purchased for resale 25.2 930,765 900,000
Work in progress

- Pace Tower 253 650,158 542,267

- Pace Circle 254 670,650 670,650

Completed units - shops 168,091 177,200

2,441,264 2,311,117

Stores inventory 392 443

2,441,656 2,312,160

25.1  This represents the space purchased at Pace Supermall by the Company from its subsidiary for the purpose of
resale and thus it is classified under stock.

252 This represents plot purchased for resale purposes amounting to Rs. 930.765 million (2022: Rs. 900 million).
253 Included in work in progress are borrowing costs of Rs. 101 million (2022: Rs. 101 million).

254 Pace Circle is a project carried by Pace Barka (Private) Limited (an associated company). The project is under
conslruction as at year end and the Company has realized the cumulative payments made till the year end as its
inventory while remaining amount is shown in commitments note (17.2.1).

e
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2023 2022
Note --- (Rupees in thousand) -~
26 Trade debts
Secured
Considered good 26.1 635,083 701,176
Unsecured 423,074 339,786
1,058,157 1,040,962
Less: Impairment allowance (539,221) (337,813)
518,936 703,149
26.1  This includes the following amounts due from related parties:
Remy Apparel (Formerly Rema and Shehrbano) 4,738 4,738
First Capital Investment Limited & First Capital Mutual Fund 4,580 4,580
First Capital Equities Limited 118,441 118,441
First Capital Securities Corporation Limited 6,681 6,681
Connatural Cosmetics _ 1,450 1,450
135,890 135,890

26.2  The maximum aggregate amount due from related parties at the end of any month during the year was Rs.
135.89 million (2022: Rs. 135.89 million).

2023 2022

Note - (Rupees in thousand) ---

27 Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Advances - considered good:

- to employees 27.1 11,750 17,263
- to suppliers 29,087 17,391

Advance against purchase of property - B
Security deposits 785 785
Others - considered good 27.3 44,087 55,029
27.2 85,709 90,468

27.1  Advances to employees include advances against salary and gratuity, repayable within one year and at the time
of final settlement, respectively. This includes Rs. 5.67 million (2022: Rs. 4.34 million) advance given to
executive employee of the Company.

27.2  The maximum aggregate advance given to these related parties against provision of services at the end of any
month was Rs. 7.07 million (2022: Rs. 16.91 million) '

27.3  This includes rent receivable from a related party 'Media Times Limited’ amounting to Rs. 13.38 million (2022:
Rs. 10.84 million). The amount also includes impairment allowance of Nil (2022: Nil) recognised in the current

year,
2023 2022
Note -— (Rupees in thousand) ---
28 Income tax refundable - net
Income tax refundable 28.1 32,314 42,365
Provision for taxation - current (3,023) (22,455)
29,291 19,910

e
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30

28.1

This represents mainly withholding tax deducted from profit on bank deposits and rental income from property
and advance tax paid on electricity bills under Section 151, 152 and 235, respectively of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001.

2023 2022
Note - (Rupees in thousand) -
Cash and bank balances
Cash in hand 16 18
Cash at banks
- Current accounts 29.1 18,784 22,096
- Saving accounts 29.2 836 319
19,620 22,415
19,636 22,433
29.1  This includes Rs. 17 million (2022: Rs. 17 million) on which lien is marked against sale of property to MCB
for further development charges at Pace Tower.
29.2  This carries profit at the rates ranging from 5.75% to 19.5% (2022: 5.5% to 12.25%) per annum,
2023 2022
Note === (Rupees in thousand) ---
Revenue
Sale of Pace Tower units 30.1 - 352,157
Sale of Completed Units - Others 9,773 241,470
Sale of Land 30.2 - 416,817
Display of advertisements 6,547 44,045
Service charges 30.3 123,759 168,194
Revenue from contract with customers 140,079 1,222,683
Other revenue
Rental income from lease of investment property 101,730 33,643
Total revenue 241,809 1,256,326
30.1  This includes revenue recognised at percentage of completion basis
Revenue recognised to date 1,697,729 1,697,729
Aggregate cost incurred to date (1,416,173) (1,416,173)
Recognised profit to date 281,556 281,556
The revenue arising from agreements, that meet the criteria for revenue recognition on the basis of percentage
of completion method, during the current year, there is no change in percentage of completed units. (2022: Rs.
33 million).
30.2  The Company entered into agreement with Evergreen Water Valley (Private) Limited a related party for the

purchase of plot measuring 4 kanals 15 marlas and 175 square feet located at the Plot No. 133 Shadman 11,
Lahore and sold this plot to Zameen Omega against variable consideration. Therefore, the Company has
recognized revenue and contract asset on the basis expected multiple outcome depending on the project
approvals.

—
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30.3

30.4

30.4.1

30.5

2023 2022
~-- (Rupees in thousand) ---

Disaggregation of revenue

Timing of revenue recognition

At a point in time 9,773 1,010,868
Over time 232,036 245,458
241,809 1,256,326

Contract balances

The following table provides information about receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with
customers.

2023 2022
Note -—— (Rupees in thousand) -
Receivables, which are included in trade debts 26 1,027,876 1,040,962
Contract liability 304.1& 13 247,894 218,730

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration received from customers against sale of
properties and development services.

Impact of fire in Gulberg Plaza

During the year, a project of the Company situated at the Main Boulevard, Gulberg, Lahore (the mall) was
subject to fire. In terms of investment this mall was completely sold out to third parties and the Company had no
inventory in the mall, the only revenue involved is in the form of service charges and advertisment which were
completely utilized to pay for mall expenses in the form of Bills (Electricity, Sui gas and Water bills) and
Maintenance Costs ( repair maintenance of the building, machinery and electric equipments) installed at the
location in the form of back up generators and air conditioners, Escalotors (HVAC). As the result of this
incident all activity of the Gulberg Plaza has entirely stoped resulting into no cash inflows and outflows.

2023 2022
Note === (Rupees in thousand) ---
Cost of revenue
Shops and commercial buildings sold
- al percentage of completion basis 31.1 - 345,328
- at completion of project basis 312 8,940 470,501
Slores operating expenses 313 109,849 87,424
118,789 903,253
3.1 Shops/ apartments and commercial buildings sold
at percentage of completion basis
Opening work in progress (Pace Tower) 542,267 725,051
Opening work in progress (Pace Circle) 670,650 776,187
Purchase of inventory 107,890 116,207
Project development costs - 14,050
Write down of inventory to net realisable value - (7,130)
Property disposed / settled - (66,120)
Closing work in progress (Pace Tower) (650,158) (542,267)
Closing work in progress (Pace Circle) (670,650) (670,650)
- 345,328

-
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31.2

31.3

3131

Shops / apartments and commercial buildings sold
at completion of project basis

Opening inventory of shops and Land

Purchase during the year

Transfer to Investment Property

Transfer to Property, Plant & Equipment

Settlement

(Write down)/reversal of inventory to net realisable value
Closing inventory of shops and Land

Stores operating expenses

Salaries, wages and benefits

Rent, rates and taxes

Depreciation on owned assets
Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Repairs and maintenance
Janitorail

Fuel and Power

Others

2023 2022
--- (Rupees in thousand) ---

Salaries, wages and benefits include following in respect of gratuity and leave encashment:

Current service cost
Interest cost

Administrative and selling expenses

Salaries, wages and benefits
Travelling and conveyance
Rent, rates and taxes
Insurance

Printing

and stationery

Repairs and maintenance

Motor vehicles running

Communications

Advertising and sales promotion

Depreciation on owned assets

Amortisation on intangible assets

Auditors' remuneration

Legal and professional

Commission on sales

Office expenses

Impairment loss on trade and other receivables
Impairment loss on Inventory

Impairment loss on Property, Plant & Equipment
Other expenses

s

1,077,200 1,473,009
- 430,000
- (228,190)
- (15,691)
- (74,506)
30,596 (36,921)
(1,098,856) (1,077,200)
8,940 470,501
2023 2022
Note --= (Rupees in thousand) —
31.3.1 38,303 44,070
14,868 5,909
18.4 14,856 16,098
184 8,092 9,883
4,024 9,813
1,741 62,104
27,964 6,352
- 1,651
109,849 155,880
2,087 3,073
2,046 1,855
4,133 4,928
32.1 61,410 57,954
1,387 2,399
2,285 870
1,319 1,605
160 307
21,464 23,711
1,481 2,209
597 797
16 9,275
18.4 5,673 8,823
19 502 505
322 4,139 4,539
5,968 9,174
4,830 4,950
988 53,167
210,528 42,104
169 45,291
- 11,912
5,888 7,902
328,804 287,494
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32.1  Salaries, wages and benefits include following in respect of gratuity and leave encashment

Current service cost 3,131 4,609

Interest cost 3,069 2,783
6,200 7,392
2023 2022

=== (Rupees in thousand) ---
32.2 Auditors' remuneration

The charges for auditors' remuneration includes the following in respect of auditors' services for:

Statutory audit 2,420 2,420
Half yearly review 847 847
Audit of consolidated financial statements 220 220
Statutory certification 110 110
Out of pocket expenses 542 542
Audit experts (valuer) fee - 400
4,139 4,539
33  Other income Note
Income from financial assets
Mark-up on bank accounts 120 264
Commission on guarantee 33.1 1,238 1,238
Finance Income from Lease Receivable 10,646 10,139
Income from non-financial assets
Reversal of impairment loss on inventory 30,765 -
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment - 6,583
Others
Gain on settlement of loans/lease liability 12,631 236,173
Income from parking and storage - 4,996
Miscellaneous Income - 4,900
Others 5,231 27,384
Liabilities Written-back 60,001 14,788
120,632 306,465

33.1  This represents commission income on guarantee provided on behalf of Pace Barka Properties Limited, an
associate.

J4 Finance cost

Interest and mark-up on:

- Long term finances - secured 17,276 12,109
- Foreign currency convertible bonds - unsecured 0) 27,667
- Redeemable capital - secured (non-participatory) 140,366 91,581
- Notional interest on lease liability 24,733 24,618

182,375 155,975
Bank charges and processing fee 166 153

182,541 156,128

s
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36

2023 2022
=== (Rupees in thousand) ---

Taxation

Income Tax

- Current Year 3,023 22,456
- Prior Year - 2,612

3,023 25,068

The relationship between income tax expense and accounting profit has not been presented in these financial statements
as the tax liability is calculated under Minimum Tax Regime under Section 113 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (2022:
Minimum Tax Regime under section Section 113 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001).

Loss per share - basic and diluted
The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share has been based on the following profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders and weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding. There are no dilutive potential ordinary

shares outstanding as at 30 June 2023 (2022: Nil).

2023 2022
--- (Rupees in thousand) ---

Loss for the year (1,677,604) (618,439)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year 278,877 278,877

’6“)%
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Note
37 Cash generated/ (used in) from operations

LLoss before tax

Adjustment for;
Exchange (gain)/ loss on foreign currency convertible bonds 11.2
Provision for gratuity and leave encashment 121 & 12.2
Depreciation on owned assets 18.4
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 18.4
Amortisation on intangible assets 19
Changes in fair value of investment property 20
Impairment loss on trade debts and other receivables
Write down of inventory to net realisable value 31.2
Finance costs 34
Mark-up income 33
Loss/ (Gain) on sale of property, plant and equipment 33
Non Cash Income 33

(Loss) / Gain before working capital changes

Effect on cash flow due to working capital changes:
(Increase)/ Decrease in stock-in-trade
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade debts
(Increase)/ Decrease in contract asset
(Increase)/ Decrease in advances, deposits and other receivables
Increase/ (Decrease) in contract liability
Increase/ (Decrease) in creditors, accrued and other liabilities

38 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances 29

(s

2023

2022

--- (Rupees in thousand) ---

(1,674,581) (593,371)
1,421,449 818,893
10,333 12,320
20,529 24,921
8,092 9,884
502 505
14,562 (9,606)
210,528 42,104
169 45,291
182,375 155,975
(120) (264)
: (6,583)
(83,278) (261,100)
110,560 238,970
(107,891) 331,069
13,086 (230,012)
a (356,817)
(25,522) 248,220
29,164 (127,525)
96,118 (10,947)
4,955 (146,011)
115,514 92,958
19,636 22,433
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39 Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

Balance as at 01 July 2022

Cash flows

Long term loan paid during the year
Repayment of lease rentals

Finance cost paid

Dividends paid

Total changes from financing cash flows

Non-cash changes

Exchange (gain)/ loss

Recognized during the year

Waiver of interest

Debt Asset Swap

Settlement

Lease Liability recognized during the year
Reclassified to accrued liabilities

Finance cost/unwinding of interest expense
Total non-cash changes

Balance as at 30 June 2022

-

30 June 2023
Equity Liabilities
Issued Redeeable Foreign currency
e - . -
subscribed and Share premium Revaluation . oo capstal-securad Lease liability  convertible bonds Aocrued finanie
aidou ital Surplus finances - secured (non- - unsecured cost
R participatory)
-— (Rupees in thousand) —
2,788,766 273,265 47,037 66,860 813,558 183,668 3,610,587 1,203,734
- - - - (10,573) - - -
- - - = - (9,294) - -
= B g - (10,573) (9,294) - =
= = 5 = - - 1,421,449 -
- - - - - - - (149,715)
- - - - - (4,567) - -
- - - - - (15,720) - -
2 = . - - 24,733 - 294,726
- - - - - 4,446 1,421,449 145,011
2,788,766 273,265 47,037 66,860 802,985 178,822 5,032,036 1,348,745
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40 Transactions with related parties

The related parties comprise of subsidiary companies, associated company, other related companies, directors of the Company and entities under common directorship and post employment benefit plans.

Amounts due from and due to related parties are shown under respective notes to these unconsolidated financial statements and remuneration of key management personnel is disclosed in note 43, All transactions
with related parties have been carried out on Arm's length. Other significant transactions with related parties except those disclosed elsewhere are as follows:

2023 2022
£ 5 g .
Name of Company Relationship Nature of Transactions — (Rupees in thousand) —
Pace Barka Properties Limited Associated Company Guarantee commission income 1,238 1,238
(equity held 24.86%) Shared expenses charged by the Company - 571
Sale during the year 62,827 84,375
Rental income - 1,980
Payment against purchase of inventory - 29,693
Purchase of inventory - 64,843
Ever Green Water Valley (Private) Limited Common Directorship Sale during the year - 166,750
Purchase of floor / plot 80,894 430,000
Payment against purchase of plot - 50,000
Purchase of goods and services 107,892 44,131
Shared expenses charged by the Company - -
First Capital Equities Limited Common Directorship Sale during the year ) - 139,822
Rental income A -
Media Times Limited Common Directorship Rental income 5,069 5,069
Advertisement expense - 9,000
Remy Apparel (Formerly Rema and Shehrbano) Common Directorship Service charges - 337
Connatural Common Directorship Service charges - 5,462

T
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Financial instruments

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk

- Liquidity risk

- Market risk

The Company's overall risk management policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse
effects on the Company's financial performance.

Risk management framework

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management
framework. The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits, Risk management policies and systems are reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The company, through its training and management
standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles
and obligations,

The Company audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and
procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Company audit
commiltee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management
controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

41.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and investments in debt securities.
As part of these processes the financial viability of all counterparties are regularly monitored and assessed.

The carrying amounts of financial assets and contract assets represent the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to
credit risk at the statement of financial position date was:

2023 2022

Note --= (Rupees in thousand) ---
Long term advances and deposits 13,619 13,619
Trade debts 26 518,936 703,149
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 27 85,709 73,077
Bank balance 29 19,620 22,415
Lease Receivable 21 114,742 109,165
Contract assel 30.2 356,817 356,817

1,109,443 1,278,242

Trade receivables

All the counterparties are of domestic origin. Ageing of the trade debis is as under:

The ageing of trade debts against properties including related parties at reporting date is as follows:

2023 2022
Gross Impairment Gross Impairment
--- (Rupees in thousand) ---
- Past due 0 - 365 days 122,189 224,507
- 1-2 years 47,052 (539,221) 66,084 (337.813)
- More than 2 years 888,916 750,371
1,058,157 (539,221) 1,040,962 (337,813)

Based on the amount of collateral held, the management believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
unprovided past due amounts pertaining to receivable against properties as there are reasonable grounds to believe that the loss
given default will not be material. However, receivable against service charge, display of advertisement and rental income is fully
provided for as the management does not expect to recover the amount.

—
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Bank balances
The Company held bank balances of Rs. 19.62 million at 30 June 2022 (2022 Rs, 22.42 million),

Impairment on bank balances has been measured on a 12-month expected loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the
exposures. The Company considers that its bank balances have low credit risk based on the external credit ratings of the
counterparties. The amount of impairment allowance at 30 June 2023 is Nil. (2022; Nil)

The credit quality of bank balances that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if
available) or to historical information about counterparty default rate:

Rating Rating
Short term Long term Agency 2023 2022

--- (Rupees in thousand) ---
Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited A-1 A+ VIS 56 30
Allied Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 41 3,019
Askari Bank Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA 8 7
Bank Alfalah Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA 1 1
Bank Islamic Pakistan Limited Al AA- PACRA 11 11
Faysal Bank Limited Al+ AA PACRA 1,718 39
Habib Bank Limited Al+ AAA VIS 0 0
MCB Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 17,762 18,679
Silk Bank Limited Al A+ VIS 5 613
Soneri Bank Limited Al+ AA- PACRA 11 10
United Bank Limited Al+ AAA VIS 6 6

19,620 22,415

412 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure,

as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation,

The Company maintains adequate reserves, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching profiles of
financial assets and liabilities. Financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables and due to related parties.

Exposure to liquidity risk

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments,

2023
Carrying Contractual One year One to More than
amount cashflows or less five years five years

--- (Rupees in thousand) ---

Long term finances - secured 66,860 66,860 66,860 - -

Redeemable capital - secured

(non-participatory) 805,118 805,118 805,118 — ¥

Lease liability 178,822 178,822 29,160 58,570 91,093

Foreign currency convertible

bonds - unsecured 5,032,036 5,032,036 5,032,036 = )

Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 776,779 776,779 776,779 = =

Accrued finance cost 1,348,745 1,348,745 1,348,745 - -
8,208,360 8,208,360 8,058,698 58,570 91,093

g
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2022
Carrying Contractual One year One to More than
amount cashflows or less five years five years
--- (Rupees in thousand) ---
Long term finances - secured 66,860 66,860 66,860 B -
Redeemable capital - secured
(non-participatory) 815,691 815,691 815,691 - -
Lease liability 183,668 183,669 32,492 71,602 79,576
Foreign currency convertible
bonds - unsecured 3,610,587 3,610,587 3,610,587 - -
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 696,745 696,745 696,745 - -
Accrued finance cost 1,203,734 1,203,734 1,203,734 - -
6,577,285 6,577,287 6,426,109 71,602 79,576

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the
Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and
control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. Currency risk arises from sales, purchases and resulting balances that are denominated in a currency other than
functional currency. The Company is not exposed to foreign currency risk as at the reporting date.

The Company is exposed to currency risk arising from primarily with respect to the United States Dollar (USD). Currently, the
Company'’s foreign exchange risk exposure is restricted to foreign currency convertible bonds. The Company's exposure to currency
risk was as follows:

2023 2022
Following is the Company’s exposure to currency risk: --- (USD in thousand) ---
Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds - USD 17,527 17,527

The exchange rate applicable at the reporting date is 287.10 (2022: 206)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
effective interest / mark-up rates for interest / mark-up bearing financial instruments are mentioned in relevant notes to the
financial statements. The Company's interest / mark-up bearing financial instruments as at the reporting date are as follows:

2023 2022
Financial Financial Financial Financial
asset liability asset liability

Non-derivative financial - instruments Note === (Rupees in thousand) ---

Fixed rate instruments

Long term finances - secured 8 - 66,860 - 66,860

Foreign currency convertible bonds 11 - 5,032,036 - 3,610,587

Lease liability 10 - 178,822 - 183,668

Cash at bank 29 836 - 319 -

Variable rate instruments

Redeemable capital - secured 9 - (805,118) - 815,691
836 4,472,600 319 4,676,806

[
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41.7

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss. Therefore a
change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect statement of profit or loss.

Cash sensitiy nalysis variab nstrume

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased) profit for the year by the
amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant, The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2023.

Profit or loss 100 bps
2023 2022
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
=== (Rupees in thousand) ---

(8,051) 8,051 8,157 (8,157)

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the year and assets / liabilities of the
Company.

Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk).

Capital management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain
future development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital, as well as the level of dividends to ordinary
sharcholders. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders through repurchase of shares, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. The
Company monitors capital using a ratio of ‘net debt’ to ‘equity’. Net debt is calculated as total liabilities (as shown in the statement
of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents,

2023 2022
--- (Rupees in thousand) ---

Total liabilities 8,549,619 6,865,537
Less: cash and cash equivalents (19,636) (22,433)
Net debt 8,529,983 6,843,104
Total equity (1,677,513) (12,449)
Net debt to equity ratio (5.08) (549.67)

b
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41  Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The following table shows the ing amounts and fair values of financial instruments and non-financial instruments including their levels in the fair value hierarchy:
2 carrymg g

Financial instruments

30 June 2023

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Long term advances and deposits
Trade debts

Advances, deposits, prepayments
and other receivables

Cash and bank balances

Lease Receivable

Contract asset

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Long term finances - secured

Redeemable capital - secured (non-participatory)
Lease liability

Foreign currency convertible bonds - unsecured
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities

Accrued finance cost

T

30 June 2023
Carrying amount Fair value
Financial assets Thwaucial
= liabilities at Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
at amortised cost :
amortised cost
Note ~— (Rupees in thousand) —
13,619 - 13,619 - -
518,936 - 518,936 - -
85,709 - 85,709 - -
19,636 - 19,636 - -
114,742 - 114,742
356,817 - 356,817
42.2 1,109,459 - 1,109,459 - -
- 66,860 66,860 - -
- 805,118 805,118 - -
- 178,822 178,822 - -
- 5,032,036 5,032,036 - -
4 776,779 776,779 - -
- 1,348,745 1,348,745 - -
42.2 - 8,208,360 8,208,360 - -
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42.1 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Financial instruments

30 June 2022

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Long term advances and deposits
Trade debts

Advances, deposits, prepayments
and other receivables

Cash and bank balances

Lease Receivable

Contract asset

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Long term finances - secured

Redeemable capital - secured (non-participatory)
Lease liability

Foreign currency convertible bonds - unsecured
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities

Accrued finance cost

42.2 The Company has not disclosed the fair values of these financial

approximation of fair value.

™

Note

42.2

42.2

30 June 2022

Carrying amount

Financial assets at
amortised cost

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

Fair value

Total

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

13,619
703,149

73,077
22,433
109,165
356,817

13,619
703,149

73,077
22,433
109,165
356,817

--- (Rupees in thousand) ---

1,278,260

1,278,260

66,860
815,691
183,668

3,610,587
696,745
1,203,734

66,860
815,691
183,668

3,610,587
696,745
1,203,734

6,577,285

6,577,285
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43 Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executives

44

45

46

MU&.&DH

The aggregate amount charged in the unconsolidated financial statements for the year for remuneration, including all benefits to
the Chief Executive, Directors and Executives of the Company is as follows:

DIRECTORS
Chief Executive Executive Executives
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
--- (Rupees in thousand) ---

Managerial remuneration 7,600 7,600 2,726 2,726 7,146 7,321
House allowance 3,040 3,040 1,090 1,090 2,858 2,928
Utilities 760 760 273 273 715 732
Staff retirement benefit-Gratuity 950 950 341 341 893 915
Leave encashment 633 633 227 227 859 765
12,983 12,983 4,656 4,656 12,470 12,661
Number of persons 1 1 1 1 7 5

Number of employees 2023 2022

Total number of employees as at 30 June 136 136

132 160

Average number of employees during the year

Date of authorization for issue

06 00
These unconsolidated financial statements were authorized for issue on © ‘b e

Company.

Corresponding figures

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary,

there is no material changes / reclassification

ks

f iﬂ;aa' L)n’h
LULY
L '“‘!g"“’ by the Board of Directors of the

Chief Executive Officer

for better presentation and disclosure. However,

Chief Financial Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Pace Pakistan Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Pace Pakistan Limited (the Group),
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial positdon as at June 30, 2023, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity, the consolidated statement of cash flows fot the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information, (here-in-after referred to as “the consolidated financial statements™) and we state that we have
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary
for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion, except for the possible effect of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section
of our report, consolidated statement of financial position give a true and fair view of the state of the Group
as at June 30, 2023 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cashflows for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The Group's investment in Pace Barka Properties Limited, an associated company, accounted for by the equity
method, is carried at Rs 1,123.368 million on the consolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 2023
and the Pace Pakistan Limited’s share of Pace Barka Properties Limited’s net loss of Rs 54.643 million is included
in Pace Pakistan Limited’s loss for the year then ended. We were unable to obtain sufficient approprate audit
evidence about the carrying amount of Pace Pakistan Limited’s investment in Pace Barka Propetties Limited as
ar June 30, 2023 as the financial information of Pace Barka Properties Limited was neither finalized nor audited

by its anditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Awditor’s Responsibilities for
the Awdit of the consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Etbics jor Professional
Awountanss as adopted by the Insatute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilites 1n accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainty relating to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, which indicates that the Group has
accumulated losses amounting Rs 4,387.349 million as at June 30, 2023 and, as of that date, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs. 4,961.34 million. As stated in Note 2, these events or conditions,
along with other matters as set forth in Note 2, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter,

-
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Kev Audit Matters

Fh Independent member

V%" Morison Global

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the

context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Maeria/
Uncertainty Related to Going Concern Section, we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit

matters to be communicated 1n our report.

Following ate the Key audit martters:

Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Revenue
Refer to notes 6.15 and 30 to the consolidated
financtal statements.

The Group recognized revenue of Rs. 241.809 million
durng the year ended June 30, 2023, being both at a
point in time and over the time depending on the
nature of contracts with customer

We identfied recogmition of revenue as a key audit
matter because it mvolves the use of significant
judgement to evaluate whether the contracts has
commercial substance or not.

Further it involves judgement in evaluating whether
collectability of an amount of consideration is
probable.

Further there is an inherent dsk of fraud in revenue
recognition due to unptedictable way in which
management override of controls could occur making
it a significant risk

Our procedures included, but were not limited
to:

s Obtaining an understanding of the process
relating to revenue recognition and resting the
design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of relevant key intemal controls;

e assessing the approprateness of the Group’s
accounting policies for revenue recognition
and compliance of those policies with
applicable accounting standards; and

e performing test of detals procedures over
tevenue recorded and cost incurred on project
during the year;

e evaluating the adequacy of financial
disclosures, including disclosures of key
assumptions and judgements;

® proposing adjustment for revenue recorded,
where collectability of consideration 1s less
then probable;

® scanning for any manual joumal entdes
relating to revenue recorded during and near
the year end which were considered to be
material or met other specific nsk based
criteria for  inspecting underlying
documentation

Valuation of investment property
Refer to notes 6.5 and 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The investment property of the Group compmnse
freehold land and building on freehold land

As at 30 June 2023, the carrying value of investment
properties was at Rs 1,898.694 million

Our procedures included, but were not limited
1o;

e assessing the design and implementaton of the
controls over the valuation of investment
property and measutement of right of use asset
classified in investumnent property;

e Obnining an understanding of evaluation
process and assumption which the valuer has
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adopted to assess if they are consistent with the

The Group has adopted the fair value model for industry norms, market condition and general

valuation ofits investment properties. Under this said | Prevailing economic circumstances

model it is required to measure all investment . . )
® Confirming the valuation approach was in

accordance with the Intemnatonal Financial
reporting standards and suitable for use in
statement of profit and loss determining the fair value of propertes
classified as Investment property;

properties ar fair value at each reporting date.
Changes in fair value are recognized in consolidated

| We considered this as key audit marter due to the
significant carrying value of investment properties and | ® recalculating the fair value gain/loss on
significant judgements estimations involved in | InVestment property during the year;

determining the fair value )
| e Assessing the valuer’s competence and

capabilities

» Evaluating the adequacy of disclosures in the
financial statements, including the disclosures
in the financial statements, including
disclosures of key assumptions and judgements.

Information Other than consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other informaton. The other informaton comprises the information
included in the annual report for the year ended June 30, 2023, but does not include the consolidated and
consolidated financial statements and our auditot's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the ather informaton and we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

1n connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materally inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be marterially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directoss for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements
of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines Is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstaternent,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, managernent is responsible {or assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the poing concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the

Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.



Junaidy Shoaib Asad @ i\r&fgrji';gﬁﬁél‘éggi

Chartered Accountants

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
thar includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted 11 accordance with [SAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect 2 material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or etror and are consideted materal if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audic. We also:

e Identfy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obrain audit evidence that is sufficient and approptiate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not derecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from eror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
mistepresentatons, or the override of internal control,

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial staternents or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qut conclusions ate based on the audit evidence
obiained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern,

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including. any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identfy duting our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarcing independence, and to conununicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards,

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit marters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweish the public interest benefits of such communication,

-
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:
a) proper books of account have been kept by the Group as required by the Companies Act,
2017(XIX of 2017);

b) the consolidated statement of financial position, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in
conformity with the Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of
account and returns;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
putpose of the Group’s business; and

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980(XVIII of 1980).

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements of Pace Pakistan Limited for the year ended June 30, 2022, were audited
by another auditor whose report dated October 07, 2022 expressed an unmodified opinion with material
uncertainty relating to going concern,

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report 1s Shoaib Ahmad Waseem.

6 WA-RA Qb\/»wi N~
Junaidy Shoaii ad
Chartered Accountants

Lahore
UDIN: AR202310 196M_pjrec EVin
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Pace (Pakistan) Limited
Cornsolidated Statement of Firancial Position
As ar 30 June 2023

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Nore

Share capital and reserves

Authorised capital 7
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 7
Share premium 7
Revaluation Surplus

Accumulated loss

Non-controlling interests

Non-current liabilities

Long term finances - secured 8
Redeemable capital - secured (non-participatory) 9
Lease liability 10
Foreign currency convertible bonds - unsecured 11
Deferred liabilities 12
Deferred Taxation 13
Current liabilities

Contract liability 14
Current maturity of long term liabilities 15
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 16
Accrued finance cost 17
Contingencies and commitments 18

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an Integral part of these . \consolidated financial statements.

-
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Chief Executive Officer

2023

2022

--- (Rupees in thousand) —

6,000,000 6,000,000
2,788,766 2,788,766
287,307 287307
47,037 47,037
(4,387,349) (2,661,298)
(1,264,240) 461,813
87,030 87,030
(1,177,210) 548,842
149,662 151,176
49,157 46 424
62,904 62,904
261,723 260,504
248,894 219,730
5,933,174 4,525,630
864,529 757,042
1,348,745 1,203,734
8395342 6,706,136
7,479,855 7,515,482

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Investment property

Lease Receivable

Contract Asset

Investment in associate

Long term advances and deposits

Current assets

Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Advances, deposits, prepayments and
other receivables

Lease Receivable

Income tax refundable - net

Cash and bank balances

Direc:\x‘

Note

19
20
21
22
30.2
23
24

25
26

27
22
28
29

2023 2022

~- (Rupees in thousand) -—-
540,192 568,813
2,493 2,995
1,898,694 1,803,240
109,040 104,096
356,817 356,817
1,123,368 1,178,011
15,248 15,248
4,045,852 4,029,220
2,774,656 2,645,160
518,936 703,149
85,709 90,469
5,702 5,069
29,344 19,962
19,656 22,453
3,434,003 3,486,262
7,479,855 7.515,482

Chief Financial Officer




Pace (Pakistan) Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Revenue
Cost of Revenue
Gross Profit

Administrative and selling expenses
Other income

Other expenses

Loss from operations

Finance cost

Exchange gain/ (loss) on foreign currency convertible bonds
Gain from change in fair value of investment property

Share of profit/ (loss) from associate - net of tax

Profit/ (Loss) before Taxation

Taxation

Profit/ (Loss) after Taxation

Attributable to:

Owners of the Parent Company
Non-controlling interests

Earning/ (Loss) per share - basic and diluted

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these

*
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Note
30
31

32
33

34

112

35

36

2023

2022

--= (Rupees in thousand) ---

241,809 1,256,326
(118,789) (903,253)
123,020 353,072
(328,879) (287,569)
120,632 306,465
(85,227) 371,968
(182,541) (156,128)
(1,421,449) (818,893)
14,562 9,606
(54,643) (80,817)
(1,729,298) (674,264)
(3,023) (51,219)
(1,732,321) (725,482)
(1,732,321) (725,482)
(1,732,321) (725,482)
(6.21) (2.60)

consolidated financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer

Director

l4

Chief Financial Officer



Pace (Pakistan) Limited
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2023

2023 2022
Note --- (Rupees in thousand) ---

Loss for the year (1,732,321) (725,482)
Other comprehensive income for the year
Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss:

Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability 12 6,270 4,991

Share of profit/ (loss) in associate's defined benefit obligation - (1,941)

Share of revaluation surplus in associate's lease hold land - 257,098

Revaluation Surplus on transfer : - 47,037
Total comprehensive gain/ (loss) for the year (1,726,051) (418,298)
Attributable to:
Owners of the Parent Company (1,726,051) (418,298)
Non-controlling interests ' - -

(1,726,051) (418,298)

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these  consolidated Jinancial statements.
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Pace (Pakistan) Limited
Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Capital reserve

Revenue reserve

Total equity

Issued, subscribed Share . Share in reserves of Accumulated attributable to Non-controlling .
and paid-up capital premium Revaluation Surplus ussociates loss owners of the Parent Interests Total Equity
Company
— (Rupees in thousand) —

Balance as at 30 June 2021 2,788,766 273,265 - 14,042 (2,195,964) 880,109 87,030 967,139
Total comprehensive loss for the year ended 30 June 2022
Profit/ (Loss) after taxation E E - S (725 ,482) (725,482) E (725,482)
Other comprehensive income - - 47,037 - 260,148 307,185 - 307,185

» - 47,037 - (465334) (418.297) - (418,296)
Balance as at 30 June 2022 1,788,766 273,265 47,037 14,042 (2,661,298) 461,812 87,030 548,842
Total comprehensive loss for the year ended 30 Jupe 2023
Profit/ (Loss) after taxation - - J - - (1,732,321) (1,732,321) - (1,732,321)
Other comprehensive income - =_ - - 6,270 6,270 - 6,270

= = = = (1,726,051) (1,726,051) % (1,726,051)
Balance as at 30 June 2023 2,788,766 273,265 47,037 14,042 (4,387349) (1,264,239) 87,030 (1,177,210)
The annexed notes from | to 46 form an integral part of these  consolidated financial statements.
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Pace (Pakistan) Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
I'or the year ended 30 June 2023

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash (used in) operations

Gratuity paid

Taxes paid

Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of investment property

Income on bank deposits received

Net cash used in from investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities

Long term loan paid during the year
Payments of lease liability
Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents - at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents - at end of the year

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these

r
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Note

37

33

38

2023

2022

--- (Rupees in thousand) ---

115,515 707,352
(700) .
(12,405) (9,762)
102,410 697,590

. 6,583
(80,894) (490,186)
120 263
(80,774) (483,340)
(10,573) (149,716)
(13,860) (62,345)
(24,433) (212,061)
(2,797) 2,189
22,453 20,263
19,656 22,453

consolidated financial statements.
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Pace (Pakistan) Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2023

1 The Group and its operations

The Group comprises of ;

Parent Company

2023 2022
(Direct holding percentage)

Pace (Pakistan) Limited 1.1

Subsidiary Companies

Pace Gujrat (Private) Limited 100% 100%

Pace SuperMall (Private) Limited 56.79% 56.79%

Pace Woodland (Private) Limited 52% 52%

Associate Company

Pace Barka Properties Limited 24.86% 24.86%

1.1 Pace (Pakistan) Limited (‘the Parent Company') is a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan under the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017) and is listed on Pakistan Stock
Exchange. The Company is engaged to build, acquire, manage and sell condominiums, departmental stores,
shopping plazas, super markets, utility stores, housing societies, plot and other properties and to carry out
commercial, industrial and other related activities in and out of Pakistan. The registered office of the Company
is situated at First Capital House, 96-B/1, Lower Ground Floor, M.M. Alam Road, Gulberg-III, Lahore.
Furthermore, the Company is managing the following plazas:

Sr. No.  Business Unit Geographical Location
1 Gulberg Plaza 124/E-1 Main Boulevard Gulberg 111, Lahore
2 Model Town Plaza 38, 38/A, 39 & 40, Block P, Model Town Link Road, Lahore
3 Fortress Plaza Bridge Point Plaza, Fortress Stadium, Lahore Cantt.
4 MM Alam Road Plaza 96-B-I, M.M Alam Road, Gulberg I11, Lahore
5 Gujranwala Plaza Mouza Dhola Zarri, Main GT Road Gujranwala
6 Gujrat Plaza Mouza Ado-Wal, G.T Road, Tehsil & District, Gujrat
7 Pace Tower 27-H College Road Gulberg II Lahore

1.2 Pace Supermall (Private) Limited
Pace Supermall (Private) Limited (a subsidiary company) was incorporated on 27 March 2003 as a private
limited company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017). The
registered office of the Company is situated at 124 E-1, Gulberg 111, Lahore. The principal activity of the
Company is to acquire by purchase or otherwise land and plots and to sell or construct, lease, hire and manage
buildings, shopping malls, super markets, utility stores, plazas, shopping arcades etc.

1.3 Pace Woodlands (Private) Limited

Pace Woodlands (Private) Limited (a subsidiary company) was incorporated in Pakistan on 27 July 2004 as a
private limited company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017). The
registered office of the Company is situated at 124 E-1, Gulberg III, Lahore. The principal activity of the
Company is to acquire by purchase or otherwise land and plots and to sell or construct, lease, hire and manage
buildings, supper markets, utility stores, plazas, shopping arcades etc.

L



Pace (Pakistan) Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

2

Going Concern Assumption

The Group has incurred loss before tax of Rs, 1729.30 million (2022: Rs. -674.26). Decrease in loss is mainly driven
by exchange gain/ (loss) of Rs, -1421.45 million in 2023 versus Rs. (818.89) million in 2022 on the foreign currency
convertible bonds issued by the Parent Company.

At the reporting date, current liabilities of the Group have exceeded its current assets by Rs. 4,961.34 million (2022:
Rs. 3219.87 million), and accumulated (losses) of the Group stand at Rs. (4,387.35) million (2022: Rs. (2661.30)
million). Due to liquidity issues the Group has not been able to meet various obligations towards its lenders, including
repayment of principal and mark-up thereon in respect of its borrowings. The construction activity on the project has
also been very slow due to unavailability of enough financial resources causing a delay in the completion of Pace
Tower, total estimated cost of completion of Pace Tower is Rs. 321.06 million. These conditions indicate the existence
of a material uncertainty related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubts on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and, therefore, it may be unable to realize it assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business. )

The management has prepared an assessment which covers at least twelve months from the reporting date and believes
that the following measures, if implemented effectively, will generate sufficient financial resources for the continuing

operations:
Construction of Pace Tower has also been started and management is confident that it will complete Pace Tower

Project by the end of 2024 and is actively engaged to find buyers for the sale of remaining floors/ apartments in Pace
Tower. Management is also taking necessary steps for the sale of its inventory in Pace Circle,

Further, company is about to start sale of its Shadman project through zameen.com, one of the leading real estate sale
agency of Pakistan. In addition, company has saleable inventory in the form of Islamabad plots, the palm and various
shops in pace shopping malls. The management is expected to generate Rs. 3,322/- million over the period of three
years from sale of these inventories. The proceeds from these sales will help to improve the operating cash flows of the
Company and to settle its obligations.

Furthermore, the Chief Executive, Mrs. Aamna Taseer and Directors, Mr. Shahbaz Ali Taseer and Mr., Shehryar Ali
Taseer have jointly provided a letter of support dated 8 September 2023 to the Company wherein they have committed
to support the Company to continue as a going concern.

In addition, the management of the company has changed its shopping mall structure to shared office structure. This
results in high inflows in form of rentals. -

Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and do not include any
adjustments relating to the realization of assets and liquidation/ settlement of any liabilities that might be necessary
should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern.

Basis of preparation

3.1 Consolidated financial statements

These consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and its
subsidiary companies as at 30 June 2023.

Subsidiary Companies

The financial statements of the subsidiary companies have been consolidated on a line-by-line basis and the
carrying values of the investments held by the Parent Company have been eliminated against the shareholders'
equity in the subsidiary companies.

Ay



Pace (Pakistan) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

3.2

3.3

3.4

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the Parent Company,
using consistent accounting policies.

All intracompany balances, transactions, income and expenses and profits and losses resulting from
intracompany transactions that are recognized in assets, are eliminated in full.

The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and
liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly atiributable to the acquisition,
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any non-controlling
interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the group's share of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.

Non-Controlling Interests
Non-controlling interest is that part of net results of operations and of net assets of the subsidiaries which are
not owned by the Parent Company either directly or indirectly. Non-controlling interest is presented as a
separate item in the consolidated financial statements. The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with
non-controlling interests as transactions with parties external to the Group.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control. The Group's share of
its associate's post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, and its
share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment, When the Group's share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associates.

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the provisions
of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Basis of measurement

These Consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the
following:

- Investment property which is measured at fair value; and
- Retirement benefits at present value.
Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees ("Rs.") which is the Group's
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated.

-
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Pace (Pakistan) Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

4

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved International Financial Reporting Standards
that are not yet effective

4.1 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that may be relevant to the
Company and adopted in the current year

The Company has adopted the following new standards, amendments to published standards and
interpretations of IFRSs which became effective during the current year.

New or Revised Standard or Interpretation

Amendments to accounting and reporting standards and interpretations which are effective during the year

ended June 30, 2023
LIICTC dI'c Ceridlii new Stdnadrds, lIllCl’pI't:lﬂl.lUllS dIld dineiuienns w appruvr:u ‘dUCUI.lllI.].llB Stdilddrus wiici dare

mandatory for the Company’s accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2023 but are considered not to
be relevant or have any significant effect on the Company’s financial reporting.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that may be relevant but not yet
effective and not early adopted by the Company

The following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations would be effective from
the dates mentioned below against the respective standard or interpretation.

Effective Date

Standard or Interpretation (Annual periods beginning
on or after)

IAS 1 - Non-current Liabilities with Covenants January 1, 2024
IFRS 16 - Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback January 1, 2024
Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS January 1, 2024
Practice Statement 2)
IAS 7 and IFRS 7 - Supplier Finance Arrangements January 1, 2024

The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of these Standards, amendments and interpretations to
the published standards on the financial statements of the Company.

4.2 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet notified by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

In addition to the above, following standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the

SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.
Effective Date

(Annual periods beginning
on or after)

- IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 1, 2023

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under circumstances, and the results of which form the basis
for making judgment about carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual resuits may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the Group's consolidated financial statements or where
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Pace (Pakistan) Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

judgment was exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

5.1 Estimates
Note

- Provision for taxation 6.2
- Property, plant and equipment 6.3
- Intangibles 6.4
- Investment property valuation 6.5
- Stock-in-trade 6.6
- Employee benefits 6.13
- Measurement of ECL allowance for trade debts 6.16.5
- Impairment on non-financial assets 6.17
- Contingent liabilities 6.18

5.2 Judgements
- Costs to complete the projects 6.6
- Satisfaction of performance obligations 6.15

6  Significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

-

t



Pace (Pakistan) Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

6.1

Consolidation

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They do not
form part of the consolidated financial statements from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, regardless of whether
equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the following:

- fair values of the assets transferred;

- liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business;

- equity interests issued by the Group;

- fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement; and

- fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are,
with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the:
- consideration transferred;
- amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity and;
- acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity over the fair value
of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the

fair value of the net identifiable assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised
directly in the statement of profit and loss account as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s incremental
borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financing
company under comparable terms and conditions.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or
losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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Pace (Pakistan) Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Non-controlling interest in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the statement of profit
or loss, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of financial position respectively.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the
date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in statement of profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequent accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This mean that amounts previously recognised in consolidated other comprehensive
income are reclassified to statement of profit or loss.

Goodwill is initially measured as excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the fair value of
the non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If this
consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised in consolidated consolidated statement of profit or loss account and other comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transactions provide an evidence of impairment of
the transferred asset. When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with
the Group’s accounting policies. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis the Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests' proportionate share of
acquiree's net assets. Accounting policies of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The difference between fair
value of any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

When the Group ceases to have control any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the
date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in statement of profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to statement of profit or loss.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control or joint control. This
is generally the case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised at cost in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in the statement of profit
or loss, and the Group’s share of movements in other comprehensive income of the investee in consolidated
other comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from associates and joint ventures are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.
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Pace (Pakistan) Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

6.2

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations
or made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associate have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to
share of profit / (loss) of associates in the statement of profit or loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in statement of profit or loss
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current

Provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the
prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using enacted or substantially
enacted at the reporting date and after taking into account tax credits, rebates and exemptions, if any. The
charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in
previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not
recognized for:

- temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a
business combination and that affects neither accountin g nor taxable profit or loss;

- temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to
the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can
be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on the reversal of relevant taxable temporary differences.
If the amount of taxable temporary differences is insufficient to recognize a deferred tax asset in full, then
future taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of existing temporary differences, are considered. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realized; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognized to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.

-
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Pace (Pakistan) Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

6.3

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they
reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. For
this purpose, the carrying amount of investment property measured at fair value is presumed to be recovered
through sale, and the Group has not rebutted this presumption.

Property, plant and equipment

Owned

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment
loss except for freehold land which is stated at cost less any identified impairment losses. Cost comprises
purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and
rebates, and includes other costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably, Major repairs and improvements are capitalized. Al other repair and
maintenance costs are charged to statement of profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised as an income or expense.

Depreciation on owned assets is charged to the statement of profit or loss on the reducing balance method
except for building on leasehold land which is being depreciated using straight line method, so as to write off
the cost of an asset over its estimated useful life at the annual rates given in note 19.1,

The assets' residual values and estimated useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if
impact on depreciation is significant. The Group's estimate of the useful lives and residual values of its

Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the month in which an asset is
acquired or capitalised while no depreciation is charged in the month of disposal.

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that property, plant and equipment
may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether
they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed the respective
recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. Where an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation charge is adjusted in
the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life.

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
include the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the rates specified in note 19.3 to the financial statements.

Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, less any identified impairment loss. Capital work in progress
represents expenditure on property, plant and equipment in the course of construction and installation.
Transfers are made to relevant category of property, plant and equipment as and when assets are available for
intended use.

—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

6.4

6.6

Intangible assets

Computer Software

Expenditure incurred to acquire computer software is capitalized as an intangible asset and stated at cost less
accumulated amortization (for finite useful life of intangible asset) and any identified impairment loss.
Amortization is charged to statement of profit or loss on reducing balance method at an annual rate of 10%
except optical fiber, as to write off the cost over its estimated useful life.

Optical Fiber

Expenditure incurred to acquire the rights to use optical fiber are capitalized as intangible assets and stated at
cost less accumulated amortization and any identified impairment loss. Amortization is charged to statement of
profit or loss on straight line basis method at an annual rate of 5%, as to write off the cost over its estimated

useful life.

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that intangible asset may be
impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amount of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are
recorded in excess of their recoverable amount, Where carrying values exceed the respective recoverable
amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. Where an impairment loss is recognised, the amortisation charge is adjusted in the future
periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life.

Investment property

Investment property is a property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but
not for sale in ordinary course of business, use in production or supply of goods or services as for
administrative purpose. Investment property comprises freehold land and buildings on freehold land.
Investment property is carried at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized in consolidated statement of

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property because its use has been changed,
any difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is recognised
in equity as a revaluation reserve for investment property. However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous
impairment loss, the gain is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss. Upon the disposal of such
investment property, any surplus previously recorded in equity is transferred to retained earnings, the transfer
is not made through the consolidated statement or profit or loss.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied or stock-in-trade, it is reclassified as property, plant and
equipment or stock-in-trade and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting
purposes for subsequent recording,

Stock-in-trade

Land, condominiums, shops / counters and villas available for future sale are classified as stock-in-trade. These
are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Work-in-process comprises of condominiums, shops /
counters and villas in the process of construction / development. Cost in relation to work-in-process comprises
of proportionate cost of land, cost of direct materials, labour and appropriate overheads. Cost in relation to
shops transferred from investment property is the fair value of the shops on the date of transfer and any
subsequent expenditures incurred thereon.

Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs necessary
to be incurred in order to make the sale.
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6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

Trade debts

Trade debts and other receivables are classified at amortized cost and are measured at invoice value less
impairment allowance, if any. Trade debts where the ownership of the work in progress is transferred by the
Group to the buyer as the construction progresses is recognised using the percentage of completion method.
An impairment allowance i.e. expected credit loss is calculated based on actual credit loss experience over the
past years and loss given default. The impairment allowance is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at amortised cost. For the purpose
of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, call deposits receipts, other short
term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of change in value, and short term finance.

Borrowings

Borrowings are classified as 'financial liabilities at amortized cost'. On initial recognition, these are measured
at cost, being fair value at the date the liability is incurred, less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost with any difference between cost and value at maturity
recognized in statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group. has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least twelve months after the statement of financial position date.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are retranslated to the
functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated again at the reporting date.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset, the Group uses the definition of a lease in IFRS 16.

As a lessee

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative stand-alone prices. However,
for the leases of property the Group has elected not to separate non-lease components and account for the lease
and non-lease components as a single lease component.

~—
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The Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-
use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate
of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date
to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Group by the
end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase
option. In that case the right-of-use asset will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which
is determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is
periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate
as the discount rate.

The Group determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from various external
financing sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and type of the asset leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
- fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

- variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

- amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

- the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise, lease
payments in an optional renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably certain not to
terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the
Group's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the Group changes
its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if there is a revised in-
substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in ‘property, plant and equipment and investment properties’ based on
their use and lease liabilities as separate line item in the statement of financial position,

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low-value assets
and short-term leases. The Group recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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6.13

6.14

As a lessor

At inception or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative standalone prices.

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease,

To classify each lease, the Group makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers substantially all of
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case, then the lease is a
finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the Group considers certain
indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the economic life of the asset.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease
separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from
the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short-term lease to which the
Group applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease,

The Group applies the derecognition and impairment requirements in IFRS 9 to the net investment in the lease.
The Group further regularly reviews estimated unguaranteed residual values used in calculating the gross
investment in the lease.

The Group recognizes lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term as part of ‘other revenue’.

Employee benefits

The Group operates an unfunded gratuity plan covering all of its eligible employees who have completed the
minimum qualifying period. The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed by qualified actuary by
using the projected unit credit method and charge for the year other than on account of experience adjustment
is included in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on
plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized
immediately in other comprehensive income. The Group determines the net interest expense (income) on the
net defined liability / (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then - net defined benefit liability / (asset) during the
period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to
defined benefit plans are recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The Group provides for accumulating compensated absences when the employees render service that increase
the entitlement to future compensated absences. Under the rules all employees are entitled to 20 days leave per
year, respectively. Unutilised leaves can be accumulated upto unlimited amount. Unutilised leaves can be used
at any time by all employees, subject to the Group's approval.

Provisions are made annually to cover the obligation for accumulating compensated absences based on
actuarial valuation and are charged to statement of profit or loss.

Creditors, accruals and other liabilities

Creditors, accruals and other liabilities are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid
in future for goods and services received whether or not billed to the Group. Exchange gains and losses arising
on translation in respect of liabilities in foreign currency are added to the carrying amount of the respective
liabilities.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
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6.15
6.15.1

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control over a good or service to a customer based on a five
step model as set out in IFRS 15.

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more
parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that
must be met.

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a
contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration the Group
expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to a customer,
excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract
that has more than one performance obligation, the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled to in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognize revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies a performance obligation.

The Group satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria
is met:

- the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs; or

- the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the assel is
created or enhanced; or

- the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance obligation completed to date,

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point
in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

When the Group satisfies a performance obligation by delivering the promised goods or services it creates a
contract asset based on the amount of consideration earned by the performance. Where the amount of
consideration received from a customer exceeds the amount of revenue recognised this gives rise to a contract
liability.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes and duty. The Group assesses its revenue
arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting as principal or agent, The Group has
concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangements except for service income earned on
security, janitorial maintenance, administration and other utilities,

Development services

Revenue from rendering of development management services is recognised when the outcome of the
transaction can be estimated reliably, by reference to the stage of completion of the development obligation at
the reporting date. Where the outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent
that the expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered.

The Group has elected to apply the input method. The Group considers that the use of input method, which
requires revenue recognition on the basis of the Group’s efforts to the satisfaction of the performance
obligation, provides the best reference to revenue actually earned.

Iy



Pace (Pakistan) Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

6.15.2

6.16
6.16.1

6.16.2

Sale of properi

Revenue from sale of land, condominiums, shops / counters and villas is recognised at point in time- when the
control has been transferred to the customer. The control is usually transferred when possession is handed over
to the customer.

Display of advertisements

Advertisement income is received by the Group against available space in Group's property provided to the
customer for advertisement purpose. Income from display of advertisements is recognised over time as the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group as the Group performs,

Service charges
Service charges are recognised in the accounting period in which services are rendered. Service income in
respect of security, janitorial maintenance, administration and other utilities is presented on net basis.

Other revenue

Rental income from lease of investment property

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is charged based on area lease out and
recognised, net of discount, in accordance with the terms of lease contracts over the lease term on a straight-
line basis, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from

the leased asset.

Financial instruments
Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial liability
is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss ('FVTPL') ,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.

Classification and subsequent measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost; fair value through other
comprehensive income ('FVOCI') — debt investment; FVOCI — equity investment; or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group changes its
business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the
first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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6.16.3

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as
at FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis.
All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at
FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI
as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component that is initially
measured at the transaction price) is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition.

The following accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets at amortised cost.

Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend
income, are recognized in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortized cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, The amortized
cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using the effective interest
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Other net gains and
losses are recognized in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit

or loss.

Equity investments at FVYOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in profit or loss
unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and
losses are recognized in OCI and are never reclassified to statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition
Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all
of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the

financial asset.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised in its statement of financial position,
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In these cases, the
transferred assets are not derecognised.
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6.16.4

6.16.5

6.17

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire, The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to seftle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment
The Group recognises loss allowances for ECLs in respect of financial assets measured at amortised cost.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for bank balance for which
credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, which are measured at 12-month ECLs.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an mount equal to lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information
and analysis, based on the Group's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-
looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than past
due for a reasonable period of time. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from
default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the
expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months). The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLSs is the maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount
of the assets,

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group has no reasonable expectations of
recovering of a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof, The Group individually makes an assessment
with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of
recovery. The Group expects no significant recovery from the amount written off, However, financial assets
that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group's
procedures for recovery of amounts due,

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Group's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any objective evidence that an asset or group of assets may be impaired, If any such evidence
exists, the asset's or group of assets' recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized
whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of
value in use and fair value less cost to sell. Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

-
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6.18

6.19

6.20

6.21

Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is disclosed when:
- There is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group; or

- There is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of
the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, is a committee comprising of the Chief Executive Officer
and the Chief Financial Officer.

Dividend

Dividend to ordinary shareholders is recognized as a deduction from accumulated profit in consolidated
statement of changes in equity and as a liability in the Group’s financial statements in the year in which it is
declared by the Group’s shareholders.

Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting basic EPS with weighted average number of ordinary shares that would
be issued on conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares and post-tax effect of
changes in profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group that would result from conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.
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2023 2022 2023 2022
-=- (Rupees in thousand) ~-- === (Number of Shares) —-

7 Share capital, reserves and non-controlling interests

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

5 |

Authorised capital

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 6,000,000 6,000,000 600,000,000 600,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

fully paid in cash 2,017,045 2,017,045 201,704,516 201,704,516

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

issued as bonus shares 771,721 771,721 77,172,088 77,172,088
2,788,766 2,788,766 278,876,604 278,876,604

Ordinary shares of the Parent Company held by associated undertakings are as follows:

2023 2022
Basis of Relationship === (Number of Shares) ---
First Capital Securities Corporation
Limited Common Directorship 7,504,915 7,504,915
First Capital Equities Limited Common Directorship 7,600,000 7,600,000
15,104,915 15,104,915

There has been no movement in ordinary share capital issued, subscribed and paid-up during the year ended 30 June
2021.

2023 2022
—- (Rupees in thousand) ---

Reserves
Share premium reserve 273,265 273,265
Share in reserves of associate 14,042 14,042

287,307 287,307
This reserve can only be utilized by the Group for the purpose specified in Section 81 (2) of the Companies Act, 2017.
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7.6

Non-controlling interests

The following table summarizes the information relating to each of the Group's subsidiaries that have a NCI.

30-Jun-23
Rupees in thousands

INCI percentage (effective ratio)

Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilties

Net assets
Carrying amount of NCI

Revenue

Loss after taxation
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive loss allocated to NCI

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Net movement in cash and cash equivalents

30-Jun-22
Rupees in thousands

NCI percentage (effective ratio)

Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilties

Net assets
Carrying amount of NCI
Revenue

Loss after taxation
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive loss allocated to NCI

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Net movement in cash and cash equivalents

T

Pace Supermall  Pace Woodlands Total
31.2% 48%
- 1,630
354,600 53
(23,429) (35,467)
331,171 (33,784)
103,325 (16,298) 87,027
31.2% 48%
- 1,630
354,600 53
(23,429) (35,467)
331,171 (33,784)
103,325 (16,298) 87,030
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2023 2022
Note --- (Rupees in thousand) ---
8 Long term finances - secured
Pak Iran Joint Investment Company 8.1 66,860 66,860
Less: Current maturity presented under current liabilities (66,860) (66,860)

8.1

8.1.2

Pak Iran Joint Investment Company

On 28 December 2016, Pak Iran Joint Investment Company ('PAIR') and the Parent Company entered into Debt Asset
Swap / Liabilities Settlement Agreement ('SA") for settlement of entire principal along with accrued mark-up aggregating
to Rs. 172.31 million. The settlement was partly made against property situated at mezzanine floor of Pace Tower
measuring 5,700 square feet along with car parking area rights for 7 cars in basement No. 2 amounting to Rs. 105.45
million. In accordance with the SA, PAIR purchased the aforementioned properties from the Parent Company. Pursuant
to the SA, on 28 December 2016, the Parent Company and PAIR executed sale deed and possession of the property was
handed over to PAIR. The Parent Company and PAIR also agreed that PAIR will continue to hold its charge over Pace
M.M Alam up till repayment of the balance outstanding amount.

Terms of repayment

In accordance with the settlement agreement, the remaining outstanding mark-up of Rs. 66.86 million has been
rescheduled and is payable over a period of 7 years with no mark-up starting from 28 December 2016 after expiry of
moratorium period of 3 years, in 16 quarterly instalments. Amortized cost has been determined using effective interest
rate of 6% per annum. Movement is as follows:

2023 2022
Note ~-= (Rupees in thousand) ---
As at beginning of the year 66,860 66,860
Unwinding of notional interest - .
Adjustment on account of default 8121 - -
As at end of the year 66,860 66,860
Security

The restructured amount is secured by mortgage amounting to the sum of Rs. 142.86 million on the property being piece
and parcel of land located at Plot no. 96/B-1, Gulberg III, Lahore measuring 4 kanals and 112 square feet along with
structures, superstructures and appurtenances including shops/counters having area measuring 20,433 square feet. The
charge ranks parri passu with that of National Bank of Pakistan to the extent of Rs. 66.67 million.
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8.1.2.1 Default

8.2

8.2.1

8.2.2

8.2.3

The moratorium period as per the rescheduling agreement ended on 31 December 2019 and the first quarterly installment
was due on 01 January 2020. Parent Company made a default in repayment of the installment and no repayment was
made till 30 June 2020. Pace, through its letter dated 17 July 2020, requested PAIR to defer the repayment plan for 24
months. However, no response from PAIR is received yet. Accordingly, we have classified the total balance outstanding
as current liability as per the requirements of IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statement.

Syndicate term finance facility

In the preceding years, the Parent Company settled the principal and accrued mark up of the below mentioned facilities
with properties at Pace Tower:

National Bank of Pakistan

On 04 December 2015 National Bank of Pakistan (NBP') and the Parent Company entered into the Debt Asset Swap /
Liabilities Settlement Agreement ("SA") for full and final settlement of NBP's portion of Syndicate Term Finance Facility
('STFF') and Term finance along with their accrued mark-up aggregating to Rs. 398.71 million against property situated at
upper ground floor, mezzanine floor and basement of Pace Tower measuring 18,525 square feet. According to clause F of
the SA, NBP purchased the aforementioned properties of Rs. 332.11 million and waived accrued mark-up of Rs. 66.60
million. Pursuant to the SA, on 30 December 2015 the Parent Company and NBP executed sale deed, wherein the area
was enhanced to 20,800 square feet against relaxation of certain condition under SA and possession of the property was
handed over to NBP. The Parent Company and NBP also agreed that NBP will continue to hold its charge on Pace Tower
except for the podium level and later it will take over charge being vacated by PAIR Investment Company Limited as a
result of settlements,

Habib Bank Limited

On 16 December 2015 Habib Bank Limited ('HBL') and the Parent Company entered into Debt Asset Swap / Liabilities
Settlement Agreement ('SA') for settlement of HBL's portion of Syndicated Term Finance Facility ('STFF") along with the
accrued mark-up aggregating to Rs. 178.81 million against property situated at ground floor of Pace Tower and third floor
of Pace Model Town (extension) measuring 4,238 square feet and 431 square feet, respectively. In accordance with the
SA, HBL purchased the aforementioned properties form the Parent Company for a consideration of Rs. 106.90 million
and waived accrued mark-up of Rs. 71.91 million. Pursuant to the SA, on 30 December 2015, the Parent Company and
HBL executed sale deed and possession of the properties was handed over to HBL. The Parent Company and HBL also
agreed that HBL will continue to hold its charge over 21 floors i.e. from Ist to 21st floors in Pace Tower until the
finishing work on aforementioned property in Pace Tower is complete.

National Bank of Pakistan - term finance

During the year ended 30 June 2016, NBP and the Parent Company settled the entire principal and accrued mark-up
together with its portion of Syndicated Term Finance Facility against property situated at Pace Tower.

-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

2023 2022
Note ~=- (Rupees in thousand) ---
9  Redeemable capital - secured (non-participatory)
Term finance certificates 9.1 (815,691) 935,571
Settlement during the year (10,573) (119,880)
805,118 815,691
Less: Current maturity presented under current liabilities (805,118) (815,691)

9.1

Terms finance certificate

This represents term finance certificates (TFC's) listed on Lahore Stock Exchange before integration of Pakistan Stock
Exchange issued for a period of 5 years. On 27 September 2010, the Parent Company completed the restructuring of its
term finance certificates. Restructuring was duly approved by majority of TFC holders holding certificates in aggregate of
51.73 %, through extraordinary resolution passed in writing. Consequent to the approval of TFC holders, addendum to
the trust deed was executed between the Parent Company and trustee 'IGI Investment Bank Limited' (now 'IGI Holdings
Limited') under which the Parent Company was allowed one and a half year grace period along with an extension of four
years in the tenure of TFC issue and consequently, the remaining tenure of TFC shall be six and a half years effective
from 15 August 2010. The TFC's carry a mark-up of 6 months KIBOR plus 2% (2019: 6 months KIBOR plus 2%) and is
payable semi-annually in arrears. The Parent Company could not repay on a timely basis, the instalments due as per the
revised schedule of repayment and is not compliant with certain debt covenants which represents a breach of the
respective agreement, therefore, the entire outstanding amount has been classified as a current liability under guidance
contained in IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements. The Parent Company is in negotiation with the TFC holders
and the trustee for relaxation in payment terms and certain other covenants.

During last year, Pakistan Stock Exchange through its letter (Ref No. PSX/Gen-5683) dated 19 November 2019
instructed the Parent Company to appraise them regarding measures taken for removal of default of payment of principal
amount, markup and restructuring of the TFCs by 25 November 2019, Consequently, the Parent Company has submitted
its reply to the Pakistan Stock Exchange on 25 November 2019 has intimated the Exchange that it is currently negotiating
with the TFC holders for settlement of outstanding liabilities and for relaxation in payment terms and that a settlement
proposal shared in the meeting held on 18 March 2018 with the TFC holders. However, despite the three reminders sent
by the Trustee, response of the TFC holders is still pending.

The TFCs are still in the defaulter segment due to non compliance which could result in delisting of TFCs under Pakistan
Stock Exchange Regulations.
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10

9.2

9.3

Security

The TFC's are secured by a first exclusive charge by way of equitable mortgage on the Company's properties situated at
124/E-1, Main Boulevard Gulberg III, Lahore, 38-A and 39 Block P, Model Town, Lahore, G.T. Road Gujrat, G.T.
Road, Gujranwala, and first exclusive hypothecation charge over certain specific fixed assets, to the extent of Rs.2,000

million.

Settlement with Askari Bank Limited

On 07 February 2018, Askari Bank Limited (‘Bank’) and the Parent Company entered into Debt Asset Swap Agreement
for full and final settlement of outstanding amount of TFCs along with their accrued mark-up against fifth and sixth floor
of Pace Tower measuring 14,903 square feet and 6,731 square feet respectively. In accordance with the terms of the
agreement, the Bank purchased the aforementioned floors for Rs. 185.93 million as full and final settlement. Furthermore,
the Bank provided financial relief of suspended mark- up amounting to Rs. 89.29 million along with future mark-up upon
completion of certain terms and conditions on or before 30 June 2019. The terms and conditions of the agreement have
not been complied with, consequently, the impact of financial relief has not been accounted for in the financial

statements.

Settlement of TFCs
During the year, the Company has entered into settlement agreement with TFCs holder for the settlement of principal
amounting to Rs. 20 million and TFCs holder provided financial relief by suspending markup of Rs. 30.06 million.

2023 2022
Note -=- (Rupees in thousand) ---

Lease liability
Present value of lease payments 10.1 178,822 183,668
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities (29,160) (32,492)

149,662 151,176
Movement during the year is as follows:
Opening balance as at 01 July 183,668 180,043
Additions during the year - =
Unwinding of notional interest 24,733 23,475
Reclassified to accrued liabilities (15,720) (7,513)
Settlement of lease liability (4,567) -
Lease rentals paid (9,294) (15,249)
Closing balance as at 30 June 178,821 180,756

10.1

On 17 October 2018, Orix Leasing Company (‘plaintiff) has filed a case in Banking Court VII against the Parent
Company. The plaintiff filed a suit claiming an amount of Rs. 47.10 million on account of loss in business of the
plaintiff. The amount claimed by the plaintiff has already been booked in these consolidated financial statements.
However, as per legal advisor of the Parent Company there are meritorious grounds to defend the claim.
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11

Foreign

Opening balance
Mark-up accrued during the year g

Exchange (gain)/ loss for the year

Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities

11.2

2023 2022

Note === (Rupees in thousand) ---

currency convertible bonds - unsecured

2,764,027
27,667
2,791,694
818,893

3,610,587

3,610,587
1,421,449
5,032,036 3,610,587
(5,032,036) (3,610,587)

11.2

On 27 December 2007, BNY Corporate Trustee Services Limited incorporated in United Kingdom with its registered
office at One Canada Square, London E14 5AL and the Parent Company entered into an agreement that the Parent
Company issue 25,000 convertible bonds of USD 1,000 each amounting to USD 25 million. The foreign currency
convertible bonds (FCCB) were listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange and became redeemable on 28 December 2012 at
the accreted principal amount. The bonds carry a mark-up of 5.5% per annum, compounded semi-annually, accretive (up
till 28 December 2012) and cash interest of 1% per annum to be paid in arrears. The holders of the bonds had an option to
convert the bonds into equity shares of the Company at any time following the issue date till the maturity date at a price
calculated as per terms of arrangement. As at 30 June 2021, USD 13 million bonds have been converted into the ordinary
shares of the Parent Company and remaining USD 12 million bonds along with related interest have not been repaid by

the Group.

As the fair value calculated for the financial instrument is quite subjective and cannot be measured reliably, consequently
the bonds have been carried at cost and includes accreted mark-up.

This represents exchange (gain)/ loss arising on translation of foreign currency convertible bonds,

Deferred liabilities

Staff gratuity
Leave encashment

-~

t

2023 2022
Note === (Rupees in thousand) ---
12.1 48,043 44,726
12.2 1,114 1,698
49,157 46,424




Pace (Pakistan) Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

12.1  Staff gratuity
Balance as at 01 July

Included in statement of profit or loss:
Service cost
Interest cost

Included in statement of comprehensive income:
Remeasurements:
Actuarial loss from changes in financial assumptions
Experience adjustments

Other:
Benefits due but not paid (payable)
Benefits paid
Balance as at 30 June
Charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of revenue
Administrative and selling expenses

Plan Assets

Note

31.3
32

2023

2022

-=- (Rupees in thousand) ---

44,726 42,924
5,037 7,514
5,880 4,054

10,917 11,568

268 295

(6,537) (5,285)

(6,269) (4,990)
¥ (4,776)

(1,330) -
(1,330) (4,776)

48,044 44,726
4,367 4,627
6,550 6,941

10,917 11,568

The Group is operating an unfunded gratuity scheme and has not invested any amount for meeting the liabilities of the

scheme.

12.2 Leave encashment
Balance as at 01 July

Included in statement of profit or loss:
Service cost
Experience adjustments
Interest cost

Included in statement of comprehensive income:
Remeasurements:
Actuarial loss from changes in financial assumptions
Experience adjustments

Other:
Benefits due but not paid (payable)
Benefits paid

Balance as at 30 June

e

Note

2023

2022

--- (Rupees in thousand) ---

1,698 1,608
181 168
(990) 456
225 128
(584) 752
5 (662)
. (662)
1,114 1,698
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12.3

12.4

12.5

Charge for the year has been allocated to administrative and selling expenses.

Plan Assets

The Group has not invested any amount for meeting the liabilities of the scheme.

Actuarial assumptions

2023 2022
. Leave : Leave
Gratuity encashment Crandlty encashment
Discount rate used for year end
obligations 16.25% 16.25% 13.25% 13.25%
Expected rate of growth per annum
in future salaries 15.25% 15.25% 12.25% 12.25%
Expected mortality rate SLIC (2001-2005) Setback 1 Year
Weighted average duration of
defined benefit plan 5 Years 6 Years 5 Years 6 Years
Average number of leaves
accumulated per annum by
employees - 5 days - 5 days
Average number of leaves utilised
per annum by employees - 15 days - 15 days
Retirement age Age 60 Age 60 Age 60 Age 60

The Group expects to charge Rs. 11.193 million to the Consolidated statement of profit or loss on account of gratuity in
the year ending 30 June 2024.

Sensitivity Analysis

2023 2022
. Leave : Leave
Gratuity P ——— Gratuity S iy
~-- (Rupees in thousand) ---

Year end sensitivity on defined

benefit obligation:

Discount rate -+ 100 bps 45,956 1,054 42,644 1,599
Discount rate - 100 bps 50,391 1,181 47,076 1,809
Salary increase + 100 bps 50,462 1,179 47,149 1,805
Salary increase - 100 bps 45,855 1,055 42,542 1,601

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In
practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the
defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been
applied as when calculating the staff retirement gratuity recognised within the statement of financial position.

T
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12.6  The plans expose the Group to the actuarial risks such as:

Salary risks

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what we assumed. Since the benefit is
calculated on the final salary (which will closely reflect inflation and other macroeconomic factors), the benefit amount
increases as salary increases.

Mortality / withdrawal risks
The risks that the actual mortality / withdrawal experiences is different. The effect depends upon beneficiaries' service/
age distribution and the entitled benefits of the beneficiary.

13 Deferred taxation

The liability / (asset) for deferred taxation comprises temporary differences relating to:

2023 2022
Note === (Rupees in thousand) ---
Accelerated tax depreciation 230,196 230,196
Right-of-use assets and lease liability 44,242 44,242
Employee retirement benefits (13,463) (13,463)
Provision for net realisable value (30,874) (30,874)
Provision for doubtful receivables (97,966) (97,966)
Unused tax losses (132,135) (132,135)
Investment in associate 62,904 62,904
62,904 62,904
The gross movement in deferred tax liability during the year is as follows:
Opening balance 36,753 36,753
Income for the year 26,151 26,151
Closing balance 62,904 62,904

The Company has not recognised deferred tax assets of Rs. 8.32 million (2022: Rs. 404.85 million) in respect of tax losses, Rs.
833.472 million (2022: Rs. 421.25 million) in respect of unrealised exchange loss and Rs.93.32 million (2022: Rs. 119.58
million) in respect of minimum tax paid available for carry forward under section 113 and 113C of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001, as sufficient taxable profits would not be available to set these off in the foreseeable future. Minimum tax paid under
section 113 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 amounting to Rs. 5.50 million, Rs. 3.66 million, Rs. 3.21 million, 22.46 million and
3.02 million which will lapse in the year 2024, 2025, 2026, 2027 and 2028 respectively. Alternate Corporate Tax ("ACT") paid
under section 113C of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 aggregating to Rs.55.22 million and Rs.20.30 million will lapse in the year
2027 and 2028, respectively. Tax losses amounting to Rs. 438.48 million, Rs. 197.32 million, Rs. 243.05 and Rs.81.44 million
93.32 will expire in year 2024, 2025, 2026, 2027 and 2028 respectively.
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14 Contract liability

15

16

This principally represents advances received from various parties against sale of apartments and houses in Pace Tower project,
Lahore and its breakup at 30 June 2021 is as follows:

2023 2022
Note --- (Rupees in thousand) ---
MCB Bank Limited 17,000 17,000
First Capital Investment Limited - related party 16,020 16,020
First Capital Securities Corporation Limited - related party 45,887 45,887
First Capital Equities Limited - related party 5,019 5,019
Others 164,968 135,803
248,894 219,729
Current maturity of long term liabilities
2023 2022
Note === (Rupees in thousand) ---
Long term finances - secured 8 66,860 66,860
Redeemable capital - secured (non-participatory) 9 805,118 815,691
Lease liability 10 29,169 32,492
Foreign currency convertible bonds - unsecured 11 5,032,036 3,610,587
5,933,174 4,525,630
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities
Trade creditors 16.1 134,166 187,724
Provisions and accrued liabilities 328,630 281,321
Payable to statutory bodies 101,702 101,693
Advance against sale of investment property 217 142
Security deposits 16.2 59,560 58,042
Rentals against investment property received in advance 44,208 23,098
Retention money 5,461 5,461
Payable to contractors 2,699 2,699
Others 16.3 187,856 96,862
864,529 757,042

16.1  This includes payables to First Construction Limited (related party being a subsidiary of associate company) amounting
to Rs. 0.09 million (2022: Rs. 0.09 million) under normal course of business and are interest free.

16.2  These represent security deposits received against rent of shops rented out in the plazas. Section 217 of Companies Act,
2017 requires that a Company or any of its officers or agents shall not receive or utilize any money received as security or
deposit, except in accordance with a contract in writing. Keeping in view the requirements of this section, the Company
has entered into agreements with third parties whereby it is expressly stated that the Company shall have the right to
utilize the security deposit at its discretion. These amounts are normally utilized to bring the areas rented out for their
intended use (upkeep expenditure).

t-
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16.3  This includes payables to related parties under normal course of business and are interest free.

2023 2022
Related Party Relationship --- (Rupees in thousand) ---
First Capital Equities Limited Contmoy
P q Directorship 1,070 1,070
1,070 1,070
17 Accrued finance cost
L.ong term finances - secured 35,557 18,281
Redeemable capital - secured (non-participatory) 1,313,188 1,185,453
1,348,745 1,203,734

18 Contingencies and commitments

18.1 Contingencies
18.1.1  Claims against the Parent Company not acknowledged as debts amounting to Rs.21.64 million (2022: Rs.21.64 million).

18.1.2 On 10 October 2017, the Company filed a petition against Damas (the tenant at the M.M Alam Plaza) in the Rental
Tribunal at Lahore on the grounds that the tenant has violated the terms and conditions of the lease agreement including
failure to pay rent and denial of the right to entry into the premises. The amount of claim is Rs. 75 million.

The petition is peﬁding for hearing. As per legal advisors of the Company, there are reasonable grounds to defend the
Company's claim, however no asset has been booked in the financial statements. :

18.1.3 On 29 November 2012, Shaheen Insurance Company Limited and First Capital Securities Corporation Limited (on behalf'
of First Capital Group) entered into an agreement whereby, it was agreed that liability pertaining to reverse repo
transaction amounting to Rs. 99.89 million along with insurance premium payable amounting to Rs. 88.86 million from
First Capital Group shall be settled vide sale of 4.70 million shares of First Capital Equities Limited to Shaheen Insurance
Company Limited at a price of Rs. 40. Included in the insurance payable is Rs. 57.96 million pertaining to Pace
(Pakistan) Limited. It was agreed that Shaheen Insurance Company Limited will be allowed to sell the share after two
years, however, the first right to refusal shall be given to the First Capital Group. Further, First Capital Group guaranteed
to buy back the shares at Rs. 40 in case the shares are not saleable in open market, The agreement was subsequently
amended on 07 March 2013 to remove restriction of holding period of two years. In addition to that, the guarantee to buy
back was also revoked.

On 24 April 2015, Shaheen Insurance Company Limited filed a suit for recovery of Rs. 188.75 miilion in the Honourable
Senior Civil Court. The case is under adjudication and the maximum exposure to the Company is of Rs. 57.96 million.
As per legal advisors of the Company there are meritorious grounds to defend the Company's claim and consequently no
provision has been made in these financial statements.

18.1.4  In'view of legal opinion obtained by the legal advisor of the company, the company has stopped charging cash interest of
1% per annum on the outstanding FCCB amounting USD 15.7 Million (Principal plus accumulated markup till maturity).
As of 30 June 2023, there is a liability provided amounting USD 1.8 Million with regard to 1% cash coupon. As per
balance confirmation received from BNY Corporate Trustee Services Limited the liability outstanding does not include
the aforesaid amount of 1% cash coupon. The management of the company is confident that the final liability at the time
of settlement would not exceed the amount already provided in these financial statements
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18.2

18.2.1

18.2.2

Commitments

Commitments in respect of capital expenditure i.e. purchase of properties from Pace Barka Properties Limited (related
party), amounts to Rs. Rs. 26.27 million (2022: Rs. 26.27 million).

Corporate guarantee on behalf of Pace Barka Properties Limited, a related party, in favor of The Bank of Punjab,
amounting to Rs. 900 million (2022: Rs. 900 million) as per the approval of shareholders through the special resolution

dated 29 July 2006.

2023 2022
Note -== (Rupees in thousand) ---
Property, plant and equipment
Operating fixed assets 19.1 380,939 401,468
Capital work in progress 19.2 58,847 58,847
Right-of-use assets 19.3 100,406 108,498
540,192 568,813
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Pace (Pakistan) Limited
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
o the pear ended 30 June 2023

19.1  Operating fixed nssets

Frechold land * Leasehoid land ** Bu-ld.{._ﬂg;:: rmh.“w m:::::":;;""_ Plant and muchinery  Electrical equipment n'm::;:;fn::t wod me;::rr;nnd Computers Vehicles Total
{Rupecs in th d)

Net carrying value basis
Year ended 30 June 2023
Cpening net book value 155,152 - 125,018 - 11,331 84,528 1,059 2,182 225 20972 401,468
Additions (at cost) - - - - - - - - - - -
Dispesals - - - - - - - - # = -
Translers - - - - - - - - - - -
Depreciation charge - . (6,251) . (1,133) (8,453) (206) (218) (74) (4,194) (20,529)
Impairment charge - - - - - - - - - - -
Closing net book value 155,152 - 118,767 - 10,198 76.073_ 1.85_2_ 1,964 151 16,778 380,939
Gross carrying value basis
As at June 2023
Cost 155,152 - 221,948 - 78,794 195,955 12,060 11,801 10,280 67,732 753,722
Accumulated depreciation - - (103,181) - (68,121) (108,574) (10,198) {9,713) (10,129) {50,954) (360,570)
Accumulated impairment - . n » 475) (11,305) (8) (124) ) « (11,912)
Net book value 155,152 - 118,767 - 10,198 76,076 1,853 1,964 li 16,778 380,939
Depreciation % per annum 0% 0% 5% 3% 10% 10% 10% 10% 33% 20%
Net carrying value basis
Year ended 30 June 2022
Opening net book value 155,152 - 28,001 41,139 16,466 102,929 1,899 2,562 94 9,110 417,352
Additions {at cost) - . 42,479 1,441 ¥ 3,367 377 w 193 17,311 65,168
Disposals 4 i - - (3,265) - - - - (3.823) (7.087)
Transfers - - - (37,130 - - - - E k (37,130)
Depreciation charge - - (5,462) (5.450) (1,395) (10,463) (208) (256) (61) {1,626) (24,921)
Impairment charge L= - - - (475) (11,305} (8) (124) (5] - (11,912)
Closing net book value 155,152 - 125018 = 11.331 84,528 2,02_ 2.182 225 20,972 40|,461‘
Gross carrying valug basis
As at Junc 2022
Cost 155,152 - 221,948 - 78,794 195,955 12,060 11,801 10,280 67,732 733,722
Accumulated depreciation - - (96,930) - (66,988) (100,121) (9,992) (9,495) (10,055) (46,760) (340,341)
Accuinulated impairment - - = % (475) (11,305) [£3] (124} ()] - (1,92
Net book value 135,152 - 125,018 - 11,331 84,528 2.059 2,182 225 20,972 401468
Depreciation % per annum 0% % 5% 3% 10% 10% 10% 10% 33% 20%
* Frechold land rep the d arca of Main Boul

d Project, M.M Alam Road Project, Model Town Link Road Projset, Gujranwala Project, Gujrat Project and Woodland Project which is rot saleable in the ordinary course of business.

* Leaschold land represents a piece of land transferred in the name of the Company by the Ministry of Defence, measuring 20,354 squan: yands situated at Survey No. 131/A. Airport Road, near Allama Igbal International Airpert, Lahore Cantt. The Company sccured the bid for the said picce of land on behalf of

Fm Barkn Propertics Limited ('PHPL] an associated uadcrmhng since at the time ufb!ddmg FBFL was in the process oflmorporuum Subsequent to the bidding, payment was made by PBPL but the Ministry of Defence refused to transfir the said picce of land in the name of PBPL as it was not the original

bidder, the legal has been d in the name of the Company. C g . 1o avoid additi jon costs relating 1o transfer of legal ownership, the Company has entered into an agresment with PBPL, whereby the possession of the land and its beneficial ownership has been
transferred 1o PBPL through an !.m:vncnhh General Power of Attorney dated 15 May 2007,
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Fov the year erded 30 June 2003

19.1  Operating fixed assets

Frechold land *

Leasehoid land **

Buildirgs on frechold

Buildings on

Plant and maclinery  Electrical equipment

Oifice equipment and

Furniture and

land Ieaschold land *** appliances fixtures S Yl elny
{Rupers in th d)

Net carrying value basis
Yeur ended 30 June 2023
Cpening net book value 155,152 - 125,m8 - 11,331 84,518 1,059 2,182 115 20,972 401 468
Additions (ut cost) - - - - - - = = 15 e -
Dispesals = - - - - - - % i« % &
Transfers - - k= = - - - < & " =
Depreciation charge % F (6,251) . (1,133) (8,453) (206) (218) (74) (4,194) (20,529)
Impairment charge - - - - - S - - - = -
Closing net book value 185,152 - 118,767 - 10,198 76,075 1,853 1,964 151 16,778 3&02933
Gross carrying value basis
As at June 2023
Cost 155,152 - 121,948 - 78,794 195955 12,060 11,801 10,280 67,732 753,722
Accumulated depreciation A - (103,181) - (68,121) (108,574) (10,198) 9,113) (10,129) (50,954) (360,870)
Accumulated impsirment ] % - - (475) (11,305) ) (124) (0) i {11,912)
Net book value 155,152 - 118,767 = 10,198 76,076 1,353 1,964 151 16.778 380,939
Depreciation % per annum 0% 0% 5% 3% 10% 10% 10% 10% 33% 20%
Net carrying value basis
Year ended 30 June 2022
Opening net book value 155,152 - 88,001 41,139 16,466 102,929 1,899 2,562 o9 8,110 417,352
Additions (at cost) - - 42,479 1,441 - 3,367 377 - 193 17,311 65,168
Disposals - - - - (3,265) - - - - (3.823) (7,087)
Transfers - = - (37,130 - - - - = = (37,130)
Depreciation charpe C “ (5,462) (5,450} (1,395) (10,463) {208) (256) (61) (1.626) (24,921)
Impairment charge - - = - “75) (11.305) [E5] {124) {0y - {11,912)
Clesing net book value 155,152 - 125.018 = 11.331 $4,528 2,059 2.182 225 20,972 401,468
Gross carrying value basis
As at June 2022
Cost 155,152 - 221,948 - 78,754 195,955 12,060 11,801 10,280 67,732 753,722
Accumulated depreciation - - (96,930} - (66,588) (100,121) {9,962) (9,495) (10,055} (46,760) (340,341
Accunulated impairment “ s . - (475) (11,305 ®) (124) (o) - (11,912)
Net book value 135,152 - 125,018 - 11,331 84,528 2,059 2,182 225 20972 407 468
Depreciation % per annum 0% 0% 5% 3% 10% 10% 10% 10% 33% 20%
* Frechold land the d arca of Main Boul

** Leasehold land represents a picce of land transfirred in the name of the Company by the Ministry of Defence, measuring 20,
Pace Barla Propertics Limited (PBPL), an associated uadertaking, since at the time of bidding PBPL was in the
d in the name of the Company. G
trangferred to PBPL through an Imevoeable General Power of Attorney dated 15 May 2007,

bidder, th the legal

hip has been transf

-,

v, 1o avoid

d Project, M.M Alam Road Project, Model Town Link Road Project, Gujranwala Projeet, Gujrat Project and Woodland Project which is not saleable in the ordinary course of business.

354 square yards situated at Survey Mo, 131/A, Airport Read, near Allama Igbal International Aérport, Lahere Cantt. The Company sccured the bid for the said picce of land on behalf of
process of incorporation. Subsequent 1o the bidding, payment was made by PBPL but the Ministry of Defence refused to transfir the said picce of land in the name of PBPL as it was not the original
ional ion costs relating to tansfor of legal ownership, the Company has entersd into an agresmem with PEPL, whereby the possession of the land and its benoficial ownership has been
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19.1.1 Particulars of immovable property (i.c. land and building) in the name of Company are as follows:

Location Usage of immoveable Land Area *Covered Area Total Area
property (Square Feet)  (Square Feet) (Square Feet)

38.38/A,39, Block P, Model Town Link Road, Lahore Shopping plaza 22,050 70,152 92,202
40, Block P, Model Town Link Road, Lahore Shopping plaza 22,995 : 21,933 44928
Bridge Point Plaza, Fortress Stadium, Lahore Cantt. Shopping plaza 7,695 : 16,204 23,899
96-B-I, M.M Alam Road, Gulberg - III, Lahore Shopping plaza 18,112 68,087 86,199
Mouza Dhola Zarri, Main GT Road Gujranwala Shopping plaza 21,148 53,601 74.749
Mouza Ado-Wal, G.T Road, Tehsil & District, Gujrat Shopping plaza 27,000 85,347 112,347
124/E-1 Main Boulevard Gulberg ITI Lahore Shopping plaza 40,757 81,601 122,358
Bedian Road, Lahore Management office 7.875 - 7.875

The buildings on freehold land and other immovable assets of the Company are constructed / located at above mentioned frechold land.

*The covered area includes multi-storey buildings.

19.1.2  Detail of operating fixed assets disposed-off during the year is as follows :

A Sale Gain/ . Particulars of Relationship with
ti

Description Cosk:  Rook Vakse Proceeds (loss) Mode of disposal purchasers the purchaser

Year Ended June, 30 2023 Nill

Year Ended June, 30 2022 — (Rupees in thousand) —

Plant & Machinery

Chiller Air Conditioning 7,001 3,265 11,000 2235 Negotiation Third party None

Owned Vehicles

Porsche Car 3,950 2,317 3,600 1,283 Negotiation Third party None

Toyota Fortuner 4,000 1,505 4570 3,065 Negotiation Third party None

Year Ended June, 30 2022 14.951 7,087 19,170 6,583

19.1.3 Operating fixed assets include a vehicle, having cost of Rs. 1.39 million (2022: Rs. 1.39 million), which:is fully depreciated but still in use as at 30 June 2023.
19.2 This represents Rs. 58.85 million related to the third floor of Pace Tower, covering an area of 4,261 square feet which is under construction and is to be held for use.

[
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19.3

19.4

Note

Right-of-use assets

Land

Cost
Balance as at 01 July
Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 16
Adjusted balance at 01 July
Additions / (deletions) during the year
Balance as at 30 June

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 01 July
Depreciation charge during the year
Balance as at 30 June

Closing net book value

Rate of depreciation

Electrical equipment

Cost
Balance as at 01 July
Additions / (deletions) during the year
Balance as at 30 June

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 01 July
Depreciation charge during the year
Balance as at 30 June

Closing net book value

Rate of depreciation 19.3.1

Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of revenue 31.3
Administrative and selling expenses 32
-

[

2023

2022

--- (Rupees in thousand) ---

119,496 119,496
119,496 119,496
119,496 119,496
(14,320) (9,550)
(4,770) (4,770)
(19,091) (14,320)
100,405 105,176
4% 4%
15,339 15,339
15,339 15,339
(12,017) (6,903)
(3,322) (5,114)
(15,339) (12,017)
. 3,322
33% 33%
22,948 25,981
5,673 8,823
28,621 34,804
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Cost Fair value
2023 2022 2023 2022
--- (Rupees in thousand) ---

Investment property

Balance as at 01 July 883,931 557,911 1,803,239 1,467,614
Initial Recoginition of ROU - 13,663 - 13,663
Fair value gain/(Loss) on initial recognition . - - - 3
Transfer from Inventory at cost - 228,190 - 228,190
Transfer from PPE at cost 80,894 84,1 67 80,894 84,166
964,825 883,931 1,884,133 1,793,633
Fair value gain/ (loss) recorded in statement
of profit or loss - - 14,562 9,607
Disposal during the year - - - -
As at 30 June 964,825 883,931 1,898,694 1,803,240
21.1  The forced sale value of investment property excluding right-of-use asset amounts to Rs. 1,580.806 million (2022: Rs.
1,485,768 million).
Investment properties represent Parent Company's interest in land and buildings situated at Model Town Lahore,
Gulberg Lahore, Gujranwala and Gujrat. On initial application of IFRS 16, the Parent Company recognised right-of-
use asset arising as a result of head lease of shops / apartments situated at 4th floor of Model Town Lahore and 3rd and
4th floor of M.M Alam. The Parent Company has sub-leased the aforementioned properties and right-of-use asset
arising from head lease has been classified as investment property.
These are either leased to third parties or held for value appreciation. Changes in fair values are recognised and
presented separately as "Gain / (loss) from change in fair value of investment property” in the statement of profit or
loss.
21.1.1 Fair Value
Fuair value hierarchy

The fair value of investment property was determined by external, independent property valuer KG Traders, having
appropriate recognised professional qualifications. The independent valuers provide the fair value of the Company’s
investment property portfolio annually. Latest valuation of these assets was carried out on 30 June 2021. The level 2
fair value of freehold land has been derived using the sales comparison approach. Level 3 fair value of Buildings has
been determined using a depreciated replacement cost approach, whereby, current cost of construction of a similar
building in a similar location has been adjusted using a suitable depreciation rate to arrive at present market value.
Level 3 fair value of right-of-use assets has been determined using discounted cashflow method, whereby appropriate
discount rate has been adjusted to arrive at the fair value,

The following is categorization of assets measured at fair value at 30 June 2023:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
--- (Rupees in thousand) ---

Freehold land W - . 2

Buildings - - 1,859,772 1,859,772
Right-of-use assets S - 38,922 38,922
- . 1,898,694 1,898,694

re
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The following is categorization of assets measured at fair value at 30 June 2022:

Freehold land
Buildings
Right-of-use assets

Level 1

Level 2 Level 3 Total
=== (Rupees in thousand) ---

- - 1,747,963 1,747,963
" - 55,276 55,276
- - 1,803,239 1,803,239

Valuation inputs and relationship to fair value

The following table summarises the quantitative and qualitative information about the significant unobservable inputs
used in recurring level 3 fair value measurements. Refer fair value hierarchy for the valuation techniques adopted.

Deseription

Significant Unobservable
inputs

Quantitative data / range and relationship to the fair
value

Buildings

Right-of-use asset

Cost of construction of a new
similar building

Suitable depreciation rate to
arrive at depreciated
replacement value

Discount rate being used to
discount the future cashflows.

The market value has been determined by using a
depreciation of approximately 5%-10% on cost of
constructing a similar new building. Higher, the estimated
cost of construction of a new building, higher the fair value.
Further, higher the depreciation rate, the lower the fair value
of the building.

The estimated fair value will increase / (decrease) if
discounting rates were lower / (higher)
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22 Lease Receivable

22.1  The Parent Company has entered into a lease agreement as a lessor. Implicit Interest rate is 10% per annum.
Installment of Rs. 422,400 monthly which will be increased by 25% upon completion of every three years.

22.2  Maturity Analysis-- Contractural undiscounted cash flows

Lease payments receivable Rupees Rupees
1 - 3 years 18,374,400 17,107,200
4 - 6 years 22,968,000 20,724,000
7 - 9 years 28,710,000 26,565,000
10 - 12 years : 35,887,500 33,206,250
13 - 15 years 44,859,375 41,507,813
More than 15 years 342,185,669 358,943,481
492,984,944 498,053,744
2023 2022

-=- (Rupees in thousand) ---

22.3 Reconciliation

Total lease receivable 492,985 498,054
Less: Unearned finance income (378,243) (388,889)
Net investment in lease 114,742 109,165
Less: Current portion of lease receivable (5,702) (5,069)
Non Current portion of lease receivable 109,040 104,096

&
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23 Investment in associate

Associate - unquoted (accounted for under equity method)
Pace Barka Properties Limited
75,875,000 (2020: 75,875,000) fully paid
ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
Equity held: 24.86% (2020: 24.86%)

23.1

23.1.1

Associate - unquoted

Cost

Brought forward amounts of post acquisition reserves
and profits and negative goodwill recognised directly
in consolidated profit and loss account

Share of profit/(Loss) for the year
- before taxation
= provision for taxation

Share of other comprehensive loss

Balance as on June 30

Note

23.1

2023

2022

=== (Rupees in thousand) ---

1,123,368 1,178,011
758,651 758,651
419,360 245,020

1,178,011 1,003,671
(54,643) (65,302)

’ (15,515)
(54,643) (80,817)

: 255,157
1,123,368 1,178,011

Pace Barka Properties Limited ("PBPL") was incorporated in Pakistan on 22 November 2005 as an unlisted
public company limited by shares under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act,
2017). The principal activity of PBPL is to acquire, construct, develop, sell, rent out and manage shopping
malls, appartments, villas, commercial buildings, etc. and to carry on the business of hospitality. The following
table summarizes the financial information of PBPL as included in its own financial statements. The table also
reconciles the summarized financial information to the carrying amount of the Group's interest in its associate.

Non-current assets (adjusted for revaluation surplus)
Current assets

Non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Net assets (100%)

Company's share of net assets / carrying amount of interest
Revenue

Profit from operations

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income (100%)

Company's share of total comprehensive income / (Loss)

s

2023

2022

--- (Rupees in thousand) ---

5,197,631 4,506,104
2,045,931 2,140,359
1,129,286 985,715
954,298 922,168
5,159,978 4,738,580
1,282,771 1,178,011
324,681 674,154
(219,804) (311,003)
- 1,026,375
(219,804) 715,372
(54,643) 177,841
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The financial year end of PBPL is 30 June 2023 and above figures (adjusted with the effect of inconsistencies
between Group and PBPL accounting policies) are based on unaudited draft accounts.

24 Long term advances and deposits

These are in the ordinary course of business and are interest free advances and deposits.

25 Stock-in-trade

2023 2022
Note === (Rupees in thousand) ---

Land purchased for resale 25.1 930,765 900,000
Work in progress
Pace Tower 25.2 650,158 542,267
Pace Circle 25.3 670,650 670,650
Pace Supermall 354,600 354,600
Completed units - shops 168,091 177,200

2,774,264 2,644,717
Stores inventory 392 443

2,774,656 2,645,160

25.1  This represents plot purchased for resale purposes amounting to Rs. 930.77 (2022: Rs. 900 million).
252 Included in work in progress are borrowing costs of Rs. 101 million (2020: Rs. 101 million).

25.3  Pace Circle is a project carried by Pace Barka (Private) Limited (an associated company). The project is under
construction as at year end and the Company has realized the cumulative payments made till the year end as its
inventory while remaining amount is shown in commitments note (18.2.1).

-

™



Pace (Pakistan) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

26

27

Note
Trade debts
Secured
Considered good 26.1
Unsecured

Less: Impairment allowance

26.1  This includes the following amounts due from related parties:

Rema & Shehrbano

First Capital Investment Limited & First Capital Mutual Fund
First Capital Equities Limited

First Capital Securities Corporation Limited

Connatural Cosmetics

2023

2022

--- (Rupees in thousand) ---

635,083 701,176
423,074 339,786
1,058,157 1,040,962
(539,221) (337,813)
518,936 703,149
4,738 4,738
4,580 4,580
118,441 118,441
6,681 6,681
1,450 1,450
135,890 135,890

26.2  The maximum aggregate amount due from related parties at the end of any month during the year was Rs.

135.89 million (2022: Rs. 135.89 million).

Note
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Advances - considered good:
- to employees 27.1
- to suppliers 272
Advance against purchase of property 27.3
Security deposits 27.4
Others - considered good 27.5

2023

2022

--- (Rupees in thousand) ---

11,750 17,263
29,087 17,391

785 785
44,087 55,029
85,709 90,469

27.1  Advances to employees include advances against salary and gratuity, repayable within one year and at the time
of final settlement, respectively. This includes Rs. 5.67 million (2022: Rs. 4.34 million) advance given to

executive employee of the Group.

—
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28

29

27.2  The maximum aggregate advance given to these related parties against provision of services at the end of any
month was Rs. 7.07 million (2022: Rs. 16.91 million)

27.3  The amount reflects advance paid against the purchase of 4.9 kanal plot at Shadman, Lahore from a related
party Evergreen Water Valley (Private) Limited.

27.4  This includes security deposit paid to Orix Leasing Pakistan Limited amounting to Rs. 11,50 million against
assets acquired under lease. The amount is under dispute and management expects to recover the amount in
full.

27.5  This includes rent receivable from a related party 'Media Times Limited' amounting to Rs. 13.38 million (2022:
Rs. 10.84 million). The amount also includes impairment allowance of Nil (2022:Nil ) recognised in the
current year.

2023 2022
Note --- (Rupees in thousand) ---
Income tax refundable - net
Income tax refundable 281 32,367 42,418
Provision for taxation - current (3,023) (22,456)
29,344 19,962

28.1  This represents mainly withholding tax deducted from profit on bank deposits and rental income from property
and advance tax paid on electricity bills under Section 151, 152 and 235, respectively of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001,

2023 2022
Note -=- (Rupees in thousand) ---
Cash and bank balances
Cash in hand ' 16 18
Cash at banks
- Current accounts 29.1 19,106 22,208
- Saving accounts 29.2 836 319
Impairment allowance for expected credit loss (302) (92)
19,640 22,435
19,656 22,453

29.1  This includes Rs. 17 million (2022: Rs. 17 million) on which lien is marked against sale of property to MCB
for further development charges at Pace Tower.

29.2  This carries profit at the rates ranging from 5.75% to 19.5% (2020: 5.5% to 12.25%) per annum.

g—
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2023 2022
Note === (Rupees in thousand) ---
30 Revenue
Sale of Pace Tower units - 352,157
Sale of Completed Units - Others 9,773 241,470
Sale of Land 30.1 - 416,817
Display of advertisements 6,547 44,045
Service charges 30.2 123,759 168,194
Revenue from contract with customers 140,079 1,222,683
Other revenue
Rental income from lease of investment property 101,730 33,643
Total revenue 241,809 1,256,326
30.1  Development services recognised at percentage of completion basis
Revenue recognised to date 1,697,729 1,697,729
Aggregate cost incurred to date (1,416,173) (1,416,173)
Recognised profit to date 281,556 281,555
The revenue arising from agreements, that meet the criteria for revenue recognition on the basis of percentage
ol completion method, during the current year, there is no change in percentage of completed units. (2022: Rs.
33 million).
302  The Company entered into agreement with Evergreen Water Valley (Private) Limited a related party for the
purchase of plot measuring 4 kanals 15 marlas and 175 square feet located at the Plot No. 133 Shadman II,
Lahore and sold this plot to Zameen Omega against variable consideration. Therefore, the Company has
recognized revenue and contract asset on the basis expected multiple outcome depending on the project
approvals,
30.3  Disaggregatiun of revenue
Timing of revenue recognition _
In tiime 9,773 1,010,868
Over time 232,036 245,458
241,809 1,256,326
30.4  Contract balances
The following table provides information about receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with
customers.
2023 2022
Note --- (Rupees in thousand) ---
Reczivables, which are included in trade debts 26 1,058,157 1,040,962
Contract liability 304.1& 14 248,894 219,730
36.4.1 The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration received from customers against sale of

properties and development services.

—
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30.5

Impact of fire in Gulberg Plaza

During the year, a project of the Company situated at the Main Boulevard, Gulberg, Lahore (the mall) was
subject to fire, In terms of investment this mall was completely sold out to third parties and the Company had
no inventory in the mall, the only revenue involved is in the form of service charges and advertisment which
were completely utilized to pay for mall expenses in the form of Bills (Electricity, Sui gas and Water bills) and
Maintenance Costs ( repair maintenance of the building, machinery and electric equipments) installed at the
location in the form of back up generators and air conditioners, Escalotors (HVAC). As the result of this
incident all activity of the Gulberg Plaza has entirely stoped resulting into no cash inflows and outflows.

Cost of revenue

Shops and commercial buildings sold
- at percentage of completion basis
- al completion of project basis

Stores operating expenses

31.2

Shops / apartments and commercial buildings sold
at percentage of completion basis

Opening work in progress (Pace Tower)
Opening work in progress (Pace Circle)
Purchase of inventory

Project development costs

Write down of inventory to net realisable value
Property disposed / settled

Closing work in progress (Pace Tower)
Closing work in progress (Pace Circle)

Shops / apartments and commercial buildings sold
at completion of project basis

Opening inventory of shops and Land
Purchase during the year

Transfer to Investment Property

Transfer to Property, Plant & Equipment
Settlement

Write down of inventory to net realisable value
Closing inventory of shops and Land

-

s

Note

311
31.2

313

2023

2022

-~ (Rupees in thousand) ---

- 345,328
8,940 470,501
109,849 87,424
118,789 903,253
542,267 725,051
670,650 776,187
107,890 116,207
= 14,050

. (7,130)

s (66,120)

(650,158) (542,267)

(670,650) (670,650)
- 345,328
1,077,200 1,473,009
“ 430,000

. (228,190)

. (15,691)

. (74,506)

30,596 (36,921)

(1,098,856) (1,077,200)
8,940 470,501
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Note

31.3  Stores operating expenses

Salaries, wages and benefits 31.3.1
Rent, rates and taxes

Depreciation on owned assets 19.4
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 19.4
Repairs and maintenance

Janitorail

Fuel and Power

Others

31.3.1 Salaries, wages and benefits include following in respect of gratuity and leave encashment;

Current service cost
Interest cost

Administrative and selling expenses

Salaries, wages and benefits 32.1
Travelling and conveyance

Rent, rates and taxes

Insurance

Printing and stationery

Repairs and maintenance

Motor vehicles running

Cominunications

Advertising and sales promotion

Depreciation on owned assets 19.4
Amortisation on intangible assets

Auditors' remuneration

Legal and professional

Comimission on sales

Office expenses

Impairment loss on trade and other receivables 20
Impairment loss on Inventory 322
Irmpairment loss on Property, Plant & Equipment

Other expenses

2023

2022

-- (Rupees in thousand) ---

32.1  Salaries, wages and benefits include following in respect of gratuity and leave encashment

Current service cost
Interest cost

P

38,303 44,070
14,868 5,909
14,856 16,098
8,092 9,883
4,024 9,813
1,741 3
27,964 .
= 1,651
109,849 87,424
2,087 3,073
2,046 1,855
4,133 4,928
61,410 57,954
1,387 2,399
2,285 870
1,319 1,605
160 307
21,464 23,711
1,481 2,209
597 797
16 9,275
5,673 8,823
502 505
4,214 4,614
5,968 9,174
4,830 4,950
988 53,167
210,528 42,104
169 45,291
5 11,912
5,888 7,902
328,879 287,569
3,131 4,609
3,069 2,783
6,200 7,392
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2023 2022
Note - (Rupees in thousand) ---

32,2 Auditors' remuneration

The charges for auditors' remuneration includes the following in respect of auditors' services for:

Statutory audit 2,495 2,275
Half yearly review 847 770
Audit of consolidated financial statements 220 220
Statutory certification 110 110
Out of pocket expenses 542 542
Audit experts (valuer) fee - -
4,214 3,917
33 Other income
Income from financial assets
Mark-up on bank accounts 120 264
Commission on guarantee 33.7 1,238 1,238
Finance Income from Lease Receivable 10,646 10,139
Income from non-financial assets
Reversal of impairment loss on inventory 30,765
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment - 6,583
Others
Gain on settlement of loans 12,631 236,173
Income from parking and storage - 4,996
Miscellaneous Income 4,900
Others 5,231 27,384
Liabilities Written-back 60,001 14,788
120,632 306,465

33.1  This represents commission income on guarantee provided on behalf of Pace Barka Properties Limited
(associate).

34 Finance cost

Interest and mark-up on:

- Long term finances - secured 17,276 12,109

- Foreign currency convertible bonds - unsecured - 27,667

- Redeemable capital - secured (non-participatory) 140,366 91,581

- Interest expense on unwinding of Pak Iran Joint

Investment Company - -

- Notional interest on lease liability 24,733 24,618
182,375 155,975

Liquidated damages due to default of Pak Iran loan - -

Bank charges and processing fee 166 153
182,541 156,128

I
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2023 2022
Note --- (Rupees in thousand) -
35 Taxation
Income Tax
- Current Year 3,023 22,456
- Prior Year - 2,612
3,023 25,068
Deferred tax for the year - 26,151
3,023 51,219

36

The provision for current taxation for the year represents the tax liability under Minimum Tax Regime under Section
113 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (2022: Minimum Tax Regime under section Section 113 of Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001.

The relationship between income tax expense and accounting profit has not been presented in these financial statements
as the tax liability is calculated under Minimum Tax Regime under Section 113 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (2022:
Minimum Tax Regime under section Section 113 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001).

Earning/ (Loss) per share - basic and diluted
The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share has been based on the following profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Parent Company and weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding. There are no dilutive

potential ordinary shares outstanding as at 30 June 2021 (2020: Nil).

2023 2022
=== (Rupees in thousand) ---

Profit/ (Loss) for the year atiributable to owners of the Parent Company (1,732,321) (725,482)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year 278,877 278,877

g
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2023 2022
Note --- (Rupees in thousand) ---
37 Cash (used in) / generated from operations
Profit/ (Loss) before tax (1,729,298) (674,264)
Adjustment for:
Exchange (gain)/ loss on foreign currency convertible bonds 11.2 1,421,449 815,383
Provision for gratuity and leave encashment 121 & 12.2 10,333 12,320
Depreciation on owned assets 19.4 20,529 22,874
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 19.4 8,092 9,884
Amortisation on intangible assets 20 502 505
Changes in fair value of investment property 21 14,562 (84,166)
Share of profit/ (loss) from associate 54,643 80,817
Impairment loss on trade debts and other receivables 210,528 42,104
Write down of inventory to net realisable value 312 169 -
Finance costs 34 182,375 155,975
Mark-up income 33 (120) (264)
Loss/ (Gain) on sale of property, plant and equipment 33 - (6,583)
Non cash income 33 (83,278) (219,327)
(Loss) / Gain before working capital changes 110,485 155,258
Effect on cash flow due to working capital changes:
(Increase)/ Decrease in stock-in-trade (107,891) 672,285
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade debts (17,195) (230,012)
(Increase)/ Decrease in advances, deposits and
other receivables 4,760 248,219
Increase/ (Decrease) in contract liability 29,164 (127,525)
Increase/ (Decrease) in creditors, accrued and
other liabilities 96,192 (10,873)
5,030 552,094
115,515 707,352
38 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances 29 19,656 22,453
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32  Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

Balance as at 01 July 2022

Cash flows

Long term loan paid during the year
Repayment of lease rentals

Finance cost paid

Dividends paid

Total changes from financing cash flows

Non-cash changes

Exchange (gain)/ loss

Recognized during the year

Waiver of interest

Debt Asset Swap

Settlement

Lease Liability recognized during the year
Reclassified to accrued liabilities

Finance cost/unwinding of interest expense
Total non-cash changes

Balance as at 30 June 2023

i

30 June 2023
Equity Liabilities
Issued ' Reduewlic Foreign currency
L * ? 3 i -
subscribed and Share premium MEERAGR . Long term CApiialssoared Lease liability  convertible bonds At S
. . Surplus finzances - secured (non- cost
paid-up capital e - unsecured
participatory)
— (Rupees in thousand) —
2,788,766 273,265 = 66,860 935,571 180,043 3,741,777 1,143,032
- - - - - (9,294) - -
- - - - - (9,294) - -
- - - - - - 1,421,449 -
- - “ = - - - (149,715)
- - - - - (4,567) - -
- - - - - (15,720) - -
= = 5 - - 24,733 - 294,726
- - - - - 4,446 1,421,449 145,011
2,788,766 273,265 - 66,860 935,571 175,196 5,163,226 1,288,043
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Pace (Pakistan) Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2023

40 Transactions with related parties

The related parties comprise of associated company,
are shown under respective notes to these

Name of Company

Relationship

Nature of Transactions

2023

2022

— (Rupees in thousand) —

Pace Barka Properties Limited Associated Company Guarantee commission income 1,238 1,238
(equity held 24.86%) Shared expenses charged by the Company - 571
Sale during the year 62,827 84375
Rental income - 1,980
Payment against purchase of mventory - 29,693
Purchase of inventory - 64,843
Ever Green Water Valley (Private) Limited Common Directorship Sale during the year - 166,750
Purchase of floor / plot 80,894 430,000
Payment against purchase of plot - 50,000
Purchase of goods and services 107,892 44,131
Shared expenses charged by the Company - -
First Capital Equities Limited Common Directorship Sale during the year - 139,822
Rental income - -
Media Times Limited Common Directorship Rental income 5,069 5,069
Advertisement expense - 9,000
Remy Apparel (Formerly Rema and Shehrbano) Common Directorship Service charges - 337
Connatural Common Directorship Service charges “ 5,462
-
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Pace (Pakistan) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

41 Financial instruments

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk

The Group's overall risk management policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse
effects on the Group's financial performance.

Risk management framework

The Group's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework.
The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and
controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in
market conditions and the Group’s activities. The Group, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a
disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Group audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk management policies and procedures, and
reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The Group audit committee is assisted
in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures,
the results of which are reported to the audit committee,

41.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers and investments in debt securities. As
part of these processes the financial viability of all counterparties are regularly monitored and assessed.

The carrying amounts of financial assets and contract assets represent the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to
credit risk at the statement of financial position date was:

2023 2022
Note --- (Rupees in thousand) ---
Long term advances and deposits 15,248 13,619
Trade debts 26 518,936 703,149
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 27 85,709 73,077
Bank balance 29 19,640 22,415
Lease Receivable 114,742 109,165
Contract asset 356,817 356,817

1,111,092 1,278,241

Trade receivables
All the counterparties are of domestic origin. Ageing of the trade debts is as under:
The ageing of trade debts against properties including related parties at reporting date is as follows:

2023 2022
Gross Impairment Gross Impairment
-—- (Rupees in thousand) -—

- Past due 0 - 365 days 122,189 224,507
-1 -2 years 47,052 (539,221) 66,084 (337,813)
- More than 2 years 888,916 750,371

1,058,157 (539,221) 1,040,962 (337,813)

T




Pace (Pakistan) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

41.2

Bank balances
The Company held bank balances of Rs. 19.64 million at 30 June 2023 (2022: Rs. 22.42 million).

Impairment on bank balances has been measured on a 12-month expected loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the
exposures. The Company considers that its bank balances have low credit risk based on the external credit ratings of the
counterparties. The amount of impairment allowance at 30 June 2023 is Nil. (2022: Nil)

The credit quality of bank balances that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if
available) or to historical information about counterparty default rate:

Rating Rating
Short term Long term Agency 2023 2022
--- (Rupees in thousand) ---
Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited A-1 At VIS 56 30
Allied Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 41 3,019
Askari Bank Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA 8 7
Bank Alfalah Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA 1 1
Bank Islamic Pakistan Limited Al AA- PACRA 11 11
Faysal Bank Limited Al+ AA PACRA 1,718 39
Habib Bank Limited Al+ AAA VIS 0 0
MCB Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 17,762 18,679
Silk Bank Limited Al A+ VIS 5 613
Soneri Bank Limited Al+ AA- PACRA 11 10
United Bank Limited Al+ AAA VIS 6 6

19,640 22,415

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Group maintains adequate reserves, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching profiles of
financial assets and liabilities. Financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables and due to related parties.

Exposure to liguidity risk

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments.

2023
Carrying Contractual One year One to More than
amount cashflows or less five years five years

-=- (Rupees in thousand) ---

Long term finances - secured 66,860 66,860 66,860 - -

Redeemable capital - secured

(non-participatory) 815,691 805,118 805,118 - -

Lease liability 178,822 178,822 29,160 58,570 91,093

Foreign currency convertible

bonds - unsecured 5,032,036 5,032,036 5,032,036 - -

Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 864,529 864,529 864,529 - -

Accrued finance cost 1,348,745 1,348,745 1,348,745 - -
8,306,683 8,296,110 8,146,448 58,570 91,093

[



Pace (Pakistan) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

41.3

41.4

41.5

2022
Carrying Contractual One year One to More than
amount cashilows or less five years five years

--- (Rupees in thousand) ---

Long term finances - secured 66,860 66,860 66,860 - -

Redeemable capital - secured

(non-participatory) 815,691 815,691 815,691 - -

Lease liability 183,668 183,669 32,492 71,602 79,576

Foreign currency convertible

bonds - unsecured 3,610,587 3,610,587 3,610,587 - -

Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 696,745 696,745 696,745 - .

Accrued finance cost 1,203,734 1,203,734 1,203,734 - -
6,577,285 6,577,287 6,426,109 71,602 79,576

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the
Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and
control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. Currency risk arises from sales, purchases and resulting balances that are denominated in a currency other than
functional currency. The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as at the reporting date.

The Group is exposed to currency risk arising from primarily with respect to the United States Dollar (USD). Currently, the Group's
foreign exchange risk exposure is restricted to foreign currency convertible bonds. The Group's exposure to currency risk was as
follows:

2023 2022
Following is the Group’s exposure to currency risk: --- (USD in thousand) ---
Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds - USD 17,527 17,527

The exchange rate applicable at the reporting date is 287.10 (2022: 206)
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The

effective interest / mark-up rates for interest / mark-up bearing financial instruments are mentioned in relevant notes to the financial
statements. The Group's interest / mark-up bearing financial instruments as at the reporting date are as follows:

12023 2022
Financial Financial Financial Financial
asset liability assel liability
Non-derivative financial - instrumenis Note --- (Rupees in thousand) -
Fixed rate instruments
Long term finances - secured 8 - 66,860 - 66,860
Foreign currency convertible bonds 11 - 5,032,036 - 3,610,587
Lease liability 10 - 178,822 - 183,668
Cash at bank 29 836 - 549 -
Variable rate instruments i
Redeemable capital - secured L - 805,118 - 935,571
836 6,082,836 549 4,796,686

The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss, Therefore a change
in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect statement of profit or loss.

—
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Pace (Pakistan) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

41.6

41.7

sh flow sensitivity analysis for vari fe instrumen

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased) profit for the year by the
amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant, The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2020.

Profit or loss 100 bps
2023 2022
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
=== (Rupees in thousand) ---

(8,051) 8,051 9,356 (9,356)

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the year and assets / liabilities of the Compan

Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument wili fluctuate because of changes in
market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk).

Capital management

The Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain
future development of the business, Management monitors the return on capital, as well as the level of dividends to ordinary
shareholders. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders through repurchase of shares, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. The Group monitors
capital using a ratio of ‘net debt’ to ‘equity’. Net debt is calculated as total liabilities (as shown in the statement of financial
position) less cash and cash equivalents,

2023 2022
== (Rupees in thousand) ---

Total liabilities 8,657,065 6,865,537
Less: cash and cash equivalents (19,656) (22,453)
Net debt 8,637,409 6,843,084
Total equity (1,264,240) (12,449)
Net debt to equity ratio (6.83) (549.67)

I



Pace (Pakistan) Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2023

42 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments and non-financial instruments including their levels in the fair value hierarchy:

Financial instruments

30 June 2023

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Long term advances and deposits
Trade debts

Advances, deposits, prepayments
and other receivables

Cash and bank balances

Lease Receviables

Contract Assets

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Long term finances - secured

Redeemable capital - secured (non-participatory)
Lease liability

Foreign currency convertible bonds - unsecured
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities

Accrued finance cost

™

30 June 2023
Carrying amount Fair value
Financial assets Flnansial
5 liabilities at Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
at amortised cost .
amcrtised cost
Note — (Rupees in thousand) —-
15,248 - 15,248 - -
518,936 - 518,936 - -
85,709 - 85,709 - -
19,656 - 19,656 - -
114,742 109,165 t
356,817 356,817
422 1,111,108 - 1,105,531 - -
B 66,860 66,360 - -
- (815,691) (815,691) - -
- 178,822 178,822 - -
- 5,032,036 5,032,036 - -
- 434,197 434,197 - -
- 1,348,745 1,348,745 - -
42.2 - 6,244,969 6,244,969 - -




Pace (Pakistan) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

42.1 Fair value measuremznt of financial instruments

30 June 2022
Carrying amount Fair value
Financial assets at  Financial liabilities
svortised et ———— Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Note --- (Rupees in thousand) ---
Financial instruments
30 June 2023
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Long term advances and deposits 13,619 - 13,619 - - -
Trade debts 703,149 - 703,149 - - -
Advances, deposits, prepayments
and other receivables 73,077 - 73,077 - - -
Cash and bank balances 22,453 - 22,453 - - -
Lease Receviables 109,165 109,165
Contract Assets 356,817 356,817

42.2 1,278,280 - 1,278,280 - - -
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Long term finances - secured - 66,860 66,860 - - -
Redeemable capital - secured (non-participatory) . - 815,691 815,691 - - -
Lease liability - 183,668 183,668 - - -
Foreign currency convertible bonds - unsecured - 3,610,587 3,610,587 - - -
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities - 696,745 696,745 - - -
Accrued finance cost - 1,203,734 1,203,734 - - -

42.2 - . 6,577,285 6,577,285 - - -

42.2 The Group has not disclosed the fair values of these financial assets and liabilities as these are for short term or reprice over short term. Therefore, their carrying amounts are reasonable
approximation of fair value.

'
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43

44

46

Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executives

The aggregate amount charged in the consolidated financial statements for the year for remuneration, including all benefits to the
Chief Executive, Directors and Executives of the Group is as follows:

DIRECTORS
Chief Executive Executive Executives
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
--- (Rupees in thousand) ---

Managerial remuncration 7,600 7,600 2,725 2,726 7,146 6,815
House allowance 3,040 3,040 1,089 1,090 2,858 2,726
Utilities 760 760 273 273 715 682
StafT retirement benefit-Gratuity 950 950 341 341 893 852
Leave encashment 633 633 227 227 859 578

12,983 12,983 4,655 4,656 12,470 11,653
Number of persons 1 1 1 1 7 7
Number of employees 2023 2022
Total number of employees as at 30 June 136 136
Average number of employees during the year 132 160
Date of authorization for issue

1B B s

These  consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue on UU W | 41‘.,5-"1’.:-,} by the Board of Directors of the

Company.

Corresponding figures

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for better presentation and disclosure. However,
there is no material changes / reclassification.

(E’”"

Al ) ==

Chief Executive Officer Direcfor Chief Financial Officer
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The Company Secretary
Pace (Pakistan) Limited Folio No./CDC A/c No.:
First Capital House
96-B/1, M.M. Alam Road Shares Held:
Gulberg-llI
Lahore
I/We Slo D/o Wi/o
CNIC being the member(s) of Pace (Pakistan) Limited
hereby appoint  Mr./Mrs./Ms./ Slo D/o Wilo CNIC
or failing him / her Mr. / Mrs. Miss S/o. D/o. Wilo.
CNIC as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our

behalf at the Annual General meeting of the Company to be held on 28 October 2023 at 11:30 a.m. and at any adjournment
thereof.

Signed under my/our hands on this day of , 2023

Affix Revenue Stamp of
Rupees Fifty

Signature of member
(Signature should agree with the specimen signature registered with the Company)

Signed in the presence of:

Signature of Witness 1 Signature of Witness 2

Notes

1. A member eligible to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint another member as proxy to attend and vote in the
meeting. Proxies in order to be effective must be received by the company at the Registered Office not later than 48
hours before the time for holding the meeting.

2. In order to be valid, an instrument of proxy and the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is
signed, or a notarially certified copy of such power of attorney, must be deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company, First Capital House, 96-B/1, Lower Ground Floor, M.M. Alam Road, Gulberg-lll, Lahore, not less than 48
hours before the time of the meeting.

a) Individual beneficial owners of CDC entitled to attend and vote at the meeting must bring his/her participant ID
and account/sub-account number along with original CNIC or passport to authenticate his/her identity. In case of
Corporate entity, resolution of the Board of Directors/Power of attorney with specimen of nominees shall be
produced (unless provided earlier) at the time of meeting.

b) b) For appointing of proxies, the individual beneficial owners of CDC shall submit the proxy form as per above
requirement along with participant ID and account/sub-account number together with attested copy of their CNIC
or Passport. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two witnesses with their names, addresses and CNIC
numbers. The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or Passport at the time of meeting. In case of Corporate
entity, resolution of the Board of Directors/Power of attorney along with specimen signatures shall be submitted
(unless submitted earlier) along with the proxy form.
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